
 

 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                    Page 1 
Agenda:  August 25, 2015 

Haines Borough 
Borough Assembly Meeting #298 

 AGENDA 
 

 

August 25, 2015 - 6:30 p.m.                                   Location: Assembly Chambers, Public Safety Bldg
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 

[The following Consent Agenda items are indicated by an asterisk (*) and will be enacted by 
the motion to approve the agenda. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
an assembly member or other person so requests, in which event the asterisk will be 
removed and that item will be considered by the assembly on the regular agenda.] 

Consent Agenda: 
4 – Approve Assembly Meeting Minutes 
8B – Accept Library Report 
9A – Accept Library Board Minutes 
9B – Accept Parks & Rec Committee Minutes 
9C – Accept Planning Commission Minutes 
11A1 – Resolution 15-08-638 
11A2 – Resolution 15-08-639   

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 8/11/15 Regular 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS [Any topics not scheduled for public hearing] 

6. MAYOR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
Important Reminder! - Sign-up prior to or at the beginning of the assembly meeting is 
required in order to make comments during a public hearing.  It’s as easy as contacting the 
Clerk’s Office ahead of time to have your name added to the list or you can sign up yourself 
at the start of the assembly meeting.  Written comments are also welcome. 

A.  Ordinance 15-06-413 – First Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending various provisions of the Haines 
Borough Code to designate certain violations of Borough law as minor 
offenses and to establish a fine schedule for certain offenses and to provide 
for other penalties for violations. 
This ordinance is recommended by the borough manager and was introduced on 6/9/15 
and later referred it for review by the Government Affairs & Services Committee and 
the Public Safety Commission. The assembly has already scheduled the second hearing 
for 9/8/15. No motion is needed now unless the second hearing date needs to change 
or some other action is desired such as addressing any comments received. 

B.  Ordinance 15-08-418 - First Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 13, 
Section 13.08.260 to allow the discharge of cooling water into the municipal 
sewer system with specific approval from a designated borough official. 
This ordinance is recommended by the borough manager and was introduced on 
8/11/15. The assembly already scheduled the second hearing for 9/8/15. No motion is 
needed now unless the second hearing date needs to change or some other action is 
desired. 

8. STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
A.  Borough Manager – 8/25/15 Report 
B.  Public Library – Report of June 2015 

 

Jan Hill, 
Mayor 
 
Dave Berry Jr., 
Assembly Member 
 
Diana Lapham, 
Assembly Member 
 
Mike Case 
Assembly Member 
 
Joanne Waterman, 
Assembly Member 
 
George Campbell, 
Assembly Member 
 
Ron Jackson, 
Assembly Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
David Sosa, MPA 
Borough Manager 

 
Julie Cozzi, MMC 
Borough Clerk 

 
Krista Kielsmeier 
Deputy Clerk 

 
 
 

*

*



 

 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                    Page 2 
Agenda:  August 25, 2015 

 

9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & MINUTES 
A.  Library Advisory Board – Minutes of 6/17/15  
B.  Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee – Minutes of 7/17/15  
C.  Planning Commission – Minutes of 7/9/15  
D. Public Safety Commission – FYI Citizen Comments re.FSA 3 
E.  Assembly Board Liaison Reports 
F.  Assembly Standing Committee Reports 

10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Resolutions 

1.  Resolution 15-08-638 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the Borough Manager to 
enter into a contract with Machineworks to provide 2015-2016 janitorial services for 
the Borough Administration Building and specified areas in the Public Safety Building 
for an amount not to exceed $16,910. 
This resolution is recommended by the manager. Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-638. 

2.  Resolution 15-08-639 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly Assembly of Haines Borough, Alaska, 
authorizing the issuance of a general obligation bond of the Borough in a principal 
amount not to exceed $1,375,000 to finance a portion of the cost of capital 
improvements to Haines High School, as authorized by Ordinance No. 14-07-388 and 
ratified by the Borough’s voters at an election held on October 7, 2014; authorizing 
tax levies to pay the principal thereof and interest thereon; and authorizing the sale 
of the bond to the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank on the terms and conditions provided 
in this resolution. 
This resolution is recommended by the manager. Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-639. 

3.  Resolution 15-08-640 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly approving in response to an application 
from Haines Assisted Living, Inc., as recommended by the borough assessor, a partial 
community purpose exemption for the Level Two apartments of the Soboleff-McRae 
Veterans Village. 
This resolution is recommended by the assessor. Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-640. 

B. Ordinances for Introduction - None 

C. Other New Business - None 

12.  CORRESPONDENCE/REQUESTS  

13.  SET MEETING DATES 

14.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

15.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 

16.  ADJOURNMENT 

*
*
*

*

*



 

 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                    Page 1 
Agenda:  August 25, 2015 

Haines Borough 
Borough Assembly Meeting #298 

 AGENDA 
 

 

August 25, 2015 - 6:30 p.m.                                   Location: Assembly Chambers, Public Safety Bldg
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 

[The following Consent Agenda items are indicated by an asterisk (*) and will be enacted by 
the motion to approve the agenda. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
an assembly member or other person so requests, in which event the asterisk will be 
removed and that item will be considered by the assembly on the regular agenda.] 

Consent Agenda: 
4 – Approve Assembly Meeting Minutes 
8B – Accept Library Report 
9A – Accept Library Board Minutes 
9B – Accept Parks & Rec Committee Minutes 
9C – Accept Planning Commission Minutes 
11A1 – Adopt Resolution 15-08-638 
11A2 – Adopt Resolution 15-08-639   

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 8/11/15 Regular 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS [Any topics not scheduled for public hearing] 

6. MAYOR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
Important Reminder! - Sign-up prior to or at the beginning of the assembly meeting is 
required in order to make comments during a public hearing.  It’s as easy as contacting the 
Clerk’s Office ahead of time to have your name added to the list or you can sign up yourself 
at the start of the assembly meeting.  Written comments are also welcome. 

A.  Ordinance 15-06-413 – First Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending various provisions of the Haines 
Borough Code to designate certain violations of Borough law as minor 
offenses and to establish a fine schedule for certain offenses and to provide 
for other penalties for violations. 
This ordinance is recommended by the borough manager and was introduced on 6/9/15 
and later referred it for review by the Government Affairs & Services Committee and 
the Public Safety Commission. The assembly has already scheduled the second hearing 
for 9/8/15. No motion is needed now unless the second hearing date needs to change 
or some other action is desired such as addressing any comments received. 

B.  Ordinance 15-08-418 - First Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 13, 
Section 13.08.260 to allow the discharge of cooling water into the municipal 
sewer system with specific approval from a designated borough official. 
This ordinance is recommended by the borough manager and was introduced on 
8/11/15. The assembly already scheduled the second hearing for 9/8/15. No motion is 
needed now unless the second hearing date needs to change or some other action is 
desired. 

8. STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
A.  Borough Manager – 8/25/15 Report 
B.  Public Library – Report of June 2015 

 

Jan Hill, 
Mayor 
 
Dave Berry Jr., 
Assembly Member 
 
Diana Lapham, 
Assembly Member 
 
Mike Case 
Assembly Member 
 
Joanne Waterman, 
Assembly Member 
 
George Campbell, 
Assembly Member 
 
Ron Jackson, 
Assembly Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
David Sosa, MPA 
Borough Manager 

 
Julie Cozzi, MMC 
Borough Clerk 

 
Krista Kielsmeier 
Deputy Clerk 

 
 
 

*

*



 

 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                    Page 2 
Agenda:  August 25, 2015 

 

9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & MINUTES 
A.  Library Advisory Board – Minutes of 6/17/15  
B.  Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee – Minutes of 7/17/15  
C.  Planning Commission – Minutes of 7/9/15  
D. Public Safety Commission – FYI Citizen Comments re.FSA 3 
E.  Assembly Board Liaison Reports 
F.  Assembly Standing Committee Reports 

10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Resolutions 

1.  Resolution 15-08-638 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the Borough Manager to 
enter into a contract with Machineworks to provide 2015-2016 janitorial services for 
the Borough Administration Building and specified areas in the Public Safety Building 
for an amount not to exceed $16,910. 
This resolution is recommended by the manager. Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-638. 

2.  Resolution 15-08-639 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly Assembly of Haines Borough, Alaska, 
authorizing the issuance of a general obligation bond of the Borough in a principal 
amount not to exceed $1,375,000 to finance a portion of the cost of capital 
improvements to Haines High School, as authorized by Ordinance No. 14-07-388 and 
ratified by the Borough’s voters at an election held on October 7, 2014; authorizing 
tax levies to pay the principal thereof and interest thereon; and authorizing the sale 
of the bond to the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank on the terms and conditions provided 
in this resolution. 
This resolution is recommended by the manager. Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-639. 

3.  Resolution 15-08-640 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly approving in response to an application 
from Haines Assisted Living, Inc., as recommended by the borough assessor, a partial 
community purpose exemption for the Level Two apartments of the Soboleff-McRae 
Veterans Village. 
This resolution is recommended by the assessor. Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-640. 

B. Ordinances for Introduction - None 

C. Other New Business - None 

12.  CORRESPONDENCE/REQUESTS  

13.  SET MEETING DATES 

14.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

15.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 

16.  ADJOURNMENT 

*
*
*

*

*



 

Haines Borough 
Borough Assembly Meeting #297 

August 11, 2015 
 MINUTES 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG:  Mayor HILL called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in 
the Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag. 

2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Jan HILL, and Assembly Members Diana LAPHAM, Mike CASE, Dave BERRY, Jr., 
Joanne WATERMAN, and Ron JACKSON.  Absent: George CAMPBELL 
Staff Present:  David SOSA/Borough Manager, Julie COZZI/Borough Clerk, Shawn 
BELL/Harbormaster, Robert GRIFFITHS/Chief of Police, Patty BROWN/Library Director, and Jila 
STUART/Chief Fiscal Officer. 

Visitors Present: State Representative Sam KITO III, Karen GARCIA/CVN, Emily FILES/KHNS, Don 
TURNER Jr., Mike DENKER, Anne BOYCE, Don and Karen HESS, Bob BECKER, Margaret 
FRIEDENAUER, Dave NANNEY, Carol TUYNMAN, Brenda JOSEPHSON, Kathy GRIFFITHS, Jack 
WENNER, Tresham GREGG, Debra SCHNABEL, Paul NELSON, George FIGDOR, Bill MCCORD, Linda 
GEISE, and others.  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Items were on the published consent agenda: 

Consent Agenda: 
4 – Approve Assembly Meeting Minutes 
8B – Accept Museum Report 
9A – Accept Museum Board Minutes 
11A1 – Adopt Resolution 15-08-637 
11B1 – Introduce Ordinance 15-08-418  
11C1 – Approve Sales Tax Exemption Request 

Motion: WATERMAN moved to “approve the agenda/consent agenda,” and the motion carried 
unanimously.  

4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 7/28/15 Regular 
The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda:  “approve minutes of the 7/28/15 borough 
assembly regular meeting.”   

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

JOSEPHSON – Opposed to the minor offenses ordinance (documents distributed documents to the 
assembly).  

NELSON – Opposed to the minor offenses ordinance (documents distributed to the assembly). 

BOYCE – 1) Wants the assembly to consider Jack Wenner’s rubble breakwater proposal and 2) wants 
enforcement uniformity and consistency.  

WENNER – Has no reliable cost estimate for rubble breakwater but believes it is the best option. 

TUYNMAN – 1) Has concerns with minor offenses ordinance and 2) believes the Waterfront Aesthetics 
Committee is bypassing the public planning process.  

GREGG – Supports Jack Wenner’s rubble breakwater idea.   

FIGDOR – Believes there has been a failure in the planning process for the entire waterfront.  

6. MAYOR’S COMMENTS/REPORT  
Mayor HILL reported on Governor Walker’s recent visit to Haines and his desire to return. She 
introduced Representative KITO who updated the assembly on the state’s budget situation, revenue 
sharing, Chilkoot River Corridor, a special legislative session this fall, and the ferry system.  

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
A.  New Commercial Tour Permit – Haines Rafting Company  

Note: Chilkat River Adventures applied to add a new tour to their permitted 2015 commercial tour 
activities. They proposed to pick up guests at the Port Chilkoot Dock in an airporter-style vehicle 

Draft 
 

*    

4



August 11, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 
for a one-hour town tour to include Main Street, Front Street, Picture Point, Fort Seward, Dalton 
City, and the Cannery. HBC Title 5 requires a public hearing before the assembly for all new tour 
activities 

Mayor HILL opened the public hearing at 7:00pm. 

TUYNMAN - delighted with the proposed tour.  

Hearing no further comments, the mayor closed the public hearing at 7:02pm. 

Motion: BERRY moved to “authorize the borough clerk to process the Chilkat River Adventures 
application to add a town tour to the company's list of permitted commercial tour activities,” the motion 
carried unanimously in a roll call vote. 

B.   Ordinance 15-07-416 – Second Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 16 Section 
16.08.010 to change the composition of the Port and Harbor Advisory Committee.  
Mayor HILL opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. 
TURNER - Asked the assembly to consider the Port & Harbor Advisory Committee’s  (PHAC) 
recommendation. 
SCHNABEL – Believes the harbor project should be overseen by the Planning Commission as the 
borough’s sole planning body; the PHAC should answer to them. This ordinance could be amended 
to protect that responsibility. 
Hearing no further comments, the mayor closed the hearing at 7:09 p.m. 

Motion: CASE moved to “adopt Ordinance 15-07-416,” and the motion carried 4-1in a roll call vote with 
LAPHAM opposed. 

C.   Ordinance 15-07-417 – Second Hearing 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Borough Code Chapter 2.76; Subsection 
2.82.050(b); Chapters 2.84, 2.86, and 2.88; and Section 2.92.010 to change to a 
combined leave system and clarify various other requirements and descriptions.  
Mayor HILL opened and closed the public hearing at 7:18 p.m.; there were no public comments. 

Motion: BERRY moved to “adopt Ordinance 15-07-417,” and the motion carried 4-1 in a roll call vote with 
CASE opposed. 

8.  STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
A. Borough Manager – 8/11/15 Report 

The manager summarized his written report and added: 1) the 95% harbor design documents are 
posted online and 2) the police department audit report is due for release by Friday, the 14th; a letter 
related to that is now on the borough’s website.   

B.  Sheldon Museum – Facility Report of July 2015 

9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & MINUTES 
A.  Museum Board of Trustees – Minutes of 5/12/15 
B.  Assembly Board Liaison Reports 

CASE – Planning Commission meeting on Thursday, 8/13. 

C.  Assembly Standing Committee Reports 
1.  Personnel Committee – 8/3/15 Meeting 

WATERMAN reported the committee reviewed the personnel code amendments, discussed the 
organizational structure, and, in executive session, discussed the results of police department 
audit.  

10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Ordinance 15-06-415  

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough adopting a revised fee schedule for harbor facility usage.  

Note: This ordinance was introduced on 6/23/15 and had hearings on 7/14 and 7/28. Following the 
second hearing, the assembly postponed adoption to this meeting so staff could look into the costs 
and benefits of the proposed moorage rate increase and the cost of hazardous material disposal.  

*    

*    



August 11, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Main Motion already on the Table: Adopt Ordinance 15-06-415. 

SOSA addressed the question of harbor revenue compared with costs. 

The motion carried unanimously in a roll call vote. 

11.  NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Resolutions  

1.  Resolution 15-08-637 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly adopting written findings of the July 14, 
2015 appeal hearing of the Eagle’s Nest Trailer Park nuisance abatement order. 

The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda:  “adopt Resolution 15-08-637.” 

B.  Ordinances for Introduction  
1.  Ordinance 15-08-418 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 13, 
Section 13.08.260 to allow the discharge of cooling water into the municipal sewer 
system with specific approval from a designated borough official.  
The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda:  “introduce Ordinance 15-08-418 
and set a first public hearing for 8/25/15 and a second public hearing for 9/8/15.” 

C. Other New Business  
1.   Sales Tax Exemption Request – Breast Cancer Detection Center of Alaska 

The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda:  “approve the request from the Breast 
Cancer Detection Center of Alaska for sales tax exemption status, and authorize the borough 
clerk to issue an exemption certificate.” 

12. CORRESPONDENCE/REQUESTS  

13. SET MEETING DATES  
It was noted meetings will be scheduled soon for the following committees: Personnel, Government 
Affairs & Services, and the ad hoc Waterfront Aesthetics Committee. 

14.   PUBLIC COMMENTS   

GEISE – The borough needs to reactivate the local emergency planning committee; there are monies 
available.  

DENKER – 1) Agreed with GEISE and 2) thanked the manager and interim police chief for working on 
the police department deficiencies.  

GARCIA – Asked if there be a Government Affairs & Services Committee meeting scheduled to discuss 
the minor offenses ordinance.  

15.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS 

CASE– 1) Thanked Rep. Kito for coming and hoped he will plan to talk about some revenue measures 
when he returns and 2) thanked Jack Wenner for all of the effort he has put forth for this community.  

WATERMAN – 1) Asked about the emergency planning committee brought up under Public Comment 
(SOSA said he has reactivated it and it, in fact, functioned during the recent boil water situation) and 2) 
the assembly should address the issue raised during the Ordinance 15-07-416 public hearing regarding 
the planning commission’s planning responsibilities.  

16.  ADJOURNMENT – 7:33 p.m. 

Motion: WATERMAN moved to “adjourn the meeting,” and the motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 

ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 

*    

*    

*    



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

15-576
8/25/15

to put the fines for existing laws into a single table

Borough Attorney

6/1/15

1. Ordinance 15-06-413, draft with explanatory comments
2. PowerPoint Presentation
3. Fine Tables including Existing Penalties
4. 6/30/15 Attorney Memo

The assembly already scheduled the second hearing for 9/8/15. No motion is needed now unless the second
hearing date needs to change or some other action is desired.

The borough manager and borough attorney recommend this.

none  n/a fines to borough rather than court

April 2013, a district court ruling came out requiring a comprehensive fine schedule. What this means is municipalities
need to create official fine schedules with precise amounts for municipal violations. The borough attorneys worked for
many months on a full review and revision of borough code to bring us into compliance. It was reviewed by staff and
the court system. On 6/9/15, the assembly introduced the ordinance and later referred it for review by the
Government Affairs & Services Committee and the Public Safety Commission and scheduled the public hearings for
8/25/15 and 9/8/15. Note: the borough clerk administratively changed to "borough" every reference to "city".

Staff has prepared a brief PowerPoint presentation along with a document showing the current penalties alongside
the proposed fines.

n/a

8/25, 9/8/156/9, 7/14, 8/25/15

Comprehensive Minor Offenses Ordinance

7A



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 15-06-413 

 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending various provisions of the Haines 
Borough Code to designate certain violations of Borough law as minor offenses 
and to establish a fine schedule for certain offenses and to provide for other 
penalties for violations. 
 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 
 

Section 1.   Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the 
adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

 
Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption.   
 
Section 4.   Repeal and Reenactment of Chapter 1.24.  Chapter 1.24 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby repealed in its entirety and reenacted to read as follows:   

1.24.010 General penalty 

A. Every act prohibited by borough ordinance is unlawful.  Unless another penalty is 
expressly provided by this code for a particular act or offense, every person convicted of an 
infraction or violation of any provision of this code, or any rule or regulation adopted or issued 
pursuant to this code, is guilty of a minor offense as that term is defined in the Alaska Rules of 
Minor Offense Procedure and shall be punished by a fine of not more than five hundred ($500) 
dollars.   

B. In addition to any other remedies or penalties which may be provided in this code, or 
may otherwise be available, the borough or any aggrieved person may institute a civil action to 
obtain injunctive or compensatory relief against a person who violates any provision of the code. 
An action to enjoin a violation may be brought notwithstanding the availability of any other 
remedy. On application for injunctive relief and a finding of violation or threatened violation, the 
superior court shall grant the injunction. 

C. Each act of violation and every day upon which the violation shall occur will constitute a 
separate offense.  

1.24.015 Surcharge required 

In addition to any penalty prescribed by law, a defendant convicted of violating a borough 
ordinance shall pay the surcharge required under AS 12.55.039 and 29.25.074.  All such 
surcharges collected shall be remitted to the State of Alaska as required by AS 29.25.074. 

1.24.020 Procedure. 

A. The charge for the violation of a code provision may be brought by a borough police 
officer, the borough manager, or that borough official responsible for the administration and 
enforcement of the code provision which has been violated.  

B. The borough shall use the Alaska Uniform Citation form, or the electronic version if 
authorized, to provide notice of a minor offense to anyone accused of violating any provision of this 
Code. 

1.24.030 Disposition of minor offenses. 

Draft 

Comment [PM1]: Included here are variations of 
9.01.010 

Comment [PM2]: ARMOP 2(e) 

Comment [PM3]: Formerly 9.01.010(B) 

Comment [PM4]: Former 9.01.060 is now 
unnecessary because the Rules of Minor Offense 
procedure apply to these types of offenses and 
describe more particularly precisely what is required 
to cite, serve, and prosecute an violation of 
municipal ordinances. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 2 of 36 
 
A person charged with a minor offense listed on a fine schedule may appear in court to contest the 
charge.  If an offense is not listed on a fine schedule, or if the citation indicates that a court 
appearance is mandatory, the defendant must appear in court to answer the charges. As a minor 
offense, trial is by the court without a jury, and there is no right to court-appointed defense 
counsel.   

1.24.040 Minor Offense Fine Schedule. 

In accordance with AS 29.25.070(a), citations for the following offenses may be disposed of as 
provided in AS 12.25.195-.230, without a court appearance, upon payment of the fine amounts 
listed below, plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074.  Fines must be 
paid to the court.  The Alaska Court System’s Rules of Minor Offense Procedures apply to all 
offenses listed below. If a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found 
guilty, the penalty imposed for the offense may not exceed the fine schedule amount listed below 
for that offense.  Citations charging these offenses must meet the requirements of the Rules of 
Minor Offense Procedure. The fines set forth below may not be judicially reduced. 

 
Code Section Offense Description Fine Amount 

3.80.035(D) Failure of operator to collect 
and/or remit sales tax for 
rental space 

300 

3.80.080 Failure to identify and add 
amount of sales tax to 
taxable transaction 

300 

3.80.090(A) Failure to timely file sales 
tax returns 

300 

3.80.090(B) Failure to remit taxes with 
returns 

300 

3.80.170 Failure to obtain business 
license 

300 

3.80.190(A) Failure to file final sales tax 
return 

300 

5.04.030(C) Failure to obtain required 
permit (general) 

500 

5.04.080(E)(2) Sign violation 100 

5.04.140(A) commercial tour/ enterprise 
operating w/o permit  or 
failure to follow permit 
condition 

500 

5.08.010(A) Permit required for 
solicitation on public 
property 

300 

5.08.020 Solicitation on private 
property without invitation 
prohibited 

300 

5.08.030(A) Permit required for 
transient/ itinerant 

300 

Comment [PM5]: This is optional 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 3 of 36 
 

merchants/ vendors 

5.08.040 Permit required for circus, 
carnival, fair/other 
concessions 

300 

5.08.050(A) Sale/solicitation of 
commercial magazines on 
public sidewalks/ streets 
prohibited 

300 

5.12.010(A) License required to 
manufacture/ sell any 
alcoholic beverage 

500 

5.12.020 Closing hours for licensed 
alcoholic beverage premises 
between 5:00 a.m. and 8 
a.m.  

500 

5.12.040 Accessibility for inspection 
of licensed premises within 
the townsite service area 

300 

5.16.010(A) All operators of gaming 
activities prohibited from 
conducting gaming activities 

300 

5.18.015 Commercial tour permit 
required 

500 

5.20.030 Failure to display 
commercial passenger 
vehicle / tour vehicle permit  

100 

5.20.040(A)(1) Failure to display license 100 

5.20.040(A)(2) Failure to display rates 100 

5.20.040(A)(3) Failure to display contact 
information of Borough 
Clerk 

100 

5.20.040(B) Taxicab soliciting passenger 
or otherwise blocking traffic 

100 

5.20.050 Soliciting persons along the 
roadway 

100 

5.22.010(C) Use of commercial parking 
vehicle areas when not 
engaged in commercial tour 
activity  

100 

5.22.040(C) Failure to display parking 
permit 

100 

5.22.040(D) Unreasonable interference 
with efficient operations 

100 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 4 of 36 
 

5.22.040(E) Leaving commercial vehicle 
unattended 

100 

5.22.040(F) Improper signage 100 

5.22.040(H) Unauthorized use of parking 
area 

100 

5.22.040(J) Unauthorized display of 
sales material 

100 

6.08.010(A) Dog license required Altered dog: $50 

6.08.010(A) Dog license required Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.010(D) Failure to display tag Altered dog: $50  

6.08.010(D) Failure to display tag Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.010(F) Failure to obtain kennel 
permit 

Altered dog: $50  

6.08.010(F) Failure to obtain kennel 
permit 

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.010(H) Using dog license receipt or 
license tag issued for 
another dog 

Altered dog: $50  

6.08.010(H) Using dog license receipt or 
license tag issued for 
another dog 

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.020(A) At-large dog Altered dog: $50  

6.08.020(A) At-large dog Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.020(B) Barking, howling, or other 
noises  

Altered dog: $50  

6.08.020(B) Barking, howling, or other 
noises  

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.020(C) Run, chase, jump at moving 
vehicles 

Altered dog: $50  

6.08.020(C) Run, chase, jump at moving 
vehicles 

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.020(D) Snap, jump, injure another 
person  

Altered dog: $50  



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 5 of 36 
 

6.08.020(D) Snap, jump, injure another 
person  

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.020(E) Chase, harass deer or 
moose  

Altered dog: $50  

6.08.020(E) Chase, harass deer or 
moose  

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

6.08.020(G) Female dog in season 
confined  

Unaltered dog: 
$150 

8.08.020(A) Littering in any place other 
than in an appropriate refuse 
container 

50 

8.08.020(B) Littering upon a public place  50 

8.08.020(C) Sweeping or depositing litter 
into a public place from 
private property 

50 

8.08.020(D) Littering from vehicle 100 

8.08.020(E) Depositing any litter on 
private property 

50 

8.08.020(F) Failure to maintain private 
property in a litter-free 
condition 

50 

8.08.020(G) Posting any handbill without 
permit under HBC Title 18 

50 

8.08.020(H) Littering in a body of water 50 

8.08.020(I) Depositing litter generated in 
a refuse container belonging 
to another 

100 

8.08.020(J) Burning without a permit and 
police department 
notification or in violation of 
conditions 

100 

8.08.020(K) Depositing offensive, 
noxious, or otherwise 
dangerous litter 

100 

8.08.040(A)(1) Refuse container: strong, 
watertight, not easily 
corrodible, and rodent proof 

100 

8.08.040(A)(2) Refuse container standards: 
fitted with a tight cover 

100 

8.08.040(A)(3) Refuse container standards: 
kept tightly covered at all 

100 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 6 of 36 
 

times 

8.08.040(B) Refuse containers: emptied 
and properly disposed of on 
a regular basis 

100 

8.12.020(A) Burying a person outside  
an established cemetery 

300 

8.12.020(B) Annoy, injure or endanger 
the public 

300 

8.12.020(C) Offending public decency 300 

8.12.020(D) Interfere with a street, 
highway, lake or stream 

100 

8.12.020(E) Making loud or 
unreasonable noise 

100 

8.12.020(F) Operating device that 
causes preventable electric 
interference 

100 

8.12.020(G) Allowing animal access to 
an unoccupied building 

300 

8.12.020(H) Unsafe condition due to 
disrepair of building 

300 

8.12.020(I) Reducing surrounding value 
of properties by maintaining 
building in state of disrepair 

300 

8.12.020(J) Accumulation of stagnant 
water or discharge of 
wastewater  

300 

8.12.020(K) Failure to take reasonable 
and precautionary measures 
to restrict access to hazards 

300 

8.12.020(L) Causing emission of noxious 
fumes 

300 

8.12.020(M) Exposure or distribution of 
materials offending the 
public decency 

300 

8.12.020(N) Obstruction of traffic 300 

8.12.020(O) Public exposure of a person 
having a contagious disease 

300 

8.12.020(P) Noxious cellar, pool, sewer, 
water closet, or private 
drain  

300 

8.12.030 Hazardous building or public 
nuisance 

300 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 7 of 36 
 

8.16.015 Use of fireworks prohibited 100 

8.16.020 Sale prohibited of fireworks 300 

8.16.025 Use of fireworks near port 
facilities prohibited 

300 

8.16.030 Conducting fireworks display 
without permission of chief 
of police 

300 

8.18.020(A) Smoking in an enclosed 
public area 

100 

8.18.020(B) Smoking in an enclosed 
public area 

100 

8.18.020(C) Smoking inside an enclosed 
area within a place of 
employment 

100 

8.18.020(D) Smoking inside an enclosed 
area within a private club 
licensed to sell alcoholic 
beverages 

100 

8.18.030 Smoking within 
unreasonable distance 
outside an enclosed area 
where smoking is prohibited 

100 

8.18.040(A) Smoking within 50 feet of 
entrance to hospital or 
medical clinic 

100 

8.18.040(B) Smoking within 20 feet of 
entrance to enclosed school 
area 

100 

8.18.040(C) Smoking within 5 feet of 
licensed premises 

100 

8.18.040(D) Smoking in an outdoor arena 100 

8.18.070(A) Failure to post signs 
prohibiting smoking 

200 

8.18.070(B) Failure to remove ashtrays 200 

8.18.070(C) Failure to provide smoke-
free workplace 

200 

8.18.070(D) Failure to prevent smoking 
at a smoke-free 
establishment 

200 

8.18.080(B) Smoking where prohibited 100 

8.18.080(C) Permitting smoking in public 
place where prohibited 

200 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 8 of 36 
 

8.20.020 Creating or permitting a bear 
attraction nuisance 

100 

9.04.010(A) Open container of alcoholic 
beverages within vehicle 

100 

9.04.010(B)(1) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage upon street or 
highway 

100 

9.04.010(B)(2) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage in public 

100 

9.04.010(B)(3) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage on school property 

200 

9.04.010(B)(4) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage at school function 

200 

9.08.010 Curfew For Minors 250 

9.08.020 Parental responsibility for 
curfew violation 

250 

9.24.010(A) Discharging pistol or firearm  300 

9.24.010(C) Hunting in prohibited area 300 

9.24.020(A) Obstructing highways and 
other public passages 

100 

9.24.020(B)(1) Failure to obey order to 
move to prevent obstruction 

100 

9.24.020(B)(2) Failure to obey order to 
move to maintain public 
safety 

100 

9.24.030 Disrupting meetings and 
processions 

100 

12.08.160(B) Utility permit required 300 

12.10.010 Construction work on 
driveway in a right of way 
without a permit 

300 

12.12.040(A) Failure to install street 
numbers in compliance with 
code 

100 

12.16.010 Street and sidewalk 
obstructions prohibited 

50 

12.16.030(A) Use of streets for private 
purposes 

50 

12.40.030 Prohibited activity or 
construction in Picture Park 
restricted area 

100 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 9 of 36 
 

12.50.020 Motorized vehicle use in 
Chilkat River beaches 
recreational zone 

100 

13.04.310(A) Unlawful opening of fire 
hydrant 

300 

13.08.100(A) Failure to connect to sewer 
system after notice 

300 

14.34.030(A)(1) Cutting timber that is not 
already dead or downed 

300 

14.34.030(A)(2) Cutting firewood for other 
than personal use 

300 

14.34.030(A)(3) Using unlawful mechanical 
means to cut firewood 

300 

15.08.040 Following fire apparatus or 
otherwise interfering with 
fire control operations 

100 

15.08.060 Smoking where prohibted for 
safety reasons 

100 

15.12.020(B) Failure to file required report 
by a person handling 
hazardous substances 

300 

15.12.020(D) Failure to file required report 
by a person handling 
consumer quantities of 
hazardous material or 
chemical 

300 

15.12.070(A) Failure to file required 
transhipment facility report 

300 

15.12.070(C) Failure to display marking or 
warnings  with respect to 
transshipment facility 

100 

15.12.070(D)(3) Failure to notify fire 
department of time and 
quantity of a shipment of 
extremely hazardous 
substance 

300 

15.12.090(A) Failure to obtain certificate of 
compliance 

300 

15.16.020 Crash post does not meet 
specifications 

100 

16.12.020 Obstruction of dock area by 
vehicle, cart, coneyance, or 
other transportation system 

50 

16.12.030 Vessel in excess of 65 feet 50 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 10 of 36 
 

using gridiron 

16.16.135 Launching or recovering 
vessel without paying fee or 
obtaining annual ramp 
launch sticker 

100 

16.16.150 Unapproved vessel mooring 
in harbor 

100 

16.16.170 Non-compliant electrical 
connection 

100 

16.16.190 Mooring without payment 100 

16.16.200(A) Dead storage prohibited 100 

16.16.210 Use of harbor crane without 
permit of paying fee 

100 

16.20.040 Snow must be removed from 
dock, float, or finger 

50 

16.28.005(D) Wood fires not permitted in 
port and harbor facilities 

100 

16.28.005(E) Unlawful electrical system 
or connection 

100 

16.28.010(A) Operating vessel in excess 
of three MPH within borough 
port and harbor facilities 

50 

16.28.010(B) Operating vessel in a 
negligent manner 

300 

16.28.010(C) Operating vessel in a 
negligent manner likely to 
endanger the safety of 
person or property 

500 

16.28.010(D) Unlawful depositing of 
refuse or prohibited 
materials 

100 

16.28.010(E) To fail to register with the 
harbormaster 

100 

16.28.010(F) Leaving vessel or floating 
structure moored 
unattended while fire is 
burning 

100 

16.28.010(G) Starting or allowing any fire 
on a float or dock 

500 

16.28.010(I) Conducting unlawful 
business within the port and 
harbor facilities 

100 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 11 of 36 
 

16.28.010(J) Living aboard a vessel 
moored in the harbor while 
prohibited or allowing 
animal to run at large 

100 

16.28.010(K) Leaving cargo or other 
material on docks or other 
public place 

50 

16.28.010(L) To fail to clean up after an 
animals 

50 

16.28.010(M) Tapping, disconnecting, 
interfering with, or 
tampering with any water or 
electrical connection 

100 

16.28.010(N) Interfering with any wharf 
or any other harbor facility 

100 

16.28.010(O) Writing or posting printed 
matter upon any bulletin 
board without permission of 
the harbormaster 

50 

16.28.010(P) Erecting or maintaining any 
advertising or other printed 
matter without approval 
from the harbormaster 

50 

16.28.010(Q) To disregard or tamper with 
any notice relating to the 
use of mooring areas or 
other uses of port and 
harbor facilities 

100 

16.28.010(R) To moor or connect to 
Letnikof Cove facility 
without paying fees 

100 

16.32.040(B) Use of small boat harbor 
without paying required fees 

100 

16.32.045 Long-term parking outside 
designated area at Letnikof 
Cove Harbor 

50 

18.40.010 Land use permit required 250 

18.40.040(A) Temporary use permit 
required 

250 

18.40.040(B) Exceeding scope of 
temporary permit 

100 

18.50.020 Conditional use permit 
required 

250 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 12 of 36 
 

18.70.030(A) Violating restrictions in 
townsite planning/zoning 
district 

100 

18.70.030(B) Violating restrictions in Mud 
Bay planning/zoning district 

100 

18.70.030(B)(3)(g) Setback violation 100 

18.70.030(B)(3)(h) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in RRZ 

100 

18.70.030(B)(4)(f) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in Cannery Zone 

100 

18.70.030(C) Violating restrictions in 
Lutak Inlet planning/zoning 
district 

100 

18.70.030(C)(3)(f) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in RRZ 

100 

18.70.030(C)(3)(h) Setback violation 100 

18.70.030(C)(3)(i) Building height violation 100 

18.70.030(C)(3)(j) Sign violation 100 

18.70.030(C)(3)(k) Use of RV as permanent 
dwelling or excessive RV's 
on property 

100 

18.70.030(C)(3)(l) Noise violation 100 

18.70.030(C)(4)(f) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in Riparian Zone 

100 

18.70.030(D) Violating restrictions in 
general use planning/zoning 
district 

100 

18.80.030(A) Setback violation 100 

18.80.040 Unlawful parking provided 100 

18.90.030(A) Failure to obtain sign permit 250 

18.90.040 Excessive number of signs 100 

18.90.050(B) Projecting sign violation 100 

18.90.050(C) Portable sign obscuring 
traffic or sight angles 

100 

18.90.070 Prohibited sign in use 100 

18.90.080(C) Prohibited sign in Significant 
structures area zone 

100 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 13 of 36 
 

18.90.100(B) Prohibited sign in residential 
zoning districts 

100 

 
1.24.060 Attempt to commit minor offense prohibited. 

A. Every person who attempts to commit a minor offense  but fails or is prevented or is 
intercepted in its perpetration is guilty of a minor offense and shall be punished in the manner 
prescribed for the infraction itself.  

B. In a prosecution under this section, it is not a defense to the charge that it was factually 
or legally impossible to commit the offense allegedly attempted if the conduct engaged in by the 
defendant would be an offense had the circumstances been as defendant believed them to be. 

1.24.070 Aiding or Abetting minor offense prohibited. 

Every person who counsels, abets, or aids another in committing a minor offense is equally guilty 
of the minor offense and punishable in the same way. 

1.24.080  Ordinances Affecting Minor Offenses Sent to Borough Attorney 

Immediately after the Assembly enacts a code ordinance affecting, creating, or eliminating a minor 
offense, the Borough Clerk shall transmit the ordinance to the Borough Attorney.  The Borough 
Attorney shall submit any necessary updates to the Alaska Court System for inclusion in the 
Uniform Table of Minor Offenses. 

1.24.090 Definitions. 

For purposes of this chapter, the following terms are defined as follows: 

“Attempt” means engage in conduct that constitutes a substantial step toward commission of an 
offense. 

“Solicit” means to ask, advise, authorize, command, incite, or urge. 

Section 5.    Amendment of Section 2.06.035(C).  Section 2.06.035(C) of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 

Comment [PM6]: Former 9.01.080, but final 
definition of “violation” not included because 
unnecessary now that Minor Offense rules apply 
and set forth more comprehensive requirements. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 14 of 36 
 

STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

C. The disclosure must be true, correct and complete and shall be signed under oath or 
affirmation, or certified to be true under penalty of perjury. A person required to file a financial 
disclosure statement under this section who refuses or knowingly fails to disclose required 
information within the time required in this chapter, or who provides false or misleading 
information, knowing it to be false or misleading, is guilty of a violation and upon conviction is 
punishable by a fine of not less than $100.00 nor more than $500. $1,000 notwithstanding 
Chapter 1.24 HBC. A municipal officer or candidate for an office who refuses or fails to file a 
financial disclosure statement required under this section when due shall not hold office, and the 
person’s name shall not be submitted to the assembly for appointment or reappointment, until the 
person complies. The person may not be confirmed, hired, or appointed, and the person forfeits 
and may not be paid any salary, per diem, or travel expenses, until the person complies. If, after 
installation in office or beginning employment in the position, the person refuses or fails to file the 
required financial disclosure statement when due, the person is guilty of a violation and upon 
conviction is punishable by a fine of not less than $100.00 nor more than $500. $1,000 
notwithstanding Chapter 1.24 HBC. Any citizen eligible to vote in Alaska may bring a civil action to 
enforce any of the provisions of this section. 

Section 6.    Amendment of Section 2.96.010.  Section 2.96.010 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby repealed and reenacted as Section 2.96.010 and 2.96.020 as follows: 

2.96.010 Unlawful activity and conduct. 

A. It shall be unlawful for: 

1.  Any person to give, render, pay, offer, solicit, or accept any money, service, or other 
valuable thing in attempting to secure any appointment, promotion, or advantage in a position in 
the borough service. 

2.  Any person to require personnel to subscribe, contribute, or provide a service to any 
political party. 

3. Any person to seek or attempt to use any political party endorsement to secure any 
appointment or promotion in the borough service. 

4. Any elected official or employee to solicit, negotiate for, or promise to accept anything 
of substantial value from any person, firm or company which is engaged in the transaction of 
business with the borough. 

5. Any elected official or employee to use information which is obtained in the person’s 
official capacity as an employee of the borough and which concerns the property, government or 
affairs of the borough to advance the financial or other private interests of the person or others. 

6. Any elected official or employee to accept any loan, gift, gratuity, remuneration or 
compensation from any person, business or organization other than the borough when the same is 
offered in exchange for performing or discharging any official duty or responsibility. 

 B.  A violation of this section is a minor offense and subject to a maximum fine of up to $500 
for each offense. 

2.96.020 Prohibited conduct 

A.  It shall be prohibited for: 

1. Any person, except a school district employee, to continue as an employee of the 
borough after being elected to the borough assembly. 

Comment [PM7]: We divided this section into 
two sections because some are appropriate to be 
treated as MOs, but others are really employment 
or ethical matters.  This allows us to save the exact 
language but correctly identify the type of violation 
each action is. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 15 of 36 
 

2. Any person to take any action which affects the employment status of any other 
person when the reason for such action is predicated on race, color, religion, sex, or national 
origin. 

3. Any person to make any false statement on any application, report or other 
document relating to employment status or to commit any other fraud which would prevent the 
fair and impartial execution of this code. 

4. Any person to be employed in any position in any department whose immediate 
family member is the elected official, borough officer or department head under whom such 
person is employed. 

5. Any elected official or employee to demand or request an applicant for employment 
to provide information relating to the applicant’s religion, ancestry, race, or political convictions. 

6. Any elected official or employee to invest, either directly or indirectly, in any 
business or participate in any private business transaction which conflicts with his official duties. 

7. Any elected official or employee to be a party to the purchase of or influence the 
purchase of goods or services for the use of the borough from any business in which the person 
has a substantial financial interest unless the purchase is approved in advance by the assembly. 

B.  Any employee or official who violates this section shall be subject to discipline or those 
penalties provided in Chapter 2.06. 

Section 7.    Amendment of Section 3.80.260.  Section 3.80.260 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

3.80.260 Violations a minor offense misdemeanor. 

A seller, including a person, firm, co-partnership or corporation, or an officer, director or agent of 
a corporation acting on behalf of the seller, including a person with signatory authority over any 
corporate savings or checking accounts, who violates a provision of this chapter or who fails or 
refuses to comply with a request or demand of the clerk authorized or made under this chapter is 
guilty of a minor offense. misdemeanor.  Prosecution under this chapter shall not limit the 
Borough’s right to collect in a civil action all unpaid taxes, penalty and interest which 
may be owed. 

Section 8.    Amendment of Section 5.02.020.  Section 5.02.020 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

5.02.020 Violation a minor offense misdemeanor. 

An individual or entity subject to this chapter, or a responsible officer, director, or agent of an 
entity subject to this chapter, who violates the requirements of this chapter is guilty of a minor 
offense misdemeanor, which is punishable by not more than 30 days in jail and/or a $1,000  a 
fine in the amount of $100 for each month a business operates without a license or in 
violation of the license, each of which shall constitute a separate offense, up to a 
maximum total fine of $1,000. 

Comment [PM8]: Recommend be made a minor 
offense because it will almost never make practical 
sense to prosecute failure to obtain business license 
as a misdemeanor (with trial by jury, public 
defender, etc.).  Real question is how to structure a 
fine in a way that makes sense. Should be high 
enough to encourage compliance, but should get 
worse as the violation get more egregious (i.e., a 
slightly late application should not be penalized the 
same amount as one who operates for a year 
without getting a license.  This is one way we could 
do that, but it is just a proposal that can be 
changed. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 16 of 36 
 

Section 9.    Amendment of Section 5.04.140.  Section 5.04.140 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

5.04.140 Penalties. 

A. Operation of any commercial tour or business enterprise for which a permit is required 
under this title without a permit, or the failure to follow any permit condition, shall constitute an 
offense punishable a minor offense which, upon conviction, shall be punishable by a fine not 
exceeding $1,000 of $500 for each offense, unless a different amount is specified in HBC 
1.24.040, plus any surcharge required to be imposed by AS 12.55.039. 

B. The securing of a permit through deceit, fraud, or intentional misrepresentation shall 
constitute an offense punishable, upon conviction, by a fine not exceeding $5001,000, plus any 
surcharge required to be imposed by AS 12.55.039.  The permit may also be revoked through 
administrative proceedings. as well as revocation of the permit. 

C. The commission by a permittee of an act of fraud, misrepresentation, or cheating that 
would constitute an unlawful act or practice under AS 45.50.471, either through the permittee’s 
own act or through the acts of the permittee’s employee, agent, or representative, in relation to 
an activity authorized under a permit, is, upon conviction, punishable by a fine of $500 not 
exceeding $300.00 for each violation plus any surcharge required to be imposed by AS 12.55.039. 

D. The borough may institute a civil action against a person who violates this chapter. An 
action to enjoin a violation may be brought notwithstanding the availability of any other remedy. 
On application for injunctive relief and a finding of a violation or a threatened violation, the 
superior court shall grant the injunction.  

Section 10.    Amendment of Section 5.04.150.  Section 5.04.150 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

5.04.150 Offenses separable. 

Each such person who violates a provision of this chapter or a provision of any permit 
issued under this chapter is guilty of separate offense for each and every day during any portion 
of which any violation of any provision of any permit issued under this chapter is committed, 
continued or permitted by any such person. 

Section 11.    Amendment of Section 5.08.020.  Section 5.08.020 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 17 of 36 
 

STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

5.08.020 Solicitation on private property without invitation prohibited. 

The practice of going in and upon private residences in the borough by transient solicitors, peddlers, 
hawkers, itinerant merchants, or transient vendors of merchandise not having been requested or 
invited to do so by the owner or occupant of the private residence for the purpose of soliciting 
orders for the sale of goods, wares, and merchandise and/or disposing of and/or peddling or 
hawking the same is unlawful. declared to be a nuisance and punishable as such nuisance. 

Section 12.    Amendment of Section 6.08.060.  Section 6.08.060 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
 STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

6.08.060 Impoundment and citations. 

A. The manager shall appoint an animal control officer or firm whose duties shall be to 
enforce the provisions of this title. The borough shall provide an animal shelter where dogs may 
be impounded. In the absence of an animal control officer or firm contracted to enforce the animal 
control regulations, or if the assembly determines that additional personnel are necessary, the 
manager may appoint someone on a temporary basis to fulfill the animal control officer’s duties. 

B. The animal control officer shall have the authority to impound any dog found running at 
large or kept in violation of this title and any unlicensed dog found, other than a seeing-eye dog. 
Whether the dog is impounded or not, if the owner or keeper is known, the police department or 
animal control officer shall immediately give notice verbally or in writing to the owner or keeper 
that such dog has been impounded, is running at large or is otherwise in violation of this title. The 
police department or animal control officer or firm may cite the owner or keeper of the dog to 
appear in court to answer a charge of violation of this title.  Any citation issued for a violation 
of this title shall be processed by the court system in accordance with Chapter 1.24 HBC. 

C. Any person may file a complaint with the animal control officer or police that a dog is 
running at large or is otherwise in violation of this title and it shall be the duty of the animal 
control officer or police department to give notice to the owner or keeper as provided in 
subsection (B) of this section. 

D. When a dog has been impounded, and if the owner or keeper is known or can be 
ascertained from the dog tag or records of the borough, the police department shall notify the 
dog’s owner or keeper of the impoundment as soon as possible and of the fact that the animal 
may be redeemed according to the provisions of this title. The police department shall keep a 
record of all dogs impounded including the dog’s description and the disposition of the dog. 

Section 13.    Amendment of Section 6.08.130(A).  Section 6.08.130(A) of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
 STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

6.08.130 Penalties for violations. 

A. Any person accused convicted of violating HBC 6.08.030 concerning dangerous dogs or 
HBC 6.08.040 or 6.08.050 concerning rabies, shall appear in court and, upon conviction, is 
guilty of a minor offense and punishable by a fine of up to $500.   control shall be guilty of 
a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 and/or imprisonment up to 30 days. 

Comment [PM9]: Chief Musser recommends 
amending these to be minor offenses, and our office 
agrees that that is preferable from an enforcement 
perspective. In order to emphasize the seriousness 
of these offenses however we have made them 
mandatory court appearance offenses with the 
maximum allowable fine. On the other hand, a case 
could be made that these should be misdemeanors 
since they more directly threaten health and safety 
than most minor offenses. There is no equivalent 
state statute to allow violations to be charged as 
state crimes, so the Borough could decide it wants 
to be able to charge these as misdemeanors (in 
which case this section can likely remain as is) 
 
Subsection B provides a fine schedule for all other 
violations of this chapter.  It could be left as-is, but 
our understanding is that second and third violation 
fines (so called “graduated fines”) are not being 
assessed on any regular basis. They also require a 
court appearance so that the magistrate can 
confirm that multiple offense s have occurred, 
thereby eliminating the benefit of the scheduled 
fine (namely, not requiring a court appearance by 
either the officer or the violator). We therefore 
recommend deleting them and making all violations 
the same amount, except for altered /non-altered. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 18 of 36 
 

B. Any person violating the provisions of, or failing to comply with, any other section of this 
chapter is guilty of a minor offense violation and, unless otherwise specifically provided, shall be 
fined as follows: in the amount set forth in HBC 1.24.040, or if no fine is there established, 
a fine of not more than $500.  

1. Spayed or Neutered Dog (Owner or keeper must provide veterinarian’s 
proof of spay/neuter procedure). 

 
 
 
 
 
2. Nonspayed or Nonneutered Dog. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C. A past violation taken into account in determining a fine payable under subsection (B) of 

this section will be deleted from an animal’s record if such animal has had no violations for a 
period of three calendar years from the date of that prior violation. A fine imposed under 

subsection 
(B)(2) of this section 
shall be vacated 
and a lesser fine 
imposed under 

subsection 
(B)(1) of this section, if, within 30 days of the date of the violation, proof from a licensed 
veterinarian showing that the offending dog has been spayed or neutered is presented to the 
police department. 

Section 14.    Amendment of Section 8.08.050.  Section 8.08.050 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

8.08.050 Compliance – Enforcement. 

A person violating a provision of this chapter shall be subject to punishment according to the 
provisions of HBC Chapter 1.24.010. 

Section 15.    Repeal and reenactment Section 8.12.140.  Section 8.12.140 of the 
Haines Borough Code is hereby repealed and reenacted as follows: 

8.12.140 Enforcement. 

A.  The abatement official or any police officer may cite an offender or property owner for a 
violation of any provision of this chapter, whether or not abatement proceedings are instituted.  
Such a violation shall be considered a minor offense and is punishable by a fine a set forth in HBC 
1.24.040, or if no fine is there established, a fine of not more than $500.  Any proceeding instituted 

First violation     $25.00 

Second violation     $50.00 

Third and subsequent violations     $100.00 

First violation     $75.00 

Second violation     $150.00 

Third and subsequent 
violations     

$300.00 

Comment [PM10]: We propose to revise this 
section to make it clear that the Borough can issue 
citations for nuisance violations without going 
through the entire abatement process if it chooses 
to do so.  The ticket would subject the offender to a 
fine, but the City would not be required to abate the 
nuisance if it did not choose to do so. The offender 
would have incentive to do so because each 
subsequent day it is not corrected, the offender can 
be cited as a new offense. 
 
 Any time the Borough does want to abate the 
nuisance on its own dime (and then try to recover 
costs from the owner), it can do so by following the 
abatement process . This allows more flexibility to 
try to compel timely compliance by issuing a ticket 
before taking the relatively drastic step of abating 
the nuisance . 
 
Can also make any violation of this chapter a 
mandatory court appearance by omitting it from the 
scheduled offenses table, or by designating it as 
such here. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 19 of 36 
 
for such a violation is separate from, and shall not affect, the abatement process provided for in this 
chapter. 

B. Each act of violation and every day upon which the violation occurs shall constitute a 
separate offense.  

C. In addition to prosecuting a violation of this section, the borough may initiate the 
nuisance abatement procedures set forth in HBC 8.12.040 - .130 against any person maintaining a 
nuisance or against any property upon which a nuisance is deemed to exist, whether or not the 
person is cited for a violation of this chapter.  In any such proceeding, the borough shall be entitled 
to collect a civil penalty in the same amount of the fine established by this Title and HBC 1.24.040 
for the same violation for every day the violation exists.   

D.  In addition to other remedies or procedures provided in this chapter, any public nuisance 
may be restrained, enjoined or otherwise abated by the borough in a civil action. 

Section 16.    Amendment of Section 8.16.025.  Section 8.16.025 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

8.16.025 Use of fireworks near port facilities prohibited. 

A. It is unlawful for any person other than a licensed pyrotechnician who has a 
contract with the borough and their agents and employees to discharge fireworks in, on, 
under, or within 250 feet of any of the borough’s port facilities, including, but not limited 
to, Letnikof Cove, Port Chilkoot Dock, Lutak Dock, and the boat harbor. 

B. A person violating the provisions of, or failing to comply with the prohibitions 
of, this chapter is guilty of a violation, and unless otherwise specifically provided, shall be 
punished by a fine of not more than $300.00. 

Section 17.    Amendment of Chapter 8.16.  Chapter 8.16 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended to include a new Section 8.16.040 to read as follows: 

A person violating the provisions of, or failing to comply with the prohibitions of, this chapter is 
guilty of a minor offense, and unless otherwise specifically provided, shall be punished by a fine of 
not more than $300.00. 

Section 18.    Amendment of Section 8.18.090.  Section 8.18.090 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

8.18.080 Violations and penalties. 

A. It is unlawful for any person to smoke in any area where smoking is prohibited or for 
any person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls the use of premises subject to 
this chapter to fail to comply with the provisions of this chapter. 

B. A person who smokes in an area where smoking is prohibited by the provisions of this 
chapter is subject to a fine of $100.00. 

C. A person, owner, manager, employer, or operator who controls a public place, a 
business, an enclosed area, place of employment or place of child care or other premises in 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 20 of 36 
 
violation of this chapter is subject to HBC 8.18.090(B) and a penalty in the amount of $200 for 
every violation of this chapter.  the following penalties: 

1. A fine of $100.00 for a first violation; 

2. A fine of $200.00 for a second violation within a 24-month period; and 

3. A fine of $300.00 for a third or additional violation within a 24-month period. 

D. Each and every day that a violation occurs is a separate violation.  

Section 19.    Amendment of Section 8.18.090.  Section 8.18.090 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

8.18.090 Enforcement. 

A. The borough manager or designee and the borough police department shall 
enforce must administer this chapter. A person who desires to register a complaint hereunder 
may initiate enforcement consideration with the borough manager or borough police 
department. or designee.  A person or entity believed to have violated any provision of 
this chapter may be cited pursuant to Chapter 1.24 HBC.  Any person convicted of a 
violation of this chapter is guilty of a minor offense. 

B. Before citing an operator for violation of this chapter, the borough manager or police 
department must provide the operator with a written warning for the violation. Thereafter, the 
operator is subject to the penalties set out in HBC 8.18.080. 

C. In addition to the remedies provided in this chapter, a person aggrieved by the failure of 
the owner, operator, manager or other person in control of a public place or place of employment 
to comply with the provisions of this chapter may apply for injunctive relief to enforce those 
provisions in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 20.    Amendment of Section 8.20.040.  Section 8.20.040 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

8.20.040 Fines. 

A. Each person who owns and/or is in control of property that creates, maintains, or 
permits a bear attraction nuisance on the property shall be charged with a minor offense an 
infraction and subject to a fine as set forth in HBC 1.24.0140. 

B. Each and every day during any portion of which a violation or failure to comply is 
committed, permitted, or continued, shall be treated as a separate offense, and subject the 
offender to separate charges and a fine as provided in subsection (A) of this section.  

Section 21.   Repeal of Chapter 9.01.    Chapter 9.01 of the Haines Borough Code is 
hereby repealed in its entirety. 

Section 22.    Amendment of Section 9.08.030.  Section 9.04.010 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

Comment [PM11]: This section is now 
superfluous as it sets forth the same basic 
requirements, procedures, and definitions that are 
in the Uniform Minor Offense Rules and the 
proposed new Chapter 1.24. Because basically all 
violations of the Code are to be minor offenses, not 
just those in this Title, it makes sense to put all 
enforcement procedure material in the same place 
(Chapter 1.24) 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 21 of 36 
 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

9.04.010 Consumption of alcoholic beverages in public places. 

A.  It is unlawful to possess an open bottle, can, or other receptacle containing an alcoholic 
beverage within the passenger compartment of a vehicle. 

B.  It is unlawful  or to consume alcoholic beverages  
(1)  upon the public streets or highways; or  
(2)  in any public place other than a premises covered by a liquor control license;,  
(3)  on any public school property;, or  
(4)  at any public or private school-related function. 

Section 23.    Amendment of Section 9.08.030.  Section 9.08.030 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

9.08.030 Penalty for violation of curfew ordinance. 

A person who fails to abide by the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a violation and 
subject to a fine of not more than $250.00. 

Section 24.    Repeal and reenactment Chapter 10.06.  Chapter 10.06 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby repealed and reenacted as follows: 

10.06.010 State traffic laws and regulations adopted by reference. 

A.    The borough adopts all vehicle and traffic statutes and regulations of the state of 
Alaska, as they presently exist and as they may be revised in the future, including those which 
apply to motorcycles. 

B.    Notwithstanding subsection A of this section, the borough does not adopt those state 
traffic laws that establish misdemeanor and felony offenses which are not listed on Alaska 
Supreme Court bail forfeiture schedules, including AS 28.35.030. 

C.    All citations issued under this chapter shall use the appropriate “AS” or “AAC” or CFR 
statute or regulation numbers, include a description of the offense, indicate that the offense was 
adopted by reference as a borough ordinance, and the the charging entity or plaintiff is the 
Haines Borough.  

D.   Additional traffic ordinances of the borough that are necessary to meet specific local 
requirements shall be incorporated in other chapters of this title. 

E.   When the context requires, the term “Alaska State trooper” or “peace officer” when 
used in a provision incorporated by reference under subsection (A) of this section shall be deemed 
to mean and construed as identical with chief of police, police officer, or such other local police 
officer sworn to undertake the duties prescribed in HBC 10.02.020. When the context requires, the 
term “department” appearing in the Alaska Statutes and Alaska Administrative Code provisions 
adopted by reference shall be construed to mean the Haines police department. 

10.06.020  Fine Schedule for State Traffic Offenses Adopted by Reference. 

A.  The borough adopts as its traffic fine schedule for state traffic offenses adopted by 
reference the “Traffic Bail Forfeiture Schedule” and the “Oversize Vehicle Bail Forfeiture Schedule” 
in Administrative Rules 43.1 and 43.6 of the Alaska Rules of Court and any other bail forfeiture 

Comment [PM12]: This is typically an offense 
with a scheduled fine, which would be accomplished 
by deleting the “not more than” language here.  But 
the Assembly may decide to leave this as a variable 
fine and/or a mandatory court appearance if it 
prefers. 

Comment [PM13]: PREVIOUS draft had this as 
10.02.010 but should not be repealing all of 10.02, 
rather 10.06-10.32 

Comment [PM14]: We recommend a wholesale 
incorporation of state traffic laws rather than listing 
them each individually as is currently the case in 
10.06-10.32. We could replace one of these 
chapters with special provisions the Borough has 
enacted to cover issues not addressed by a different 
state statute or which are particular to Haines (e.g., 
10.16.200, 220-300), but all the ordinances listing a 
state law or reg would be eliminated from the Code. 
The main reason not to do this is if the borough 
intends to set different fines from the state for 
offenses incorporated by reference (which cannot 
be done if incorporated by reference). The Borough 
currently uses the state fines (10.50.010) so this 
would not seem to be a concern or reason enough 
to keep the individualized listings of traffic offenses 
in code, but this is an enforcement and policy 
decision we should discuss with the Chief and the 
Assembly. HBC 10.04, 10.44, 10.26 would all need 
review and likely to be incorporated into new 
chapters, or re-organized into the same chapter 
because they contain provisions other than state 
laws and regs by incorporation. 10.34 (ATVS and 
snow machines) would likely stay as is, but be 
incorporated in the bail schedule (1.24.040) 

Comment [PM15]: Former 10.02.010(B) 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough10/HainesBorough1002.html%2310.02.020


Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 22 of 36 
 
schedules relating to vehicles adopted by the Alaska Supreme Court. In addition, the borough 
adopts all amendments of those schedules that become effective after the effective date of the 
ordinance codified in this chapter. Citations for offenses listed on those schedules may be disposed 
of as provided in AS 12.25.195 through 12.25.230, without a court appearance, upon payment of 
the amounts listed plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and 29.25.074. If a person 
charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found guilty, the penalty imposed for 
the offense may not exceed the amount listed for that offense on the schedule. Citations charging 
these offenses must meet the requirements of Minor Offense Rule 3 of the Alaska Rules of Court. 
If an offense is not listed on the fine schedule, the defendant must appear in court to answer to 
the charges. 

B. For violation of a provision of this title that does not adopt an Alaska Statute (“AS”) or 
state regulation (“AAC”) by reference and that may be satisfied by the payment of bail, the 
applicable fine for such violation is listed in HBC 1.24.040. 

10.06.030  Fine Schedule for Local Traffic Offenses 

In accordance with AS 28.05.151(a), citations for the following offenses may be disposed of as 
provided in AS 12.25.195-.230, without a court appearance, upon payment of the fine amounts 
listed below plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074. Fines must be 
paid to the court. The Rules of Minor Offense Procedure in the Alaska Rules of Court apply to all 
offenses listed below. Citations charging these offenses must meet the requirements of Minor 
Offense Rule 3. If a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found 
guilty, the penalty imposed for the offense may not exceed the fine amount for that offense 
listed below. These fines may not be judicially reduced.   If an offense is not listed on the fine 
schedule, or if the citation indicates a court appearance is required, the defendant must appear 
in court to answer to the charges.   

The fine amounts listed below are doubled for motor vehicle or traffic offenses committed in a 
highway work zone or traffic safety corridor, as those terms are defined in AS 28.90.990 and 13 
AAC 40.010(b). 

An offense listed in this schedule may not be disposed of without court appearance if the offense 
is in connection with a motor vehicle accident that results in the death of a person. 

Code Section Offense Description Fine Amount 

10.08.010 Starting parked vehicle - excessive acceleration 15 

10.08.020(A) Driving on sidewalks - vehicle 20 

10.08.020(B) Driving on sdiewalk in CBD - bicycle 20 

10.08.020(C) Failure to yield - bicycle 20 

10.08.030 U-turn where prohibited 30 

10.08.040 Projections on wheels or tracks prohibited 20 

10.08.050 Dragging objects prohibited 150 

10.08.060 Projecting load on passenger vehicles 20 

10.08.070 Carrying animals on outside of vehicles 125 

10.08.080(A) Use Of coaster, roller skates, sleds or skis on 
roadway 

25 

10.08.080(B) Use of skateboard or human powered device in 
prohibited area 

25 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 23 of 36 
 

10.08.080(C) Negligent operation of device 25 

10.34.005(B) Operating a snow machine or ATV in unauthorized 
location or after hours. 

30 

10.34.005(C) Operating a snow machine or ATV under 16 years of 
age. 

30 

10.34.005(D) Driver's license required to operate snow machine or 
ATV 

30 

10.34.005(E) Registration of snow mchine or ATV required 30 

10.34.005(F) Proof of insurance 30 

10.34.005(G) Excess passengers - 13 AAC 02.445 30 

10.34.005(H) Speed in excess of 25 mph or other violation of 
traffic regulations 

30 

10.34.005(I) Failure to signal turn 30 

10.34.005(J) ATV or snow machine on sidewalk or pedestrian way 30 

10.34.005(K) Failure to stop snow machine or ATV when directed 
to do so by a police officer 

30 

10.34.005(M) Owner responsibility for violation 30 

10.34.009(A) 
 

Snow machine or ATV not eqipped with functional 
headlight, tallight, and brake light  

30 

10.34.009(B) Failure to maintain equipment in good working order 30 

10.34.010(A) Parental responsibility for  violation 30 

10.42.010 Bicycle violations: operator to obey rules of the 
road 

30 

10.42.020 Bicycle violations: parents responsible for 
actions/violations 

30 

10.42.030 Bicycle violations: obey signs/dismount and act as 
pedestrian 

30 

10.42.040 Bicycle violations: two or more on bike made for 
one 

30 

10.42.050 Bicycle violations: attaching to other  
vehicle/hooky-bobbing 

30 

10.42.060 Bicycle violations: minimum of one hand on handle 
bars 

30 

10.42.070 Bicycle violations: unicycle/coaster/roller skates on 
roadway prohibited 

30 

10.42.080 Bicycle violations: ride on right side of roadway 30 

10.42.090 Bicycle violations: yield to vehicle upon audible 
signal 

30 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 24 of 36 
 

10.42.100 Bicycle violations: no more than two bikes abreast 
in one lane 

30 

10.42.110 Bicycle violations: must use shoulder when 
available 

30 

10.42.120 Failure to give auditable signal passing pedestrian 30 

10.42.130 Bicycle violations: turn and signal requirements 30 

10.42.140 Bicycle violations: ride in business district where 
prohibited 

30 

10.42.160 Bicycle Violations: Bike Parking Requirements 30 

10.42.170 Bicycle violations: bike not to enter limited use 
areas 

30 

10.42.180 Bicycle violations: yield to traffic 30 

10.42.190 Bicycle violations:  headlight requirements 30 

10.42.200 Bicycle violations: taillight requirements 30 

10.42.210 Bicycle violations: reflector requirements 30 

10.42.220 Bicycle violations: brake requirements 30 

10.44.010 Parking during snow removal 25 

10.44.020 Prohibited 24-hour parking – impounding vehicles 25 

10.44.030 Time limit parking 25 

10.44.050 Standing or parking close to curb 25 

10.44.060(A) Signs or markings indicating angle parking 25 

10.44.070 Obedience to angle-parking signs or markings 25 

10.44.080(B) Violating permit for loading or unloading at an 
angle to the curb 

25 

10.44.090(A) Stopping, standing, or parking prohibited – no 
signs required 

25 

10.44.090(B) Moving the vehicle of another into unlawful parking 
area 

25 

10.44.100 Parking not to obstruct traffic 25 

10.44.110 Parking in alleys 25 

10.44.120(A) Parking for certain purposes prohibited: displaying 
such vehicle for sale 

25 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 25 of 36 
 

10.44.120(B) Parking for certain purposes prohibited: washing, 
greasing, or repairing 

25 

10.44.130(B) Parking adjacent to schools 25 

10.44.140(B) Parking prohibited on narrow streets 25 

10.44.150 Standing or parking on one-way streets 25 

10.44.160(B) No stopping, standing, or parking near hazardous 
or congested places 

25 

10.44.210(A) Abandonment of vehicle 25 

10.44.210(B) Exceeding time limit for parking in designated areas 25 

10.44.220 Unauthorized parking on private property 25 

10.48.010 Pedestrians must obey regulations 25 

10.48.020 Pedestrians not to enter limited use areas 25 

10.48.030 No pedestrian may walk into path of vehicle 25 

10.48.040 Pedestrian must cross at crosswalk 25 

10.48.050 Pedestrian must yield to vehicles 25 

10.48.060 Crossing roadway where prohibited 25 

10.48.070 Diagonally cross intersection must use sidewalks 25 

10.48.080 Must walk on left side/shoulder of roadway 25 

10.48.090 Pedestrian creates hazard/interferes with traffic 25 

10.48.100 Sleep/loiter/obstruct highway 25 

10.48.110 Solicit ride/distracts driver 25 

10.48.120 Nonblind pedestrian not to use cane/dog 25 

10.48.130 Pedestrian must yield to emergency vehicle 25 

10.48.140 Pedestrian not to cross against “don’t Walk” signal 25 

10.06.040  Mandatory appearance and surcharges. 

A person who violates a provision of this title that is not on the Fine Schedule for State offenses 
adopted by reference or on the borough’s Fine Schedule for local traffic offenses is subject to a 
mandatory court appearance and, upon conviction payment of the fine imposed plus the state 
surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 26 of 36 
 

Section 25.   Repeal of Chapters 10.08, 10.10, 10.12, 10.14, 10.16, 10.18, 10.20, 
10.24, 10.26, 10.28, 10.30, 10.32, 10.34, 10.36, 10.38, 10.40.    Chapters 10.08, 
10.10, 10.12, 10.14, 10.16, 10.18, 10.20, 10.24, 10.26, 10.28, 10.30, 10.32, 10.34, 
10.36, 10.38, 10.40 of the Haines Borough Code are hereby repealed in their entirety. 

Section 26. Addition of new Chapter 10.08.  There is enacted a new Chapter 10.08 of 
the Haines Borough Code to read as follows: 

Chapter 10.08 Miscellaneous offenses 

10.08.010 Starting parked vehicle – Excessive acceleration. 
A person may not accelerate a vehicle which is stopped, standing, or parked on or along a highway, 
or which is entering a highway, so rapidly as to unnecessarily cause the tires to squeal or spin on 
the highway or on the surface on which the vehicle is standing immediately before it enters the 
highway or which causes the driver to lose control of the vehicle or causes the vehicle to fishtail.  

10.08.020 Driving on sidewalks 

A. The driver of any vehicle, except a bicycle, shall not drive within any sidewalk area except 
at a permanent or temporary driveway.  

B. No person shall ride a bicycle upon a sidewalk within the central business traffic district or 
any business district excepting police and emergency response personnel operating a bicycle during 
the discharge of their duties. 

C. Whenever any person is riding a bicycle upon a sidewalk, such person shall yield the 
right-of-way to any pedestrian and shall give audible signal before overtaking and passing such 
pedestrian. 

10.08.030 U-turns prohibited where posted. 

Where posted, a driver of a vehicle shall not turn within a street or intersection such vehicle so as 
to proceed in the opposite direction.  

10.08.040 Projections on wheels or tracks prohibited. 

No person shall drive or propel any vehicle or object upon any street or highway in the townsite 
service area which shall have any wheel, tire, or track made or equipped with spikes, cleats, lugs 
or other attachments or projections, except tire chains. Studded tires which fall within the 
exclusion of 13 AAC 04.230(b)(3) are not prohibited.  

10.08.050 Projecting loads on passenger vehicles. 

No passenger-type vehicle shall be operated on any street or highway with any load carried 
thereon extending beyond the line of the hub caps on its left side or more than eight feet in total 
width.  

10.08.060 Carrying animals on outside of vehicles. 

It is unlawful for any person to transport any living animal on the running board, fenders, hood, 
or other outside part of any vehicle, unless suitable harness, cage, or enclosure be provided and 
so attached as to protect such animal from falling or being thrown therefrom. 

10.08.080 Use of coaster, roller skates, sleds and skis. 

A. No person upon roller skates, skis, or riding in or by means of any coaster, sleds, toy 
vehicles, or similar device, shall go upon any townsite service area roadway except while crossing 
a street on a crosswalk and, when so crossing, such person shall be granted all of the rights and 
shall be subject to all the duties applicable to pedestrians. For the purposes of this section, the 
term “roadway” means that portion of a highway, street, or road designed or ordinarily used for 

Comment [PM16]: Leaving 10.04 to deal with 
impoundment; 10.42 to address biking violations; 
10.48 dealing with pedestrians.. Traffic violations 
will become 10.06 incorporating all state slaws. The 
remainder of these chapters are being eliminated 
entirely to allow the wholesale incorporation we 
discussed.  Any laws that are not state laws or are 
specific to Haines I will include n the new 10.08 
Miscellaneous Offenses. 
 
10.26.300(D). Violation – Penalty. Any person 
violating any provision of this chapter shall be guilty 
of a traffic violation and, upon conviction, shall be 
punished by being assigned a $25.00 fine for the first 
offense, and increasing in increments of $5.00 for 
each subsequent offense.  
 

Comment [PM17]: Former 10.16.200 

Comment [PM18]: Former 10.26.220, etc. All 
remaining provisions are part of former 10.26 and 
do not specifically invoke/adopt a state law.  Several 
that did in former section 1026 were omitted. 

Comment [JC19]: Chief Griffiths provided the 
following comment: Is the open bed of a pickup 
truck considered the “outside of a vehicle?”  If so, 
then it needs to be added to this list.  If not then we 
can either state so W/I the ordinance or educate 
officers that P/U beds are not included 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 27 of 36 
 
vehicular travel, exclusive of the sidewalk, berm, shoulder, or right-of-way. The berm or shoulder 
of the right-of-way may be used by persons riding bicycles or other similar human-powered 
vehicles. Skateboards, skis, coasters, sleds, toy vehicles, or similar devices are prohibited on 
sidewalks in business districts, or where otherwise regulated by signage. 

B. Prohibited Sidewalks and Areas. No person shall ride a skateboard or other similar 
human-powered vehicle as defined in subsection (A) of this section: 

1. On the sidewalks on Main Street between Third Avenue and Front Street; 

2. On the sidewalks on Second Avenue between Main Street and Dalton Street; 

3. On the sidewalks on Third Avenue between Main Street and Haines Highway; 

4. At Lookout Park; 

5. On the sidewalks on Main Street between Third Avenue and Fifth Avenue during 
school hours and one-half hour before and one-half hour after. 

C. Negligent Operation. No person shall operate one of the devices described in subsection 
(A) of this section in a negligent manner. “To operate in a negligent manner” means the operation 
of a device in such a manner as to endanger or be likely to endanger any person or property. 
Examples of operating in a negligent manner include, but are not limited to, failure to obey all 
traffic control devices, failure to yield right-of-way to pedestrians and/or vehicular traffic. 

Section 27.    Repeal of Section 10.34.050.  Section 10.34.050 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby repealed.  

Section 28.   Repeal of Sections 10.44.040, 10.44.230, 10.44.240, and 10.44.250.    
Sections 10.44.040, 10.44.230, 10.44.240, and 10.44.250 of the Haines Borough Code 
are hereby repealed in their entirety. 

Section 29.   Repeal of Chapter 10.50.    Chapter 10.50 of the Haines Borough Code is 
hereby repealed and re-enacted as follows: 

10.50.010 Citations for violations and disposition of fines. 

A. When a person is stopped or contacted by a borough peace officer for the commission of 
a motor vehicle or traffic offense that is a violation of this title, the officer shall, except when 
otherwise required by law or the immediate circumstances, issue a citation to the person in charge 
of, or operating, the motor vehicle involved. A citation issued pursuant to this subsection must 
meet the requirements of AS 12.25.200 and the Alaska Rules of Minor Offense Procedures. The 
borough shall use the Alaska Uniform Citation form, or the electronic version, if authorized. 

B. A citation for a violation of a state motor vehicle law that has been incorporated by 
reference in this Title shall reference the Alaska Statute or Alaska Administrative Code section that 
has been violated and indicate that the law or regulation has been incorporated in the borough 
Code by reference. All such citations shall list the Haines Borough as the prosecuting entity and 
shall be submitted to and processed by the Alaska court system. Fines paid to the court for that 
violation shall be remitted to the borough. 

C. A citation for a violation of a provision of this title that does not adopt by reference a 
provision of the state motor vehicle laws shall reference only the appropriate borough code 
section. Fines paid to the court for that violation shall be remitted to the borough. 

D. If the offender refuses to accept the citation the citing peace officer shall arrest the 
offender in the manner otherwise provided by law.  

Comment [PM20]: We originally adopted these 
provisions to deal with the fact that the Minor 
Offense Rules required personal service as originally 
enacted, which meant that parking tickets could not 
be left on the vehicle. The amended Rules corrected 
that deficiency, so we recommend deleting these 
provisions so that parking violations will be minor 
offenses like everything else.  This keeps the 
Borough from having to hear “appeals” of parking 
tickets, which is required under the administrative 
system in these chapters. 
 
I am not aware of any reason to leave procedural 
directives in this section, but if for any reason the 
Chief thinks that it would be helpful to state any 
procedures that might be slightly different for 
parking violations from other minor offenses, we 
can include those.  

Comment [PM21]: This is essentially 10.50.040 
updated to reflect the new rules and codification in 
1.24 and 10.06 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 28 of 36 
 
10.50.020 Lesser penalty controlling. 

In the event conflicting maximum penalties are prescribed by adopted statute or regulation, or 
by Alaska Supreme Court bail forfeiture schedules or by separate code section, the lesser 
penalty shall be the controlling maximum. 

Section 30.    Amendment of Section 11.44.030.  Section 11.44.030 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

11.44.030 Penalty. 

Any person convicted of a A violation of any of the sections of this chapter is a minor offense. 
shall be subject to punishment as provided in this code.  

Section 31.    Amendment of Section 12.12.040.  Section 12.12.040 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

12.12.040 Installation of numbers. 

A. Numbers at least four inches high, of a color which contrasts with the background on 
which they are mounted, or with a reflective surface, must be installed on each and every building 
as designated in the official building numbering index kept in the planning office. The developer 
shall place the numbers assigned by the planner on the developer’s building at a location specified 
by the fire department for maximum visibility for police, fire, and rescue crews. 

B. Any person violating a provision of this chapter shall be punished by a fine not 
exceeding $300.00. 

Section 32.    Amendment of Section 12.40.060.  Section 12.40.060 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

12.40.060 Enforcement and penalties. 

A. Enforcement. 

1. The Haines Borough manager shall have the right to issue administrative regulations 
pertaining to use of the property subject to approval of the assembly. 

2. The Haines Borough police department, other licensed peace officers, and designated 
Haines Borough employees shall have the authority to enforce this chapter and any borough 
manager regulations and may eject from the park any persons acting in violation of this chapter or 
any temporary use permit issued for use of the property. 

3. Nothing in this chapter shall prevent Haines Borough employees from performing 
their assigned duties. 

4. A violation of this chapter or a permit issued under it shall be a minor 
offense.  Enforcement of this chapter shall be in the same manner set forth in Chapter 1.24 
9.01 HBC. 

Comment [JC22]: Chief Griffiths provided the 
following comment: “. Shall be” appears to be 
artifact and needs removal or clarification.  Is there 
an applicable bail schedule (if so it needs to be 
included in the tables and referenced here) or is it a 
mandatory appearance subject to a maximum fine 
of $500? 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 29 of 36 
 

B. Penalties. Violations of this chapter are subject to the same penalties as provided in 
Chapters 1.24 and 9.01 HBC. 

Section 33.    Amendment of Section 13.04.350.  Section 13.04.350 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

13.04.350 Penalties. 

Any person violating a provision of this chapter shall, upon conviction thereof, be punished by a 
fine not exceeding in the amount set forth in HBC 1.24.040, or if no fine is there 
established, a fine of not more than $300.00. 

Section 34.    Amendment of Section 13.08.100.  Section 13.08.100 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 

STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

13.08.100 Required connections. 

A.  Wherever there is now, or may hereafter be constructed within the borough limits, an 
interceptor for the purpose of transmitting sewage to the sewage treatment plant, the owner or 
owners of the property abutting on any street, alley, or right-of-way along which the interceptor is 
constructed must connect all improvements on such property in which sewage or liquid waste is 
produced with a customer service line and an interceptor. Whenever the borough shall notify in 
writing any owner or owners of property to connect such improvements to such line and 
interceptor, it shall be the duty of such owner or owners to make application, pay the prescribed 
fees, and complete the connection with the interceptor within 30 days from the date of said 
notice. The department may, for good and sufficient reason, extend the time for completion of the 
connection.  

B.  Failure to connect any property that is required to be connected to the sewer 
system is a minor offense subject to penalty as set forth in Chapter 1.24 HBC for each 
offense.  Each day a property that is required to be connected to the sewer system is 
not connected constitutes a separate offense. 

Section 35.    Amendment of Section 13.08.270.  Section 13.08.270 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

13.08.270 Connection made without permit. 

A. It shall be unlawful and a misdemeanor for any customer or other person to connect a 
customer service line to an interceptor without first making application, paying the connection 
fee, and securing a permit therefor from the clerk. 

B. Any person who connects or attempts to connect a service line in violation of 
this section is guilty of a minor offense subject to penalty as set forth in Chapter 1.24 
HBC for each offense.  Each day a property is connected in violation of this section 
constitutes a separate offense.  A person who violates subsection (A) of this section is 
subject to a penalty not to exceed a fine of $1,000 and imprisonment for 90 days. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 30 of 36 
 

Section 36.    Amendment of Section 13.08.310.  Section 13.08.310 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

13.08.310 Penalties. 

Unless otherwise specifically provided, any person violating a provision of this chapter shall, 
upon conviction thereof, be punished by a fine not exceeding in the amount set forth in HBC 
1.24.040, or if no fine is there established, a fine of not more than $300.00. 

Section 37.    Amendment of Section 14.16.170.  Section 14.16.170 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

14.16.170 Responsibility to properly locate on leased premises. 

A. It shall be the responsibility of the lessee to properly locate improvements on the 
leased land. 

B. It is unlawful for a lessee to encroach on other lands of the borough or on lands owned 
or leased by another. 

C. A violation of subsection (B) of this section is a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of 
up to $1,000 and up to 90 days imprisonment. 

Section 38.    Amendment of Section 14.34.020.  Section 14.34.020 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby repealed. 

Section 39.    Amendment of Section 14.34.030.  Section 14.34.030 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

14.34.030 Violations. 

A.  The following acts are minor offenses under this chapter: 

1.  Cutting for firewood any timber that is not already dead or downed. 

 2.  Cutting firewood for other than personal use. 

3.  Using mechanical means other than chainsaws and vehicles to cut 
firewood. 

B.  The taking of any wood that is green and standing, no matter what it is used for, is 
considered a trespass. The penalty for taking green standing timber is $1,000 plus triple 
stumpage, which may be collected in a civil action whether or not the violator is cited 
for a violation of this chapter. 

Section 40.    Amendment of Section 15.04.020.  Section 15.04.020 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 

Comment [PM23]: Recommend change to MO 
by deleting this subsection, which means default 
rule will apply. 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 31 of 36 
 

STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

15.04.020 Enforcement. 

The fire department and its members shall enforce the provisions of the fire code and all 
provisions of this title.  The police department, borough manager, or his designee may 
cite an offender for a violation of any provision of this tile. , and may be assisted therein 
by the chief of police. 

Section 41.    Amendment of Section 15.08.060.  Section 15.08.060 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

15.08.060 Smoking restricted. 

In addition to the prohibitions set forth in Chapter 8.18, There shall be no smoking in 
beds of hotels, motels, apartments or rooming houses, in dry-cleaning plants, or in areas where 
combustible materials are stored or handled is prohibited. 

Section 42.    Amendment of Section 15.20.020.  Section 15.20.020 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

15.20.020 Violation – Penalty. 

A. Violation of any of the provisions of this title shall, upon conviction, be punishable as a 
minor offense violation as provided in Chapter 1.24 and fined in the amount set forth in 
section 1.24.040, or if no fine is there established, in an amount to be determined by the 
court not to exceed $500 for each offense.  HBC 1.24.010. In addition, a person who violates 
a provision of this title may shall be subject to injunctive relief. 

B. Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense for the purposes of this title. 

Section 43.    Amendment of Section 16.28.030(A).  Section 16.28.030(A) of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

16.28.030 Penalties for violations. 

A. Any person violating any of the provisions of this title will be fined in the amount set 
forth in section 1.24.040, or if no fine is there established, in an amount to be 
determined by the court not to exceed $500 for each offense. according to the fees set 
out in the most current assembly approved fee schedule.  

Section 44.    Amendment of Section 16.28.040.  Section 16.28.040 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

16.28.040 Citation. 

Comment [PM24]: 15.20.020 Makes all title 15 
offenses violations/MOs 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 32 of 36 
 
A person who commits a violation of this title shall be cited in the manner set forth in 
Chapter 1.24 HBC. receive a citation unless otherwise required by law or the circumstances.  

Section 45.   Repeal of Sections 16.28.050 and 16.28.060.    Sections 16.28.050 and 
16.28.060 of the Haines Borough Code are hereby repealed in their entirety. 

Section 46.    Amendment of Section 16.32.045.  Section 16.32.045 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

16.32.045 Parking. 

Long-term parking of vehicles, vessels, or trailers is prohibited outside of the designated long-
term parking area at the Letnikof Cove Small Boat Harbor. “Long-term” is defined as 24 or more 
continuous hours. Areas shall be posted or otherwise marked by an appropriate sign or by 
combinations of placed and painted signs indicating prohibited and authorized parking areas. 
Enforcement of this section shall be in the same manner as set forth in Chapter 16.28 HBC.  

Section 47.    Amendment of Section 18.30.070.  Section 18.30.070 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

18.30.070 Fees and penalties. 

A. The fees for various permits are as follows: 

Animal husbandry, not including 
conditional use permits for 
these uses $25.00 

Sign permit $25.00 

Land use permit $50.00 

Lot line vacation/adjustment $50.00 

Short plat $75.00 

Special conditions permit $150.00 

Conditional use/variance permit $150.00 

Rezoning/subdivision permit $200.00 

B. Penalties Late fees 

1. After-the-fact fee in addition to the normal associated permit fee 
for beginning work without a permit or construction declaration 

$250.00 
or 3% of 
the 
project 
value to a 
maximum 
of $2,500 

Comment [PM25]: These are unnecessary as a 
result of the reference to 1.24 in the previous new 
section 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 33 of 36 
 

2. Penalties for violations of this title are as set forth in HBC 
18.30.080, 18.30.090, and 1.24. Penalty for violation of any 
section of this title (except beginning work without a permit – see 
after-the-fact fee above) 

$100.00 

3. The procedure for assessing penalties shall be as follows: After-the-fact fees for 
beginning work without a permit or construction declaration shall be assessed when 
the violator applies for the permit or submits the declaration. upon discovery 
of the violation. In all other violations of this title, borough staff shall notify the 
violator by certified letter. The letter shall state the nature of the violation and 
inform the violator that they will have 10 business days to conform to the code. If 
the violation is not corrected within 10 business days, a penalty of $100.00 shall be 
assessed. 

4. If a fee or penalty is not paid within 30 days, interest of one and one-half 
percent per month (18 percent annually) will accrue. If the penalty is not paid 
within one year, the sum will be added to the violator’s property tax. 

C. An applicant having been processed under a permit listed above, who is subsequently 
required to obtain encounters the requirement of another type of permit for the same action 
or project on the same property type, shall be charged the permit fee which is the highest, 
including any permit fees paid with the original application (i.e., an applicant who pays $50.00 for 
a land use permit who then is required to apply for a variance shall be charged only $150.00 for 
the entire process). 

D. Multiple buildings or improvements and/or multiple variance requests as part of a single 
application for the same site will be considered as one permit respectively and not subject to 
successive permit fees. 

E. The planning commission may recommend to the assembly that charges and fees be 
stayed. The assembly may stay the fees under subsection (A) of this section if it is in the best 
interest of the municipality to do so and special circumstances warrant. The action must be made 
in writing and made part of the borough assembly’s public record. 

Section 48.    Amendment of Section 18.30.080.  Section 18.30.080 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
 STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

18.30.080 Compliance. 

Any use may be ordered to cease by the manager or his designee if in conflict with the 
provisions of this title, or if the terms and conditions of any rezoning, or commission approval, 
or manager approval are violated. The borough assembly may establish by resolution and 
enforcement priority for violations of this title. 

A. Violation Complaint. Any person may bring to the attention of the manager suspected 
violations of this title. The complaint must be in writing and must include the full name of the 
person making the complaint. 

B. Administrative Enforcement Order. After a violation has been discovered, 
investigated and verified, the manager may begin administrative enforcement 
proceedings, and shall begin enforcement proceedings if a permit or other valuable 
license is to be revoked.  



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 34 of 36 
 

1.  Administrative enforcement order.  To initiate an administrative 
enforcement action, the manager shall notify, by written finding, the person responsible for 
the violation and the property owner by personal notice, certified mail or notice posted on the 
site of the violation. The finding shall specify the violation(s) and order abatement and may also 
(but is not required to) specify the range of fines or penalties to be imposed, and shall include 
notice indicating if a permit or variance can be revoked as a result of the violation 
pursuant to HBC 18.30.090(B). The finding shall direct the person to cease the violation, or 
appeal the finding within two days after receipt or posting of the notice, as the case may be. All 
violation notices will be reported by the manager to the commission at its next regular meeting 
and the manager shall keep a copy of the violation notice in the permanent record. 

2.  C. Planning Commission Review. Upon application of the developer, the 
commission shall review the enforcement order at its next regular meeting. The review shall be 
limited to the presence of the violations stated in the enforcement order, and in such review, the 
burden of proof shall be upon the developer to prove that the violations do not exist. The 
commission, by majority motion, may modify or rescind the enforcement order, and may 
impose any penalty authorized by this Title, including suspension or revocation or any 
permit, variance, or other authorization. 

C.  Minor offense.  In addition to any administrative enforcement proceedings, it 
is a minor offense for any person to fail to obtain a required permit, or to violate any 
conditions attached to a permit issued under this Title.  The manager may at any time 
cause a citation to be issued to a person responsible for a violation of this title and the 
owner of the property upon which the violation occurs.  All minor offenses are subject 
to the provisions of HBC Chapter 1.24. 

Section 49.    Amendment of Section 18.30.090.  Section 18.30.090 of the Haines Borough 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

18.30.090 Violations, penalties and remedies. 

A. Generally. All remedies hereunder are cumulative and are in addition to those existing 
at law or equity. Each act in violation of this title and every day a violation of this title exists 
may be considered to constitute a separate violation. 

B. Suspension or Revocation.  

1.  The planning commission may suspend or revoke a permit for any violation of 
this Title, or whenever the approval for a permit is granted is in error or is on the basis of 
incorrect information supplied by the applicant, or in if the applicant commits a violation of 
any ordinance or regulation or any provision of this code. Before taking any action to revoke or 
suspend a permit or variance, the planning commission shall give the permit owner and/or the 
owner of the property 20 not less than 10 days’ written notice by certified U.S. mail in advance 
of the date of hearing, of the subject of the hearing, and of the date, time, and place of the 
hearing. This notice is complete upon mailing.  

2.  The planning commission shall thereafter hold the hearing at the time and place set 
forth in the notice. At the hearing, the permittee may present evidence on the permittee’s behalf 
and may cross-examine witnesses. The burden of proof is on the planning commission. After the 
hearing, the planning commission shall make written findings of fact from the evidence supporting 
the conclusion that the permittee has failed to comply with the conditions of the permit or 
variance (in cases were the permit or variance is revoked or suspended), or the permittee has not 
failed to comply with the conditions of the permit or variance (in cases were the permit or 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 35 of 36 
 
variance is not revoked or suspended). The findings shall be embodied in a formal resolution that 
the planning commission shall retain permanently.  

3. After the variance or permit has been revoked or suspended, the permittee shall 
thereafter immediately discontinue the use of the property for which the permit or variance had 
originally been granted. If, after the a permit or variance has been revoked or suspended, the 
permittee does not immediately discontinue the use of the property for which the permit or 
variance had originally been granted, a civil penalty not to exceed $500300.00 for each day of 
continuing violation may be imposed. The manager, on behalf of the borough, or the planning 
commission, may also apply to the superior court for an injunction to restrain the former 
permittee from using the land for the purposes previously authorized in the permit or variance. 

C. Civil Remedies. Upon violation of any of the provisions of this title, or any of the 
conditions placed upon any permit issued pursuant hereto, the manager, on behalf of the 
borough or any aggrieved citizen, may institute or cause to be instituted any appropriate civil 
action to prevent, enjoin, abate, stop, remove or punish such violation and to obtain monetary 
damages suffered by such party. In addition to injunctive and compensatory relief, each 
violation shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $500 for each violation or each day 
a violation exists.1,000. An action to enjoin a violation of this title may be brought 
notwithstanding the availability of any other remedy. Upon application for injunctive relief and 
the finding of an existing or threatened violation, the court shall grant injunctive relief to 
restrain the violation. Each person violating the terms of this title shall be required to reimburse 
the municipality for all reasonable administrative and legal costs commensurate with the 
activity relating incurred to enforce this Title or to correct to the violation. 

D. Criminal Minor Offense Remedies. Every act where Failing to obtain a required 
permit or variance, the maintenance of any condition prohibited by this title, or by and a 
violation of any condition placed upon any permit issued pursuant hereto, is unlawful, and the 
willful commission of such act or maintenance of such condition is a misdemeanor. Every person 
convicted of a who commits a violation of any provision of this title or of any condition placed 
upon any permit issued pursuant hereto shall be punished by a fine as set forth in HBC 
1.24.040, or if no fine is there established, of not more than $5001,000 for each offense. 
Each unlawful act or condition, and every day upon which such shall occur after date of 
notification, shall constitute a separate violation of this section.  A minor offense cannot 
result in the loss of a valuable license or permit under this title, but shall be subject to 
the penalties and procedures set forth in Chapter 1.24 HBC. 

E. Parties. A proper party for any enforcement action under subsection (B) of this section 
shall include, but shall not be limited to, the owner of the site or any part thereof; any lessee or 
occupant of the site or any part thereof; the developer, the developer’s agents, contractors and 
subcontractors, and employees who participate in, assist, commit, or maintain a violation. 

F. Remedies Applicable to Subdivision Regulations. It is unlawful for any owner, lessee or 
agent to partition, sell, transfer, lease or offer or agree to partition, sell, lease or transfer any 
land which results in a subdivision as defined by this title before a final plat of the subdivision 
has been duly approved and recorded in accordance with the provisions of this chapter and state 
law. No person may file or record a subdivision plat in any public office unless the plat bears the 
signatures of the chair of the planning commission and the mayor. The borough may enjoin any 
partition, lease, transfer or sale of land that would result in an unlawful subdivision. Following an 
unlawful partition, transfer, lease or sale, the borough may enjoin any further transfer or sale of 
all unlawfully subdivided parcels until such time as the parcels are duly subdivided or returned 
to common ownership. 
 
ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS ____ 
DAY OF __________, 2015. 
 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 15-06-413 

Page 36 of 36 
 
 
        ________________________ 
ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
__________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, Borough Clerk 
 
 
Date Introduced:  06/09/15      
Date of First Public Hearing: 08/25/15  
Date of Second Public Hearing:  09/08/15   
 



MINOR OFFENSES  
HB Ordinance 15-06-413 



Purpose of Minor Offense 
 and Fine Schedule Ordinance 
• Bring Haines into Compliance with New Court System Rules 

• 2013 Alaska Rules of Minor Offense Procedure (RMOP) 
• A uniform system for low level infractions 

• Minor Offenses 
• Low level infractions 
• Don’t rise to the level of a misdemeanor 

• E.g.  Leash law violations, traffic tickets 

• Can be contested just like traffic tickets by going to court.  This 
ensures that individual rights are fully protected. 



WHAT IS RECOMMENDED FOR CHANGE? 

• Administrative enforcement issues become minor offenses 
• Example – Sign violations, nuisance violations such as excessive trash 

• Minor Offenses are either: 
• Paid without being contested or 
• Heard by the magistrate 

• All traffic violations are removed from Borough Code 
• They are incorporated by reference to state law 
• Citations still read that a Borough law has been violated 

 
 
 

 



GOAL OF THE MINOR INFRACTIONS LAW 

• Increase transparency and make it clear to everyone what items are listed 
as offenses within code 

• “Facilitate enforcement through the court system of laws that are already 
on the books, not to outlaw activities that are currently legal.  The 
ordinance is not intended to change the substance of borough code.” From 
Borough Attorney’s letter   

• Eliminate ordinances that are redundant or unnecessary 
• Align some penalties with state law 
• Change some offenses that are currently misdemeanors to minor offenses 

• Example – Failure to obtain a business license is is currently a misdemeanor 

 



EXAMPLE – Mooring in Harbor Without Payment 
HBC Code 16.16.190 

• Currently 
• 1st Violation $  50 
• 2nd Violation $100 
• 3rd Violation $150 

 
• Harbormaster advises owner 
• No compliance – Letter written with 

invoice. 
• Finance follows up with added 

penalties and interest 
• Possible Small Claims Court 

• Proposed 
• Each Violation $100 

 
 

• Harbormaster advises owner 
• No compliance – Ticket written 

• Ticket has court date owner can pay it 
or protest to the magistrate 

• Owner could protest magistrate's 
ruling to superior court, etc. 

 



SOME CONCERNS THAT MAY NEED TO BE ADDRESSED 

• Addressing additional redundant or “unnecessary” laws 
• Recommend identifying items of concerns and tasking the GASC to review 

each law, solicit public input, and make a recommendation to the Assembly 

• Training or certification of those writing citations 
• Can be addressed within code or through policy 



1.24.040 Minor Offense Fine Schedule. 
In accordance with AS 29.25.070(a), citations for the following offenses may be disposed of as 
provided in AS 12.25.195-.230, without a court appearance, upon payment of the fine amounts listed 
below, plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074.  Fines must be paid to 
the court.  The Alaska Court System’s Rules of Minor Offense Procedures apply to all offenses listed 
below. If a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found guilty, the penalty 
imposed for the offense may not exceed the fine schedule amount listed below for that offense.  
Citations charging these offenses must meet the requirements of the Rules of Minor Offense 
Procedure. The fines set forth below may not be judicially reduced. 

 
Code Section Offense Description Fine Amount Current Penalty 

3.80.035(D) Failure of operator to collect 
and/or remit sales tax for 
rental space 

300 Unclassified Misdemeanor 
 HBC 3.80.260 

Up to $10,000 fine and one 
year in jail 

3.80.080 Failure to identify and add 
amount of sales tax to 
taxable transaction (except 
as exempted by 3.80.040) 

300 Unclassified Misdemeanor 
HBC 3.80.260 

Up to $10,000 fine and one 
year in jail 

3.80.090(A) Failure to timely file sales 
tax returns 

300 Unclassified Misdemeanor 
HBC 3.80.260 

Up to $10,000 fine and one 
year in jail 

3.80.090(B) Failure to remit taxes with 
returns 

300 Unclassified Misdemeanor 
HBC 3.80.260  

Up to $10,000 fine and one 
year in jail 

3.80.170 
and 5.02.010 

Failure to obtain business 
license 

300 Classified Misdemeanor 
HBC 3.80.260 & 5.02.020 

(up to 30 days jail and/or a 
$1,000 fine) 

3.80.190(A) Failure to file final sales tax 
return 

300 Unclassified Misdemeanor 
HBC 3.80.260 

5.04.030(C) Failure to obtain required 
permit (general) 

500 HBC 5.04.140(A) - Not 
exceeding $300 each day 

plus required state 
surcharge (AS 12.55.039) 

5.04.080(E)(2) Sign violation 100  HBC 1.24 & 5.04.150 - Up 
to $300 each day plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039) 
5.04.140(A) commercial tour/ enterprise 

operating w/o permit  or 
failure to follow permit 
condition 

500 HBC 1.24 - Not exceeding 
$300 each day plus 

required state surcharge 
(AS 12.55.039) 

5.08.010(A) Permit required for 
solicitation on public 
property 

300 HBC 1.24 - Not exceeding 
$300 plus required state 

surcharge (AS 12.55.039) 
5.08.020 Solicitation on private 

property without invitation 
prohibited 

300 HBC 1.24 - Not exceeding 
$300 plus required state 

surcharge (AS 12.55.039) 



5.08.030(A) Permit required for 
transient/ itinerant 
merchants/ vendors 

300 HBC 5.04.140(A) - Not 
exceeding $300 plus 

required state surcharge 
(AS 12.55.039) 

5.08.040 Permit required for circus, 
carnival, fair/other 
concessions 

300 HBC 5.04.140(A) - Not 
exceeding $300 plus 

required state surcharge 
(AS 12.55.039) 

5.08.050(A) Sale/solicitation of 
commercial magazines on 
public sidewalks/ streets 
prohibited 

300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.12.010(A) License required to 
manufacture/ sell any 
alcoholic beverage 

500 Class A Misdemeanor – AS 
4.16.200 - Up to $10,000 
fine and one year in jail 

5.12.020 Closing hours for licensed 
alcoholic beverage premises 
between 5:00 a.m. and 8 
a.m.  

500 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.12.040 Accessibility for inspection 
of licensed premises within 
the townsite service area 

300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.16.010(A) All operators of gaming 
activities prohibited from 
conducting gaming activities 

300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.18.015 Commercial tour permit 
required 

500 HBC 5.04.140(A) - Not 
exceeding $300 plus 

required state surcharge 
(AS 12.55.039) 

5.20.030 Failure to display 
commercial passenger 
vehicle / tour vehicle permit  

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.20.040(A)(1) Failure to display license 100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.20.040(A)(2) Failure to display rates 100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.20.040(A)(3) Failure to display contact 
information of City Borough 
Clerk 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.20.040(B) Taxicab soliciting passenger 
or otherwise blocking traffic 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.20.050 Soliciting persons along the 
roadway 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.22.010(C) Use of commercial parking 
vehicle areas when not 
engaged in commercial tour 
activity  

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 



5.22.040(C) Failure to display parking 
permit 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.22.040(D) Unreasonable interference 
with efficient operations 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.22.040(E) Leaving commercial vehicle 
unattended 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.22.040(F) Improper signage 100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.22.040(H) Unauthorized use of parking 
area 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

5.22.040(J) Unauthorized display of 
sales material 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

6.08.010(A) Dog license required Altered dog: 
$50 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.010(A) Dog license required Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.010(D) Failure to display tag Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.010(D) Failure to display tag Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.010(F) Failure to obtain kennel 
permit 

Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.010(F) Failure to obtain kennel 
permit 

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.010(H) Using dog license receipt or 
license tag issued for 
another dog 

Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.010(H) Using dog license receipt or 
license tag issued for 
another dog 

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 



6.08.020(A) At-large dog Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.020(A) At-large dog Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.020(B) Barking, howling, or other 
noises  

Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.020(B) Barking, howling, or other 
noises  

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.020(C) Run, chase, jump at moving 
vehicles 

Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.020(C) Run, chase, jump at moving 
vehicles 

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.020(D) Snap, jump, injure another 
person  

Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.020(D) Snap, jump, injure another 
person  

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.020(E) Chase, harass deer or 
moose  

Altered dog: 
$50  

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $100 

6.08.020(E) Chase, harass deer or 
moose  

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

6.08.020(G) Female dog in season not 
confined  

Unaltered 
dog: $150 

HBC 6.08.130 
1st violation - $75 

2nd violation - $150 
3rd violation - $300 

8.08.020(A) Littering in any place other 
than in an appropriate refuse 
container 

50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

HBC 10.08.020 - $100 

8.08.020(B) Littering upon a public place  50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

HBC 10.08.020 - $100 
8.08.020(C) Sweeping or depositing litter 50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 



into a public place from 
private property 

(HBC 1.24) 
HBC 10.08.020 - $100 

8.08.020(D) Littering from vehicle 100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

HBC 10.08.020 - $100 
8.08.020(E) Depositing any litter on 

private property 
50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 

(HBC 1.24) 
HBC 10.08.020 - $100 

8.08.020(F) Failure to maintain private 
property in a litter-free 
condition 

50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.020(G) Posting any handbill without 
permit under HBC Title 18 

50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.020(H) Littering in a body of water 50 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.020(I) Depositing litter generated in 
a refuse container belonging 
to another 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.020(J) Burning without a permit and 
police department 
notification or in violation of 
conditions 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.020(K) Depositing offensive, 
noxious, or otherwise 
dangerous litter 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.040(A)(1) Refuse container: strong, 
watertight, not easily 
corrodible, and rodent proof 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.040(A)(2) Refuse container standards: 
fitted with a tight cover 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.040(A)(3) Refuse container standards: 
kept tightly covered at all 
times 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.08.040(B) Refuse containers: emptied 
and properly disposed of on 
a regular basis 

100 HBC 8.08.050 - Up to $300 
(HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(A) Burying a person outside  
an established cemetery 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(B) Annoy, injure or endanger 
the public 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(C) Offending public decency 300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(D) Interfere with a street, 
highway, lake or stream 

100 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(E) Making loud or 
unreasonable noise 

100 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(F) Operating device that 
causes preventable electric 
interference 

100 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 



8.12.020(G) Allowing animal access to 
an unoccupied building 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(H) Unsafe condition due to 
disrepair of building 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(I) Reducing surrounding value 
of properties by maintaining 
building in state of disrepair 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(J) Accumulation of stagnant 
water or discharge of 
wastewater  

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(K) Failure to take reasonable 
and precautionary measures 
to restrict access to hazards 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(L) Causing emission of noxious 
fumes 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(M) Exposure or distribution of 
materials offending the 
public decency 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(N) Obstruction of traffic 300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(O) Public exposure of a person 
having a contagious disease 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.020(P) Noxious cellar, pool, sewer, 
water closet, or private 
drain  

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.12.030 Hazardous building or public 
nuisance 

300 HBC 8.12.140(A) - Up to 
$300 (HBC 1.24) 

8.16.015 Use of fireworks prohibited 100 HBC 8.16.025 - Up to $300 

8.16.020 Sale prohibited of fireworks 300 HBC 8.16.025 - Up to $300 

8.16.025 Use of fireworks near port 
facilities prohibited 

300 HBC 8.16.025 - Up to $300 

8.16.030 Conducting fireworks display 
without permission of chief 
of police 

300 HBC 8.16.025 - Up to $300 

8.18.020(A) Smoking in an enclosed 
public area 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B) - $100 

8.18.020(B) Smoking in an enclosed 
public area 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B) - $100 

8.18.020(C) Smoking inside an enclosed 
area within a place of 
employment 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B) - $100 

8.18.020(D) Smoking inside an enclosed 
area within a private club 
licensed to sell alcoholic 
beverages 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B) - $100 

8.18.030 Smoking within 
unreasonable distance 
outside an enclosed area 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B,D) –  
$100 each day 



where smoking is prohibited 

8.18.040(A) Smoking within 50 feet of 
entrance to hospital or 
medical clinic 

100  HBC 8.18.080(B,D) –  
$100 each day 

8.18.040(B) Smoking within 20 feet of 
entrance to enclosed school 
area 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B,D) –  
$100 each day 

8.18.040(C) Smoking within 5 feet of 
licensed premises 

100 HBC 8.18.080(B,D) –  
$100 each day 

8.18.040(D) Smoking in an outdoor arena 100 HBC 8.18.080(B,D) –  
$100 each day 

8.18.070(A) Failure to post signs 
prohibiting smoking 

200 HBC 8.18.080(C,D) –  
1st violation - $100 
2nd violation - $200 
3rd violation - $300 

8.18.070(B) Failure to remove ashtrays 200 HBC 8.18.080(C,D) –  
1st violation - $100 
2nd violation - $200 
3rd violation - $300 

8.18.070(C) Failure to provide smoke-
free workplace 

200 HBC 8.18.080(C,D) –  
1st violation - $100 
2nd violation - $200 
3rd violation - $300 

8.18.070(D) Failure to prevent smoking 
at a smoke-free 
establishment 

200 HBC 8.18.080(C,D) –  
1st violation - $100 
2nd violation - $200 
3rd violation - $300 

8.18.080(B) Smoking where prohibited 100 HBC 8.18.080(B) - $100 

8.18.080(C) Permitting smoking in public 
place where prohibited 

200 HBC 8.18.080(C,D) –  
1st violation - $100 
2nd violation - $200 
3rd violation - $300 

8.20.020 Creating or permitting a bear 
attraction nuisance 

100 HBC 1.24 & 8.20.040 –  
Up to $300 each day  

9.04.010(A) Open container of alcoholic 
beverages within vehicle 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.04.010(B)(1) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage upon street or 
highway 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.04.010(B)(2) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage in public 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.04.010(B)(3) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage on school property 

200 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.04.010(B)(4) Consuming alcoholic 
beverage at school function 

200 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.08.010 Curfew For Minors 250 HBC 9.08.030 – Not more 
than $250 

9.08.020 Parental responsibility for 250 HBC 9.08.030 – Not more 



curfew violation than $250 

9.24.010(A) Discharging pistol or firearm  300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.24.010(C) Hunting in prohibited area 300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.24.020(A) Obstructing highways and 
other public passages 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.24.020(B)(1) Failure to obey order to 
move to prevent obstruction 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.24.020(B)(2) Failure to obey order to 
move to maintain public 
safety 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

9.24.030 Disrupting meetings and 
processions 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

12.08.160(B) Utility permit required 300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

12.10.010 Construction work on 
driveway in a right of way 
without a permit 

300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

12.12.040(A) Failure to install street 
numbers in compliance with 
code 

100 HBC 12.12.040(B) – Not 
exceeding $300 

12.16.010 Street and sidewalk 
obstructions prohibited 

50 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

12.16.030(A) Use of streets for private 
purposes 

50 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

12.40.030 Prohibited activity or 
construction in Picture Park 
restricted area 

100 HBC 12.40.060(B) - 
subject to the same 

penalties as provided in 
Chapters 1.24 and 9.01 – 

up to $300 plus state 
surcharge when applicable 
(AS 12.55.039) and each & 

every day a separate 
offense 

12.50.020 Motorized vehicle use in 
Chilkat River beaches 
recreational zone 

100 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

13.04.310(A) Unlawful opening of fire 
hydrant 

300 HBC 13.04.350 – not 
exceeding $300 

13.08.100(A) Failure to connect to sewer 
system after notice 

300 HBC 13.08.310 – not 
exceeding $300 

14.34.030(A)(1) Cutting timber that is not 
already dead or downed 

300 Green & standing: HBC 
14.34.030 - $1,000 plus 

triple stumpage 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough09/HainesBorough0901.html%239.01


Dead & standing: HBC 1.24 
- Up to $300 plus state 

surcharge when applicable 
(AS 12.55.039)  

14.34.030(A)(2) Cutting firewood for other 
than personal use 

300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

14.34.030(A)(3) Using unlawful mechanical 
means to cut firewood 

300 HBC 1.24 - Up to $300 
plus state surcharge when 
applicable (AS 12.55.039) 

15.08.040 Following fire apparatus or 
otherwise interfering with 
fire control operations 

100 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.08.060 Smoking where prohibted for 
safety reasons 

100 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.12.020(B) Failure to file required report 
by a person handling 
hazardous substances 

300 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.12.020(D) Failure to file required report 
by a person handling 
consumer quantities of 
hazardous material or 
chemical 

300 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.12.070(A) Failure to file required 
transhipment facility report 

300 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.12.070(C) Failure to display marking or 
warnings  with respect to 
transshipment facility 

100 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24


1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.12.070(D)(3) Failure to notify fire 
department of time and 
quantity of a shipment of 
extremely hazardous 
substance 

300 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.12.090(A) Failure to obtain certificate of 
compliance 

300 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

15.16.020 Crash post does not meet 
specifications 

100 HBC 15.20.020 - subject to 
the same penalties as 
provided in Chapters 

1.24.010 – up to $300 plus 
state surcharge when 

applicable (AS 12.55.039), 
subject to injunctive relief, 

and each & every day a 
separate offense 

16.12.020 Obstruction of dock area by 
vehicle, cart, coneyance, or 
other transportation system 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.12.030 Vessel in excess of 65 feet 
using gridiron 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough01/HainesBorough0124.html%231.24


privileges 
Each day is a separate 

offense 
16.16.135 Launching or recovering 

vessel without paying fee or 
obtaining annual ramp 
launch sticker 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule - $60 

per violation 

16.16.150 Unapproved vessel mooring 
in harbor 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.16.170 Non-compliant electrical 
connection 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.16.190 Mooring without payment 100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.16.200(A) Dead storage prohibited 100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 



3rd violation - $75 
4th violation – lose harbor 

use privileges 
Each day is a separate 

offense 
16.16.210 Use of harbor crane without 

permit of paying fee 
100 $50 per violation 

16.20.040 Snow must be removed from 
dock, float, or finger 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.005(D) Wood fires not permitted in 
port and harbor facilities 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.005(E) Unlawful electrical system 
or connection 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(A) Operating vessel in excess 
of three MPH within borough 
port and harbor facilities 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 



3rd violation - $75 
4th violation – lose harbor 

use privileges 
Each day is a separate 

offense 
16.28.010(B) Operating vessel in a 

negligent manner 
300 Current Assembly-Adopted 

Harbor Fee Schedule – 
1st violation - $50 

2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(C) Operating vessel in a 
negligent manner likely to 
endanger the safety of 
person or property 

500 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(D) Unlawful depositing of 
refuse or prohibited 
materials 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(E) To fail to register with the 
harbormaster 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 



use privileges 
Each day is a separate 

offense 
16.28.010(F) Leaving vessel or floating 

structure moored 
unattended while fire is 
burning 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(G) Starting or allowing any fire 
on a float or dock 

500 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(I) Conducting unlawful 
business within the port and 
harbor facilities 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule - $50 

per violation 
16.28.010(J) Living aboard a vessel 

moored in the harbor while 
prohibited or allowing 
animal to run at large 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(K) Leaving cargo or other 
material on docks or other 
public place 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 



3rd violation - $75 
4th violation – lose harbor 

use privileges 
Each day is a separate 

offense 
16.28.010(L) To fail to clean up after an 

animals 
50 Current Assembly-Adopted 

Harbor Fee Schedule – 
1st violation - $50 

2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(M) Tapping, disconnecting, 
interfering with, or 
tampering with any water or 
electrical connection 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(N) Interfering with any wharf 
or any other harbor facility 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(O) Writing or posting printed 
matter upon any bulletin 
board without permission of 
the harbormaster 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 



4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(P) Erecting or maintaining any 
advertising or other printed 
matter without approval 
from the harbormaster 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(Q) To disregard or tamper with 
any notice relating to the 
use of mooring areas or 
other uses of port and 
harbor facilities 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.28.010(R) To moor or connect to 
Letnikof Cove facility 
without paying fees 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

16.32.040(B) Use of small boat harbor 
without paying required fees 

100 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 



use privileges 
Each day is a separate 

offense 
16.32.045 Long-term parking outside 

designated area at Letnikof 
Cove Harbor 

50 Current Assembly-Adopted 
Harbor Fee Schedule – 

1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $100 
3rd violation - $150 

 
HBC 16.28.020, 030 –  

1st violation - $25 
2nd violation - $50 
3rd violation - $75 

4th violation – lose harbor 
use privileges 

Each day is a separate 
offense 

18.40.010 Land use permit required 250 Beginning Work with No 
Permit – HBC 
18.30.070(B)(1) - $250.00 
or 3% of the project value 
to a maximum of $2,500 
Working with 
Revoked/Suspended 
Permit - HBC 18.30.090(B) 
– up to $300; HBC 
18.30.090(C,D) – Civil or 
Criminal Remedies up to 
$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - Each 
act & every day a separate 
violation 

18.40.040(A) Temporary use permit 
required 

250 Beginning Work with No 
Permit – HBC 
18.30.070(B)(1) - $250.00 
or 3% of the project value 
to a maximum of $2,500 
Working with 
Revoked/Suspended 
Permit - HBC 18.30.090(B) 
– up to $300; HBC 
18.30.090(C,D) – Civil or 
Criminal Remedies up to 
$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - Each 

act & every day a separate 
violation 

18.40.040(B) Exceeding scope of 
temporary permit 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 



HBC 18.30.090(A) - 
Each act & every day a 

separate violation 
18.50.020 Conditional use permit 

required 
250 Beginning Work with No 

Permit – HBC 
18.30.070(B)(1) - $250.00 
or 3% of the project value 
to a maximum of $2,500 
Working with 
Revoked/Suspended 
Permit - HBC 18.30.090(B) 
– up to $300; HBC 
18.30.090(C,D) – Civil or 
Criminal Remedies up to 
$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - Each 

act & every day a separate 
violation 

18.70.030(A) Violating restrictions in 
townsite planning/zoning 
district 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(B) Violating restrictions in Mud 
Bay planning/zoning district 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(B)(3)(g) Setback violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(B)(3)(h) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in RRZ 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 



18.70.030(B)(4)(f) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in Cannery Zone 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C) Violating restrictions in 
Lutak Inlet planning/zoning 
district 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C)(3)(f) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in RRZ 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C)(3)(h) Setback violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C)(3)(i) Building height violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C)(3)(j) Sign violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C)(3)(k) Use of RV as permanent 
dwelling or excessive RV's 
on property 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 



or Criminal Remedies up to 
$1,000 

HBC 18.30.090(A) - 
Each act & every day a 

separate violation 
18.70.030(C)(3)(l) Noise violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 

$100 
HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(C)(4)(f) Maintaining a prohibited use 
in Riparian Zone 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.70.030(D) Violating restrictions in 
general use planning/zoning 
district 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.80.030(A) Setback violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.80.040 Unlawful parking provided 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.030(A) Failure to obtain sign permit 250 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 



Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.040 Excessive number of signs 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.050(B) Projecting sign violation 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.050(C) Portable sign obscuring 
traffic or sight angles 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.070 Prohibited sign in use 100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.080(C) Prohibited sign in Significant 
structures area zone 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

18.90.100(B) Prohibited sign in residential 
zoning districts 

100 HBC 18.30.070(B)(2) – 
$100 

HBC 18.30.090(C,D) – Civil 
or Criminal Remedies up to 

$1,000 
HBC 18.30.090(A) - 

Each act & every day a 
separate violation 

 



10.06.030  Fine Schedule for Local Traffic Offenses 

In accordance with AS 28.05.151(a), citations for the following offenses may be disposed of as 
provided in AS 12.25.195-.230, without a court appearance, upon payment of the fine amounts 
listed below plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074. Fines must be 
paid to the court. The Rules of Minor Offense Procedure in the Alaska Rules of Court apply to all 
offenses listed below. Citations charging these offenses must meet the requirements of Minor 
Offense Rule 3. If a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found guilty, 
the penalty imposed for the offense may not exceed the fine amount for that offense listed below. 
These fines may not be judicially reduced.   If an offense is not listed on the fine schedule, or if the 
citation indicates a court appearance is required, the defendant must appear in court to answer to 
the charges.   

The fine amounts listed below are doubled for motor vehicle or traffic offenses committed in a 
highway work zone or traffic safety corridor, as those terms are defined in AS 28.90.990 and 13 
AAC 40.010(b). 

An offense listed in this schedule may not be disposed of without court appearance if the offense is 
in connection with a motor vehicle accident that results in the death of a person. 

Code Section Offense Description Fine 
Amount 

Current Fine 

10.08.010 Starting parked vehicle - excessive 
acceleration 

15 HBC 10.16.200 - $15 

10.08.020(A) Driving on sidewalks - vehicle 20 HBC 10.26.220 - $20 

10.08.020(B) Driving on sidewalk in CBD - bicycle 20 HBC 10.26.220 - $20 

10.08.020(C) Failure to yield - bicycle 20 HBC 10.26.220 - $20 

10.08.030 U-turn where prohibited 30 HBC 10.26.230 - $30 

10.08.040 Projections on wheels or tracks prohibited 20 HBC 10.26.240 - $20 

10.08.050 Dragging objects prohibited 150 AK Bail Schedule - $125 

10.08.060 Projecting load on passenger vehicles 20 HBC 10.26.260 - $20 

10.08.070 Carrying animals on outside of vehicles 125 AK Bail Schedule - $125 

10.08.080(A) Use of coaster, roller skates, sleds or skis 
on roadway 

25 HBC 10.26.300(D) – 
1st offense - $25 

Increase by $5 each 
subsequent offense 

10.08.080(B) Use of skateboard or human powered 
device in prohibited area 

25 HBC 10.26.300(D) – 
1st offense - $25 

Increase by $5 each 
subsequent offense 

10.08.080(C) Negligent operation of device 25 HBC 10.26.300(D) – 
1st offense - $25 

Increase by $5 each 
subsequent offense 

10.34.005(B) Operating a snow machine or ATV in 
unauthorized location or after hours. 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(C) Operating a snow machine or ATV under 
16 years of age. 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(D) Driver's license required to operate snow 30 HBC 10.34.050 



machine or ATV 1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(E) Registration of snow machine or ATV 
required 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(F) Proof of insurance 30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(G) Excess passengers - 13 AAC 02.445 30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(H) Speed in excess of 25 mph or other 
violation of traffic regulations 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(I) Failure to signal turn 30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(J) ATV or snow machine on sidewalk or 
pedestrian way 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(K) Failure to stop snow machine or ATV when 
directed to do so by a police officer 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.005(M) Owner responsibility for violation 30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.009(A) 
 

Snow machine or ATV not eqipped with 
functional headlight, tallight, and brake 
light  

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.009(B) Failure to maintain equipment in good 
working order 

30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 
4th violation - $150 

10.34.010(A) Parental responsibility for  violation 30 HBC 10.34.050 
1st violation - $50 
2nd violation - $75 
3rd violation - $100 



4th violation - $150 
10.42.010 Bicycle violations: operator to obey rules 

of the road 
30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.020 Bicycle violations: parents responsible for 
actions/violations 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.030 Bicycle violations: obey signs/dismount 
and act as pedestrian 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.040 Bicycle violations: two or more on bike 
made for one 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.050 Bicycle violations: attaching to other  
vehicle/hooky-bobbing 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.060 Bicycle violations: minimum of one hand 
on handle bars 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.070 Bicycle violations: unicycle/coaster/roller 
skates on roadway prohibited 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.080 Bicycle violations: ride on right side of 
roadway 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.090 Bicycle violations: yield to vehicle upon 
audible signal 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.100 Bicycle violations: no more than two bikes 
abreast in one lane 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.110 Bicycle violations: must use shoulder 
when available 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.120 Failure to give audible signal passing 
pedestrian 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.130 Bicycle violations: turn and signal 
requirements 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.140 Bicycle violations: ride in business district 
where prohibited 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.160 Bicycle Violations: Bike Parking 
Requirements 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $20 

10.42.170 Bicycle violations: bike not to enter 
limited use areas 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $50 

10.42.180 Bicycle violations: yield to traffic 30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.190 Bicycle violations:  headlight 
requirements 

30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.200 Bicycle violations: taillight requirements 30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.42.210 Bicycle violations: reflector requirements 30 AK Bail Schedule - $20 

10.42.220 Bicycle violations: brake requirements 30 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.44.010 Parking during snow removal 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.020 Prohibited 24-hour parking – impounding 
vehicles 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 



10.44.030 Time limit parking 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.050 Standing or parking close to curb 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.060(A) Signs or markings indicating angle 
parking 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.070 Obedience to angle-parking signs or 
markings 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.080(B) Violating permit for loading or unloading 
at an angle to the curb 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.090(A) Stopping, standing, or parking prohibited 
– no signs required 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.090(B) Moving the vehicle of another into unlawful 
parking area 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.100 Parking not to obstruct traffic 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.110 Parking in alleys 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.120(A) Parking for certain purposes prohibited: 
displaying such vehicle for sale 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.120(B) Parking for certain purposes prohibited: 
washing, greasing, or repairing 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.130(B) Parking adjacent to schools 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.140(B) Parking prohibited on narrow streets 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.150 Standing or parking on one-way streets 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.160(B) No stopping, standing, or parking near 
hazardous or congested places 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.210(A) Abandonment of vehicle 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.210(B) Exceeding time limit for parking in 
designated areas 

25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.44.220 Unauthorized parking on private property 25 HBC 10.44.230 - $25 

10.48.010 Pedestrians must obey regulations 25 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.48.020 Pedestrians not to enter limited use areas 25 AK Bail Schedule - $50 

10.48.030 No pedestrian may walk into path of 
vehicle 

25 AK Bail Schedule - $50 

10.48.040 Pedestrian must cross at crosswalk 25 AK Bail Schedule - $25 

10.48.050 Pedestrian must yield to vehicles 25 AK Bail Schedule - $25 

10.48.060 Crossing roadway where prohibited 25 AK Bail Schedule - $25 

10.48.070 Diagonally cross intersection must use 
sidewalks 

25 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.48.080 Must walk on left side/shoulder of 
roadway 

25 AK Bail Schedule - $40 



10.48.090 Pedestrian creates hazard/interferes with 
traffic 

25 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.48.100 Sleep/loiter/obstruct highway 25 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

10.48.110 Solicit ride/distracts driver 25 AK Bail Schedule - $50 

10.48.120 Nonblind pedestrian not to use cane/dog 25 AK Bail Schedule - $150 

10.48.130 Pedestrian must yield to emergency 
vehicle 

25 AK Bail Schedule - $50 

10.48.140 Pedestrian not to cross against “don’t 
Walk” signal 

25 AK Bail Schedule - $40 

 

















Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

15-589
8/25/15

Discharge into the Sewer System w/Borough Approval

Interim Director of Public Facilities

Public Facilities

8/3/15

1. Ordinance 15-08-418
2. Memo from the Interim Director of Public Facilities

The assembly already scheduled the second hearing for 9/8/15. No motion is needed now unless the second
hearing date needs to change or some other action is desired.

The Borough Manager recommends adoption.

0 0 N/A

Objective 3F, Page 108

There is a need to update code to allow on a case-by-case basis cooling water discharge into the borough's waste
water system. One example is the local distillery whose process involves a certain amount of cooling water discharge.

Objective 3F of the Comprehensive Plan: Strengthen entrepreneurial activity and businesses. Provide entrepreneurs
with the resources that will enable them to develop and expand their businesses

0

8/25, 9/8/158/11, 8/25/15

Amend Code to Allow Cooling Water

7B



 

HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 15-08-418 

 
An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 13, 
Section 13.08.260 to allow the discharge of cooling water into the municipal 
sewer system with specific approval from a designated borough official. 

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 
 

Section 1.   Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and the 
adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

 
Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption.   

 
Section 4. Amendment of Section 13.08.260. Haines Borough Code is amended, as 
follows:  
 
NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 

STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

13.08.260 Prohibited connections. 

It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any customer or other person to connect 
or cause to be connected to the sanitary sewer system any inflow source. The term “inflow 
source” is defined as any source of water from such sources as, but not limited to, roof gutters, 
cellar, yard, and area drains, foundation drains, cooling water discharges (unless specifically 
approved by a designated borough official), drains from springs and swampy areas, 
manhole covers, cross connections from storm sewers and combined sewers, catch basins, 
storm waters, surface runoff, and street wash waters or drainage, but does not include water 
entering the sanitary sewer system from the ground, through such means as, but not limited 
to, defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manhole walls. All new sewers and connections 
from wastewater sources to the sewer system shall be designed and constructed in accordance 
with such guidelines as the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or the 
Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, as applicable, shall publish from time to 
time. 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS ____ 
DAY OF _________, 2015. 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 
 
 
Date Introduced:   08/11/15    
Date of First Public Hearing:        08/25/15  
Date of Second Public Hearing:  09/08/15 

    

Draft 

 



 

Date: August 25, 2015 
To: Mayor and Borough Assembly 
Cc: Borough Manager 
From: Brian Lemcke, Interim Director of Public Facilities 
Re: Ordinance 15-08-418 
 
The Haines Borough code sometimes needs to be updated to address changing requirements of 
local citizens and business’. For example the brewing and distillery operations and their needs 
were never anticipated when certain areas of the code were written. This minor ordinance change 
is an attempt to address one of these instances and to maybe accommodate future similar needs.   
 
The cooling water section of the ordinance applies to large hot water discharges to the borough 
waste water system from things like big power generation plants and not small breweries, 
distilleries and other similar enterprises.  It is my view that the best way to handle this is to look 
at each individual case as described in the ordinance change language.   
 
 

 

 

Memo 
Public Facilities 

 
 

 

 



 
 
 
DATE: August, 25 2015 
TO: Mayor and Borough Assembly   
FROM:       David B. Sosa, Borough Manager 

 

BOROUGH ADMINISTRATION MISSION 

Under the guidance and direction of the Borough Assembly, the mission of the Haines Borough Administration is to deliver 
critical and desired services; to protect the safety and well-being of the community; and to create conditions for a vibrant, 

sustainable economy that enhances and safeguards quality of life 
Manager’s Comments: 
 
Noise Study:  The Final DRAFT of the Noise study was posted on the Borough website on Monday 17 August.  I am 
coordinating with Mead & Hunt to schedule a presentation to the Assembly and the public for late September. 
 
Police Study: The Police Management Audit was posted on the Borough website on 14 August.  On 17 August the Borough 
Manager updated the Public Safety Commission on some of the elements contained within the report and the PSC 
scheduled an additional meeting to determine the qualifications the Borough seeks in a permanent police chief.  A number 
of the items within the report are being addressed and will be commented on later in this Manager’s Report. 
  
Facilities & Public Works Director Hire: A hiring committee met and conducted interviews with four applicants. The 
committee will now determine whether to recommend one candidate, narrow the field, or restart the search. 
 
Community Non-profit Funding Applications:  A revised application packet was prepared and posted to the Borough 
website.  A submission deadline of 5pm, 24 August was set with a plan for the item to be before the Assembly on 22 
September. 
 
Update to the Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan: The State Department of Emergency Management has completed their review 
of the Borough’s update to the Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Staff members are updating the plan based on the guidance 
from the State and will schedule a public process to obtain comments on the report. 
 
Possible FY 16 Budget Amendment: As we move through the first quarter of FY 16 the staff will identify items that may 
require budget amendments.  My goal for FY16 is to present these to the assembly on a quarterly basis.   
 
Website Upgrade:  Staff has been reviewing options to upgrade the Borough website with our consultant aHa 
(http://www.ahaconsulting.com/).  Options for upgrade include incorporating a Responsive Design (Mobile Friendly), 
adding Mega Menus, advanced searching, improved e-mail notifications, link projects etc. to geo mapping (see this link for 
an example: http://www.losaltosca.gov/projects) .  Anticipated cost of the re-design will be approximately $7,000. 
 
Road Maintenance:  The Summer road maintenance plan has been completed.  An updated road status map is being 
prepared and will be posted on the Borough web site when complete. 
 
Major Maintenance Meeting:  On Thursday 20 August a Major Maintenance Meeting was held at the school. This was the 
first such meeting with the new Superintendant.  Among the items discussed were:  

VocEd Building Upgrades: Will be approximately 1 week behind schedule but the Superintendant felt that there 
would be no impact to instruction.  He also noted that the work crew has been very positive and proactive.  

 
 

MANAGER'S   REPORT 
 
 

8A



School Roof Repairs:  will start soon and will last approximately 10 days.  No impact to instruction. 
Pellet Boiler Discussion: Reviewed options for the school and suggested a separate meeting between the Manager 
and the Superintendant to discuss details. 

 
Facilities & Public Works: (See Attached Spreadsheet) 
 
Finance:  
 
Property Tax – First half property tax payments are due 9/1.  $2,807,359 in 2015 property tax bills were sent out in July.  Of 
this amount, $915,483 (33%) has been paid as of the date of this report. 
 
Sales Tax – Per the procedure set out in HBC 3.80.120, the names of businesses delinquent in filing Haines Borough sales tax 
returns were published in the paper this week.   
 
Supplemental Funding From ADEC – In the last week the Borough was notified that two drinking water infrastructure 
construction projects which were completed in recent years have become eligible for a loan subsidy.  Both the Barnett 
Water Tank replacement project and the 4th, View, Lynnview AC pipe replacement project were partially funded with loans 
from the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation.  Recently the Borough received loan amendment documents 
which forgive $142,428 of principal previously owed to ADEC for these projects.   
 
Pool: The reel for the new pool blanket has been installed.  The blanket will be loaded soon which will help keep the pool at 
temperature and save on heating costs. 
 

 
 
 
Ports & Harbor: 
 
Excursion Inlet Visit:  The Harbormaster will be going to Excursion Inlet on the 25th Aug to inspect facilities and meet with 
individuals there to discuss potential projects. 
 
Vessels in Distress: Harbor personnel responded to two vessels in distress on the 17th as weather deteriorated.  
Just outside the breakwater, one vessel had a small hydraulic/electrical fire in the stern. This caused the vessel to lose all 
steering capability. Gabe was able to respond by getting aboard the Carolyn, Dan Martin as Captain, and assisted with 
rafting the two vessels together. They were then able to bring the disabled vessel safely in the harbor. 

2 | P a g e  



At about the same time, I received a call from dispatch saying that a small sail boat had been seen dragging anchor and 
coming dangerously close to the rocky shore at Paradise Cove. Mark immediately went to the area to get the vessel name 
and assess the situation. We were then able to make contact with the owner in town and advise him of the problem. After 
the owner re-boarded his vessel, he found that he had trouble with his rudder and prop. We contacted additional vessels in 
the area to assist if needed and stayed on standby until the sail boat was safely moored at Letnikof Cove. 
 
Police: 
 
Hiring: Four individuals were interviewed in the past week.   
 
Improvements to Discrepancies noted n the Russell Report: The Department is furthering efforts to implement 
improvements pursuant to the Russell Report: 

-Evidence Room being organized and prescription medications turned in during previous DEA drug days destroyed. 
-Jail improvements ongoing with one cell completed, the other two ready for install of new camera screens 
-Storage room cleaning/purging ongoing along with staging of old documents for destruction, pending 
authorization 

 
Other: School started without any traffic incidents.  The PD deployed two unoccupied marked cars (along with one occupied 
patrol unit) in the school zones to remind drivers school started and to slow down.  Only one morning traffic stop was 
necessary resulting in speed and license warnings.  The warning lights for the Haines Hwy zone were programmed for the 
new school schedule and appear to be working correctly. 
 
Clerk’s Office: 
 
Elections:   

• Candidates - The candidate filing period has ended, and the 2015 Borough Election ballot will have three 
individuals vying for two assembly seats (Friedenauer, Gregg, and Lapp) and three people running for three school 
board seats (Chapell, Gross, and Wilson).   

• Election Workers - The election workers have been determined, and the training is scheduled for September 17.   
• Voting Locations - The polling location for the Haines #1 precinct will change this year. The American Bald Eagle 

Foundation is no longer able to provide the space, so the borough clerk is working closely with the Alaska Division 
of Elections to choose another location. It is tentatively going to be the Chilkat Center Lobby.  As soon as the state 
completes its assessment of the location and a final decision is made, letters will go out to every registered voter in 
that precinct. Additionally, we will advertise the location change and provide extra signage on voting day, October 
6.  The poling location for the Haines #2 precinct will remain the Klehini Valley Fire Hall. 

• Voting Absentee - Absentee voting information is available on the borough’s website:  
www.hainesalaska.gov/administration/2015-borough-election-information.    

• Voter Eligibility - To be eligible to vote in this Election, a person must be registered in the Haines Borough no later 
than September 6.  It’s not enough to just be registered to vote some place in Alaska. A person must be registered 
with the Division of Elections with a Haines Borough physical address.  It’s an easy change to make, but it must be 
done or the vote would be disqualified. The clerk would hate to see that happen!  Forms are at the borough office 
or it can be done online through the Division of Elections:  http://www.hainesalaska.gov/administration/how-
register-vote.   

 
Records:  Various departments are working on lists of records ready for destruction per the borough’s record retention 
schedule. The clerk will compile them into a single list to bring to the assembly for approval by resolution. That is expected 
to be ready for the second meeting in September. 

3 | P a g e  

http://www.hainesalaska.gov/administration/2015-borough-election-information
http://www.hainesalaska.gov/administration/how-register-vote
http://www.hainesalaska.gov/administration/how-register-vote




                                                                                                            June Statistics 
                                                                                                                      Visits:  10,252 
                                                                                             Monthly Circulation: 10,218        

                                                                                                                  Internet Use: 1,908; Wi-Fi: 3,119 
                                                                                                       Library Programs: 70, Attendance: 919  
                                                                                                  Non-Library Programs: 3, Attendance: 31  
                                                                                   Meeting Room Reservations: 31; Attendance: 176  
 
July 15, 2015                           
Director’s Report 
 
Updates: 

• The ALA annual conference was a busy time.  In addition to attending author events and 
sessions related to acquisitions, gaming, and the future of libraries, I was also able to 
attend, as Alaska Library Association President, the general Council sessions for ALA. 
Following my presentation for ALA’s Rural, Native and Tribal Libraries association, we 
received 2 other invitations to present about our library, the partnership with CIA, and 
successful projects. 

• The Summer Reading program continues on with high numbers. Currently, 185 youth 
are signed up for summer reading.  In addition to prizes earned from the ever-popular 
treasure chest, $545 has been raised for the chosen humanitarian special projects. 

• 2,500 digitized topo maps of the Yukon and northern British Columbia have been added 
to our Reference Station.  This was in response to requests from library patrons. Thanks 
to Erik for these updates. During this past year, the reference station has been used 174 
times. 

• The statewide OWL program had an excess of iPads and offered them to libraries. We’ve 
requested 4 iPads to use with our Enhancement grant project.  In addition, OWL has 
excess funding for distance learning programs through videoconferencing, such as the 
Robot Garage program we held a year or so ago, which participating libraries are able  to 
access. 

• As a part of our current Enhancement grant project, we are creating a special area for 
Tlingit materials.  Reba has pulled the pertinent materials from the Alaska and general 
collection and edited records.  She is also doing original cataloging of our cultural 
program DVDs.  The next phase will be actively building the collection. 

• As you all know, The Rasmuson Foundation Board visit was a successful event. The 
Board members sent the library a thank you note, mentioning the warm welcome and 
reception they received. Jeff Baird sent a note saying Reba’s presentation was 
“awesome!” Many thanks to Reba for her extra time and efforts. 
 

Staff: 
• Abbie Diggins’ final day for the summer season will be July 24th.  She will be returning to 

school soon in August.  Abbie is the talented staff member who put together the 
information packets for the Rasmuson Foundation Board members. 

8B



                                            Haines Borough Public Library 
                                            

• I am looking into hiring Jolanta Ryan as an emergency hire for 90 days.  Jolanta will assist 
with OWL programming and Enhancement grant program planning and reporting. 
 

Special Events: 
• On Friday, July 17, we will be participating in a webcast program from the National 

Museum of the American Indian in Washington, DC.  This is a Living Earth Symposium 
entitled On the Table: Creating a Healthy Food Future. Webcast begins at 10am. 

• Thursday, July 23, 7pm, Storyteller Tom Cosgrove will share his part of a 360 North 
televised 2-person show, entitled, Coming Out: Actions & Reactions.  

• Cultural Event, Friday, July 24, 6pm and Saturday, July 25, 1pm.  On Friday participants 
will learn about the harvest process for Devil’s Club and acquire plants.  Saturday the 
event continues at the library where participants will learn how to make ointment and 
juice. 
 

Upcoming:   
• Association of Tribal Libraries, Archives, and Museums conference in Washington DC, 

September 9-15, 2015 
• Alaska Library Association Executive Council meeting in Anchorage, September 26-27, 

2015 
 
Other: 

• Many thanks to those of you able to attend the Rasmuson Foundation Board event. The 
warm welcome they received came from all of you. Thanks! 



Haines Borough Public Library Board 
Approved Meeting Minutes 

 June 17, 2015 
4:00 PM 

 
The mission of the Haines Borough Public Library is to be responsive to community needs by assembling, 
preserving and providing access to materials, information, and technology.  Therefore, the Library will offer an 
environment conducive to providing programs, sharing information, and stimulating ideas.  The library will be a 
community gathering place where all ages are welcome. 
Call to Order - 4:05pm 
 
present - Patty Brown, Tracy Wirak, Diana Lapham, Lorrie Dudzik, Anne Marie Palmieri, Dick 
Flegel, James Alborough  
 
excused - Cecily Stern, Heather Lende, Stacey Gala has submitted a letter of resignation. 
 
absent - JoAnn Ross Cunningham 
   
Additions or Revisions to Agenda - none 
 
Consent Agenda Items 
The following items are consent items for final action to be taken on all by a single vote.  Any 
item may be removed for separate consideration if necessary. Dick/Anne Marie moved/seconded 
to approve the agenda.  Approved unanimously. 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
2. Approval of Minutes 5/20/2015 
3. Director’s Report 

 
Items for Discussion 

• Room occupancy numbers and large events - The fire chief has reviewed the premises to 
determine the capacity for each area.  We will add this information to our policy manual 
under Safety. 
• Review of membership agreement of Joint Library catalog and MOU - We are ready to 
sign documents as soon as the board reviews them. Costs will be less than what we currently 
pay. 
• Building plan review - We will request the finalized plan and cost estimate by July 20 in 
order to begin construction next summer. 
• LEAP promo – James - Poster is ready to be mounted and displayed. 
• Rasmuson Foundation Board visit - On June 29, 6-8pm there will  be a meet and greet at 
Harriet Hall. The Rasmuson Board will visit the library on June 30 at 10:30am.  James, 
Anne Marie and Dick will be present. 

 
Other 

• Radio  
                      June 19 - N/A,   June 26 - Dick,   
                 
                        July 3 - FOL,   July 10 - Heather 

                                 
Board Comments - Some discussion about who will take Stacey’s place on the board. 
 
Director’s Comments – The Alaska State Library has asked Patty to lead a training for directors 
of small libraries, but she will be at another conference.  
 
Adjournment - 4:50pm - James/Dick moved/seconded to adjourn.  Approved unanimously.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

9A



Meeting Minutes 
 

Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee (PARC) meeting 
12:00 noon, Friday  July 17, 2015                          Location: Library Conference Room 
  
Attendance 

PARC members: Burl, Tresham, Meredith, Rich, 
Guests: DPOR Ranger, Travis Russell 

Approval of Agenda 

 Motion to approve the agenda passed 

Approval of Minutes from 5/27/2015 

M/S: Sheldon/Pochardt 
Motion to approve May 27 minutes.  
Motion carries  4-0 

New Business 

Chilkat State Park trail building update from Ranger Travis Russell 

Ranger Travis Russell introduced himself to the PARC. He is the new DPOR ranger.  
Russell noted that July 27 is a planned airlift to get gravel in to continue the work on 
Batery Pt. Trail improves.  He noted that DPOR tech.,  Dallas Anderson is his “lead” w/ 
Haines DPOR.  Gravel (10 tons) will be used to further the trail.  Russell characterized 
the nature of the development as “one step below wheelchair access.”   He noted that “the 
last third” of the old BP trail will be “cut out”, with the new lower/beach-front trail 
development being added to avoid the need for bridges and high flow/high erosion areas. 
Ranger Russell said that he would keep the PARC committee apprised of the Bat Pt. 
developments as they change. 

Discussion on Public Use Cabins in the Haines Area and Funding 

Abbreviations: Public Use Cabins (PUC), Chilkat State Park (CSP) 
Ranger Russell described the potential for the CSP “Host Cabin” becoming managed as a 
PUC.  Russell noted that there is a ventilation issue in the CSP host cabin log building, 
but that with repairs it could be made available as a PUC.  Booking is on line and entry 
key would, in theory, be available through DPOR office in Haines.   Pochardt expressed 
support about the possible change to the cabin designation and having this be avail. 
through the winter for ski-in access.  Ranger Russell noted that window replacement was 
an immediate need which “might improve the ventilation (mold) problem.”   
  

Approved 
 

9B



Pochardt expressed her support for a back country “huts” or “cabins” (back county ski 
huts) and noted that the first priority, to her taste, is establishing a low elevation cabin in 
the Battery Pt trail area.  Other areas that were suggested include Moose Meadows and 
Twin Coves, on the Seduction Pt. Trail.  Ranger Russell posited that the total cost for 
fully constructed PUC, w/ logistics and construction included, might range around 
$100,000.  He described this price-tag as being “typical”  for the 16X16 size.  Sheldon 
discussed the prospect of there being a collaboration with Haines High School T&I for 
partial pre-fabrication or full construction.   Maintenance and vandalism issues were 
discussed. 

Lookout Park in Portage Cove Harbor Expansion 

Purpose:  Choosing a PARC member to serve on the new Joint Portage Cove Expansion 
aesthetics committee 
  
Motion/Sec. – Chapell/ Pochardt 
  
Motion to appoint Sheldon to the Joint Portage Cove Expansion Aesthetics Committee, 
being formed to address aesthetics in the SBH Expansion project. 
  
Motion passes 3 to 1 with Gregg voting in opposition. 
  
Application by George Figdor for PARC membership 
 
A vote was held to approve George Figdor’s appointment as a PARC member 
The application of George Figdor was unanimously approved and forwarded to the 
Assembly for consideration. 
 
Pochardt departed meeting. 

Downtown core park land discussion 

Purpose -- Discuss a strategy for identifying park and recreation lands adjacent to the 
track, library, borough administration building, brewery, and hotel.   

Item was not discussed and will be re-considered at the next meeting.  

Old Business-- None 

Public Comment --None 

Next meeting – The next meeting scheduled for 5:00pm, Monday August 17th.   

Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 1:05pm 



 July 9, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG – Chairman Goldberg called the meeting to 
order at 6:30 p.m. in Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag.  

2. ROLL CALL – Present: Chairman Rob Goldberg, Commissioners Lee Heinmiller, 
Heather Lende, Brenda Josephson, Rob Miller, and Don Turner III. Absent: Robert 
Venables. 

Staff Present: Jan Hill/Mayor, and Tracy Cui/Planning and Zoning Technician III 

Also Present: Mike Case (Assembly liaison), Karen Garcia (CVN), Jessica Edwards, 
Sean Copeland, Ron Jackson, Kathryn Friedle, John Brower, Steve Fossman, Cindy 
Jackson, Tresham Gregg, and others.  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Lende suggested adding “Harbor Expansion Project” in the agenda as 10D2.  

Motion: Heinmiller moved to “approve the agenda as amended.” Miller seconded it. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 14, 2015  and June 11, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Motion: Heinmiller moved to “approve the May 14, 2015 and June 11, 2015 minutes as 
amended.” Turner seconded it. The motion carried unanimously.  

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

6. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  

Goldberg said he attended the Picture Point Design Committee meeting. He briefed the 
current status of the project.  

7. STAFF REPORTS  

A. Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

Cui reported monthly permits, enforcement orders, and updates on projects. 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. Southeast Alaska State Fair – Recreational Climbing Tower Variance Proposal  

Goldberg opened the public hearing at 6:50 p.m. 

Goldberg closed the public hearing at 6:51 p.m. 

Motion: Lende moved to “approve the Southeast Alaska State Fair recreational 
climbing tower height variance proposal.” Miller seconded it. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  

10. NEW BUSINESS  

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission Meeting 

July 9, 2015 

MINUTES Approved  

  9C



 July 9, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

A. Historic District/Building Review  

1. Sean Copeland – Exterior Stairs and Attic Office Space – 34 Blacksmith 
Street   
Motion: Lende moved to “approve the proposed exterior stairs and attic office 
space.” Miller seconded it. The motion carried unanimously. 

B. Haines Borough Code Amendments  

1. Temporary Residence in HBC 18.60.020(H) 
Cui said the proposed ordinance allows a temporary dwelling to be occupied 
during construction of a permanent residence. After reviewing the ordinance, 
staff believe that a temporary residence permit should also be considered for 
the purpose of providing temporary housing to individuals engaged in 
commercial projects. 
The commission would like to see the actual language before the commission 
votes on it. Cui said she will work on revising the ordinance and bring it back 
to the commission at the next regular meeting.  

2. On-Site Wastewater System 
Goldberg said the existing code requires a developer to provide a DEC 
written approval of the on-site wastewater system design prior to permit 
approval. However, DEC acknowledged that installation of a conventional on-
site wastewater system does not need a plan approval. The Borough code 
needs to be amended.  
Cui said she attended a teleconference with several DEC staff. She was told 
that the state statute allows conventional on-site wastewater treatment 
systems to be installed without prior plan approval by DEC, if the system is 
installed by a certified installer or under the direction of a registered engineer. 
Unfortunately, there are no certified installers in Southeast Alaska. 
Turner said that it seems like DEC staff interpret regulations a lot differently. 
DEC used to require every septic system in Southeast Alaska to be 
engineered. He said it may cause problems if we allow building permits to be 
issued without DEC’s approval. 
Miller suggested the code be amended to allow approval with the submission 
of a wastewater treatment design from a licensed engineer or certified 
installer.  
Goldberg said he will work with Cui to draft an ordinance.  

 C.  Project Updates – None 

D. Other New Business  

1. Lowering Speed Limit on Mud Bay Road 

Goldberg said this item is up for discussion at the request of Ann Marie Fossman. 
Mud Bay Road is a state-maintained road. The commission has no authority to 
reduce the speed limit on state-owned roads. DOT has not been very responsive to 
the Borough. However, he welcomed public comments. 

Several citizens spoke in favor of this request. They hoped the commission would 
support this petition, and write a recommendation letter to the state. 

Cindy Jackson disagreed about lowering the speed limit to 20 mph. She thinks 30 
mph is a reasonable speed. She pointed out that speeding is an enforcement issue.  



 July 9, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

Goldberg suggested residents talk to DOT representative Matt Boron and the Police 
Chief. 

Lende spoke in favor of lowering the speed limit. She said this is a real discussion of 
planning. As the sole planning body, the commission should weigh in on this request. 
She pointed out the petition area is zoned single residential, which is to provide for 
and protect areas for low density, individual home sites and quiet residential use.  

Turner said Small Tracts Road has twice as many houses as Mud Bay Road does, 
and most of the houses are close to the road. He thinks it is not practical to push the 
traffic to a more congested area. 

Miller said if the commission wants to deal with this issue, it should be dealt as a 
whole. Property owners that live on Small Tracts Road and Mud Bay Road in the 
petition area should be invited to comment. He pointed out that Mud Bay Road is 
signed as a preferred route.  

Josephson said it sounds like an enforcement issue. She would not encourage the 
commission to write a recommendation letter to the state.  

More discussion ensued. 

Goldberg said he will schedule this topic on the next meeting’s agenda. He will invite 

the Police Chief, DOT staff, and the Chairman of the Public Safety Committee. The 
public will also be invited to attend and comment at the meeting.  

2. Harbor Expansion Project  

Lende asked about the meeting scheduled on July 13. 

Case said that meeting is not about the harbor expansion. It is intended to be an 
initial meeting to receive and discuss input on the aesthetic design elements of 
the waterfront. 

Lende said she would like to request the Borough provide the public with copies 
of artistic renderings of the project. 

11. COMMISSION COMMENTS - None 

12. CORRESPONDENCE - None 

13. SET MEETING DATES 

A.  Regular Meeting—Thursday, August 13, 2015.  

14. ADJOURNMENT– 8:20 p.m.   



From: Judy
To: Julie Cozzi
Subject: Note to Public Safety Commission
Date: Monday, August 17, 2015 3:05:07 PM

 Hi Julie, would you please send a copy of this note on to the Public Safety Commission
before their meeting this evening and also place a copy in the Assembly's next packet  under
correspondence . Thank you !
 
To: Public Safety Commission/
       Haines Borough
    
        It has come to our attention that the rating for our Fire service area ( # 3 ) Has been
down graded to a 10 . This will greatly 
        increase our fire insurance payments. The fire service to our property at 39.8 mile
Haines Hwy. is problematic at best and almost
        non- existent when you factor in the distance and that it is provided by a
totally volunteer Fire Department that is under staffed
        and under funded for training purposes. We feel this situation needs to be seriously
addressed by  your commission and the 
        Haines Borough Assembly.
       
        We thank you for your time and efforts on this issue.
        Sincerely,
 
         Rich & Judy Tolles
         Haines Highway
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        

9D

mailto:mctolles@hotmail.com
mailto:jcozzi@haines.ak.us


From: David Sosa
To: mark and mardell
Cc: Robert Venables; Scott Bradford; Sage and Holly Thomas; Jim Stanford; Robert Griffiths; Julie Cozzi; Jila

Stuart; Jan Hill
Subject: RE: a letter sent to Public Safety Commission FYI
Date: Monday, August 17, 2015 8:13:44 AM

Thank you for reaching out.  I was not aware of the reduced rating and will mention this to the
Public Safety Commission. I have included the Chair of the Service Area Board and members of the
department on this e-mail to ensure they are  aware of your concern.
 
As you state, being so far up the highway brings with it issues of remoteness and limited access to
services.  This is one of the reasons the Charter and Code provide for the creation of service areas
the purpose of which is to “provide services not provided on an area wide basis or to provide a
higher level of service than that provided on an area wide basis.” (HBC 7.04.010).   In the case of the
area up the Highway Fire Service Area No. 3 was created to provide fire protection and  prevention. 
With the service area concept the members of the service area “tax” themselves to provide
services.  For Fire Service Area 3 in FY 16 this is .90 mils so in this case it is $90.00 in tax for every
100K of value. For the area this translates to $31,908 for FY 16.
 
As you point out, this amount is not always enough and in recognition of that the Assembly made
sure to include the provision of additional monies in the Capital Improvement Fund to secure
equipment for Fire Service Are 3.  This is a departure from the past when these  funds were
provided by the Borough in the form of a loan that the Service Area needed to repay. For FY 16 this
meant the inclusion of $45,800 towards the purchase of equipment (Tanker and SCBA- details here:
 http://www.hainesalaska.gov/finance/haines-borough-budget ).  These contributions will continue
in out years until sufficient money is available to purchase the desired equipment. I recognize that
this does not address your immediate concern but it is a start.  For more information on the details
of the KVVFD Budget go to page 154 in the Haines Borough Budget (see link above)
 
With respect to levels of training I will need to speak with the Fire Chef and the Fire Board Chair. 
With volunteer departments there can be challenges getting enough volunteers and then having
volunteers who are available for training given all of their other responsibilities.  I will look into this
and see what can be done to ensure training opportunities are available so that those who are able
and willing to attend can attend. 
 
Regards,
 
Dave Sosa
 
 
David B. Sosa
Borough Manager
Haines Borough, Alaska
www.hainesalaska.gov
dsosa@haines.ak.us

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DAVID SOSAA78
mailto:mardiz@aptalaska.net
mailto:venables@aptalaska.net
mailto:sbradford@haines.ak.us
mailto:thomas7@aptalaska.net
mailto:stanfrds@aptalaska.net
mailto:rgriffiths@haines.ak.us
mailto:jcozzi@haines.ak.us
mailto:jstuart@haines.ak.us
mailto:jstuart@haines.ak.us
mailto:jhill@haines.ak.us
http://www.hainesalaska.gov/finance/haines-borough-budget


907-766-2231 ext. 29
 

“Be a yardstick of quality. Some people aren't used to an environment where excellence is

expected.”

Steve Jobs

 
 
 
 
 

From: mark and mardell [mailto:mardiz@aptalaska.net] 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2015 12:17 AM
To: David Sosa
Subject: a letter sent to Public Safety Commission FYI
 
Public Safety Commission

Haines Borough

 
    As a resident at 38 ½ mile on the Haines highway we are dependent on the Kleheni Fire

Department for fire protection.  Recently our house insurance costs more than doubled.

Upon calling my insurance company they told me that  rating for  our fire service provider

has been reduced to a 10, the lowest rating possible.  This happened 2 years ago, but it

just came to our attention with the increased rates.

   This information led me to make a few phone calls locally to find out if this problem can

be fixed. It appears that the  problems are numerous and complicated.    From what I can

determine,  there are few volunteers and  they  are doing  what they can with the level of

training they have; training is sporadic or nonexistant so qualified  firefighters  are not

 supported  and new volunteers do not become  qualified; equipment and water resources

are problematic. Small town personalities and politics play a part. This information and the

 ISO rating of 10, leads me to the conclusion that we do not have the local fire protection

that we thought we had.  Fortuneatly, there is an agreement that the Haines Fire

department will come out the road but that allows approximately one hour for a fire to burn

after a call from our location.

    Is it time for the Borough to assist?  I understand that this is a volunteer fire department.

I also understand that I pay $100 for  each $100,000 property value for this service.  I think

it is reasonable  to expect a dependable  service.    What can we do about this?  How can

we get the rating back up and service restored?  Your attention  to this matter  and a

response will be appreciated.

 
Mardell Gunn

Mark Kistler

Haines Highway

 
cc: David Sosa  Borough Manager

     Fire District 3 Board of Directors



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

15-590
8/25/15

Borough Clerk

Administration

8/17/15

1. Resolution 15-08-638
2. Request for Proposals
3. Proposal received from Machineworks

Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-638.

The Borough Manager recommends adoption.

16,910 $16,635 Renewed contract subject to budget

In response to a request for proposals, the borough received a bid from Machineworks to continue to provide janitorial
services for the Administration and Public Safety Buildings. The funding is budgeted annually, split between the
administration, assembly, fire and ambulance....$12,485, $2,400, $900, and $850, respectively. The $275 difference
between the bid and the budget can be easily covered by budgeted professional & contractual funds.

The Borough Manager recommends award of this contract. There are sufficient funds, and the work is necessary.

None, see summary

8/25/15

Admin-PSB Janitorial Services Contract

11A1



 

HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 15-08-638 

 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the Borough 
Manager to enter into a contract with Machineworks to provide 2015-2016 
janitorial services for the Borough Administration Building and specified 
areas in the Public Safety Building for an amount not to exceed $16,910.  

 
WHEREAS, the Borough issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) from interested businesses or 
individuals to provide 2015-2016 janitorial services for the Borough Administration Building and 
specified areas in the Public Safety Building; and 
 
WHEREAS, the scope of services includes the following: 

• Borough Administration Building - cleaned twice each week from September 1, 
2015 through August 31, 2016, and 

• Public Safety Building – Assembly Chambers, entry-way, stairs, hallway and 
upstairs restrooms in the Public Safety Building cleaned once each week from 
September 1, 2015) through August 31, 2016.   

 
WHEREAS, the Borough received one bid in response to the RFP, Machineworks, for $18,960 
that was revised to $16,910; and  
 
WHEREAS, Machineworks has provided the same scope of services for the Borough under a 
contract due to expire August 31, 2015 and for the current annual lump sum of $16,910; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding for the services are budgeted annually and are currently in the FY16 
budget in an amount sufficient to cover the contract, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly: 
 

Section 1: Authorizes the Borough Manager to enter into a contract with 
Machineworks to provide 2015-2016 janitorial services for the Borough 
Administration Building and specified areas in the Public Safety Building for an 
amount not to exceed $16,910; and 
 
Section 2: Recognizes this contract period shall expire on August 31, 2016 but may, 
subject to available funding and upon mutual agreement between the Borough 
Manager and the contractor, be renewed in one-year intervals for a total contract 
period of no more than three years. 

 
Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly this ____ day of 
_________, 2015. 
 
 

      ___________________________ 
        Janice Hill, Mayor  
 
Attest:  
 
_______________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 
 

Draft 

 



 

 
The Haines Borough, Alaska is requesting sealed bids for a business or individual to provide 
year-round, janitorial services for the Borough Administration Building (twice-weekly) and 
portions of the Public Safety Building (once-weekly).  
  
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
• Services Required: 

The Borough Administration Building, offices and restrooms as well as Assembly 
Chambers, entry-way, stairs, hallway and the upstairs restrooms in the Public Safety 
Building are to be vacuumed, dusted, sanitized and generally cleaned in the most 
appropriate method for the specific area or item.  Bathroom fixtures and floors shall be 
thoroughly disinfected and paper towel and soap dispensers shall be filled regularly.  All 
rugs and carpeted areas shall be vacuumed and any tile or vinyl areas shall be mopped 
during each cleaning.  All trash is to be emptied and placed in designated areas at the 
Borough Administration Building or the Public Safety Building.  Trash which has been 
separated for recycling shall be properly disposed of.   

 
• Minimum Frequency of Work Required:   

BOROUGH ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
The Borough Administration Building (including restrooms) shall be cleaned TWICE 
EACH WEEK from the date of the Notice to Proceed (September 1, 2015) through 
August 31, 2016.  Cleaning will take place outside of normal office hours, as 
appropriately arranged with the Borough Clerk. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 
The Assembly Chambers, entry-way, stairs, hallway and upstairs restrooms in 
the Public Safety Building shall be cleaned ONCE EACH WEEK, from the date of the 
Notice to Proceed (September 1, 2015) through August 31, 2016.  Cleaning will take 
place outside of normal office hours, as appropriately arranged with the Borough Clerk. 

 
• Supplies and Equipment: 

The Haines Borough will provide all cleaning equipment and materials necessary for the 
performance of the services requested.  The contractor is responsible for ordering 
routine cleaning supplies and is authorized to charge necessary supplies to the 
Borough's local charge accounts.  Any supplies which are not available for local 
purchase must be ordered by the Contractor through the Borough's purchase order 
system.  Purchase of any replacement equipment must be authorized by the Borough 
Clerk. 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

• Current Haines Borough and State of Alaska business licenses prior to contract award. 

• May NOT be an employee or officer of the Haines Borough (per HBC 2.62.030). 

• Can demonstrate janitorial experience and expertise.  

• Can comply with the following contract conditions.  

 

Haines Borough 
Request for Bids 

Janitorial Services 
Administration Building and  

Portions of the Public Safety Building 



CONTRACT CONDITIONS 

• INSURANCE:  The Borough requires that the Contractor carry public liability insurance 
insuring the Contractor and its assigns and the Borough against liability for bodily injury 
to any one person in an amount not less than $300,000.  Contractor shall also carry the 
State minimum-required workman’s compensation insurance coverage if the contractor 
has employees.  A certificate of insurance must be provided to the Borough showing all 
required coverage prior to the effective date of the contract. 

• INSURANCE NOT LIMITING CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY:  The provisions of this 
contract requiring insurance shall not limit the liability of the Contractor or anyone acting 
on behalf of the Contractor. 

• INDEMNITY:  Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the Borough harmless 
from any and all claims, demands or liability for bodily injury or death of any person, or 
damage to property arising out of the Contractor’s execution of the contractual duties of 
the Contractor, its agents, employees or assigns. 

• DAMAGE TO BUILDINGS OR EQUIPMENT:  Any problems, including building or 
equipment damage, caused by or discovered by the Contractor during the execution of 
the contractual duties of the Contractor should be reported as soon as possible. 

• COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Contractor and all persons acting on behalf of the 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations of Federal, State or Local 
government agencies with respect to the activities of the Contractor or anyone acting on 
behalf of the Contractor. 

• LIENS AND ASSESSMENTS:  The Contractor agrees that it will pay all employment 
security contributions required to be paid as a result of any services performed for the 
Borough regardless of whether they are performed by the Contractor or someone 
engaged by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall not allow any lien to be placed against 
the Borough by reason of non-payment of such contributions or any other reason, and 
shall indemnify the Borough against any such lien. 

• EXPENSES AND ATTORNEY’S FEES UPON DEFAULT:  Contractor agrees to pay all 
actual costs, expenses and actual attorney’s fees incurred by the Borough upon an Event 
of Default. 

• DEFAULT:  The Contractor shall be declared in default of the contract if the Contractor 
fails to adequately perform the contract services.  If, in the opinion of the Borough, the 
Contractor’s services do not adequately fulfill the intent of the contract (that is, to keep 
the premises in a clean and sanitary condition), the Borough Clerk shall notify the 
Contractor in writing of service deficiencies.  If the Contractor fails to correct such 
deficiencies within ten days of receiving this written notice, or consistently fails to 
provide adequate services as documented in writing by the Borough, the contractor shall 
be in default of the contract and the Borough shall terminate the contract. 

• BILLING/PAYMENT: Billings for services shall be submitted to the Borough monthly 
and will be processed for payment according to the accounts payable check processing 
schedule. 

 
BID AND AWARD SCHEDULE  

August 3, 2015  Publish Notice & Distribute Bid Packets 

August 19, 2015  Bid Deadline and Opening 

August 25, 2015  Contract Award by Borough Assembly 

September 1, 2015  Notice to Proceed Date 
  
The Borough Assembly will award the janitorial services contract based upon the amount of 
the bid, as long as the bidder has the qualifications and experience to perform the contract 
as specified in HBC 3.60.160.  The Assembly may require the submittal of references and/or 
that the Contractor provides a performance bond on the services to be provided.  The 



Borough Assembly reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to negotiate with the low 
bidder. 

Response to this request for bids should be delivered or mailed in a sealed envelope marked 
Admin/PSB Janitorial Services to:       

Haines Borough 
Attention: Borough Clerk  
P.O. Box 1209  
Haines, AK  99827  

Responses will be accepted until 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, August 19, 2015. 
Receipt is made when delivered to the above address either in person or via mail.  Postmark 
date does not constitute receipt.  Faxed or emailed bids are not acceptable.  
 
SELECTION PROCEDURE  

The Borough Manager and the Borough Clerk shall review all bids.  Based on qualifications, 
compliance with bid requirements, and the bid amount, a bidder will be recommended to 
the Borough Assembly for approval and contract award.  
   
CONTRACT PERIOD  

Following contract award, all parties shall negotiate and sign a contract, and the contractor 
will be given a Notice to Proceed.  The contractor will be expected to meet with the Borough 
Clerk to establish a cleaning schedule and needed supplies/equipment.  Thereafter, the 
contractor will provide the required services as noted in the Scope of Services section of this 
document.  This contract period shall expire on August 31, 2016 but may, upon mutual 
agreement between the parties, be renewed in one-year intervals.  This contract, including 
any renewals, may not exceed a total of three years. 
 
CONTRACT TERMINATION  

Either party may cancel the written contract by giving a minimum 30-day notice, in writing, 
to the other party. 



From: E.C. Lorentz
To: Julie Cozzi
Subject: Janitorial contract re: Administration Building & portions of Public Safety Building.
Date: Friday, August 21, 2015 9:49:07 AM

Good morning Julie,
 
Per our telephone conversation this morning re: Janitorial contract bid, I talked with Faith.  We
decided to revise our bid,  to the current amount of ($16,910.00).  In addition we are requesting a
two week personal leave in the month of November 2015.
 
We are contemplating some monetary increase when this contract is due for renewal.  My operating
cost for vehicle, vehicle maintenance,  fuel,  insurance and other cost have been increasing.
 
Thank you for your time in this matter,
 
“Ike”  E.C. Lorentz
Machineworks
 

mailto:clorentz@aptalaska.net
mailto:jcozzi@haines.ak.us




 
 

Haines Borough 
Assembly Agenda Bill 

 Agenda Bill No.:  15-591 
Assembly Meeting Date:  8/25/15 

 

Business Item Description: Attachments: 
Subject: 
Authorize Issuance of General Obligation Bonds 
Authorized by Voters in October 2014 

 
1. Resolution 15-08-639 
2. Form of Loan Agreement 

 
 

Originator: 
K&L Gates LLP (Borough’s Bond Counsel) 
Originating Department: 
Finance 
Date Submitted: 
August 20, 2015 

 

Full Title/Motion: 

Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-639. 

 

Administrative Recommendation: 
The borough manager and finance director recommend adoption. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 
This project has qualified with the State of Alaska’s Department of Education and Early Development 
for 70% debt reimbursement.  Authorizing bond funding will allow the Borough to receive 70% 
reimbursement from the State of Alaska. 
 

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review: 
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives: 

Objective 18B: Foster and maintain Haines 
School District excellence. 

Consistent:   Yes     No 

 

Summary Statement: 
 
The attached resolution was drafted by K&L Gates LLP, the Borough’s bond counsel, and reviewed by 
the finance director and the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank Authority.  This resolution authorizes 
participation in the bond banks next bond sale to fund two school projects.  On October 14, 2014 the 
Haines voters authorized the issuance of bonds to fund (1) the replacement of the high school air 
handling unit for an amount not to exceed $412,367 and (2) mechanical system upgrades to the 
vocational education building not to exceed $1,711,027.  The total amount authorized by the voters is 
$2,123,394.  Because both projects will come in under budget no more than $1,375,000 will be 
needed for both projects.  Both projects have been approved for 70% debt reimbursement by the 
State of Alaska. 
 

 

Referral: 
Referred to:  Referral Date:  
Recommendation:  Meeting Date:  

 
Assembly Action: 
Meeting Date(s): 8/25/15 Public Hearing Date(s):  

Postponed to Date: 
 

11A2



Haines Borough, Alaska 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-08-639 

 

A RESOLUTION of the Assembly of Haines Borough, Alaska, 
authorizing the issuance of a general obligation bond of the Borough in a 
principal amount not to exceed $1,375,000 to finance a portion of the 
cost of capital improvements to Haines High School, as authorized by 
Ordinance No. 14-07-388 and ratified by the Borough’s voters at an 
election held on October 7, 2014; authorizing tax levies to pay the 
principal thereof and interest thereon; and authorizing the sale of the 
bond to the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank on the terms and conditions 
provided in this resolution. 

 

 WHEREAS, at an election held in Haines Borough, Alaska (the “Borough”), on 
October 7, 2014, the number and proportion of qualified electors of the Borough as required by 
law for the adoption thereof voted in favor of two propositions authorizing the issuance of 
general obligation bonds of the Borough in a principal amount not to exceed $2,123,394 to 
finance a portion of the cost of capital improvements to Haines High School (the “Project”), as 
authorized by Ordinance No. 14-07-388 of the Borough passed on August 26, 2014 (the 
“Election Ordinance”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Assembly wishes to authorize the issuance of not to exceed $1,375,000 
principal amount of the general obligation bonds authorized by the Election Ordinance and 
approved by the Borough’s voters; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Borough to sell the bonds to the Alaska 
Municipal Bond Bank (the “Bond Bank”) on the terms and conditions set forth herein and in a 
loan agreement authorized by this resolution to be entered into by the Borough Manager; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Assembly of Haines Borough, Alaska, 
as follows: 
 

Section 1. Definitions.  As used in this resolution, the following words have the 
following meanings, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 
 
 “Assembly” means the Assembly of Haines Borough, the general legislative authority of 
the Borough, as the same shall be duly constituted from time to time, or any successor body.  
 

“Bond” means the Haines Borough, Alaska, General Obligation Bond, 2015, in a 
principal amount not to exceed $1,375,000, authorized to be issued and sold to the Bond Bank 
pursuant to this resolution. 
 
 “Bond Bank” means the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank, a public corporation and 
instrumentality of the State of Alaska, created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 85, Title 44, 
Alaska Statutes, as amended. 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



 “Bond Bank Bonds” means bonds to be issued by the Bond Bank to provide funds to be 
loaned to the Borough pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 
 
 “Bond Fund” means the “Haines Borough General Obligation Bond Redemption Fund, 
2015,” authorized to be created by Section 5 of this resolution. 
 
 “Bond Premium” means proceeds of the Bond representing an allocation of the original 
issue premium, if any, on the Bond Bank’s Bonds. 
 
 “Bond Register” means the registration books for the Bond maintained by the Registrar, 
for the purpose of complying with the requirements of Section 149 of the Code and listing, inter 
alia, the names and addresses of the Registered Owner of the Bond. 
 
 “Borough” means Haines Borough, a home rule municipal corporation duly organized 
and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Alaska and its Charter. 
 

“Chief Fiscal Officer” means the Borough’s Chief Fiscal Officer (also known as the 
Finance Director) or the successor to the duties of that office. 

 “Code” means the federal Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together with 
corresponding and applicable final, temporary or proposed regulations and revenue rulings 
issued or amended with respect thereto by the United States Treasury Department or the Internal 
Revenue Service, to the extent applicable to the Bond. 
 
 “Election Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 14-07-388 of the Borough, adopted by the 
Assembly on August 26, 2014, and ratified by the Borough’s voters in an election held in the 
Borough on October 7, 2014. 
 
 “Government Obligations” means any bonds or other obligations that, as to principal and 
interest, constitute direct obligations of, or are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States 
of America. 
 
 “Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement by and between the Borough and the 
Bond Bank authorized to be entered into pursuant to Section 12 of this resolution. 
 
 “Project Fund” means the “Haines High School Project Fund, 2015,” created pursuant to 
Section 11 of this resolution. 
 
 “Registrar” means the Chief Fiscal Officer, for the purposes of registering and 
authenticating the Bond, maintaining the Bond Register, and paying principal of and interest on 
the Bond. 
 
 “Registered Owner” means the person in whose name the Bond is registered on the Bond 
Register.   
 
 “Rule” means the SEC’s Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



 “SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 

“Tax Certificate” means the certificate with respect to federal tax matters relating to the 
Bond authorized to be executed by the Chief Fiscal Officer pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 7 of this resolution. 
 
 Words of the masculine gender will be deemed and construed to include correlative 
words of the feminine and neuter genders.  Words imparting the singular number include the 
plural numbers and vice versa unless the context otherwise indicates.  Reference to sections and 
other subdivisions of this resolution are to the sections and other subdivisions of this resolution 
as originally adopted unless expressly stated to the contrary.  The headings or titles of the 
sections hereof, and the table of contents appended hereto, are for convenience of reference only 
and do not define or limit the provisions hereof. 
 

Section 2. Authorization of the Bond.  The Borough shall now issue and sell not to 
exceed $1,375,000 principal amount of the general obligation bonds authorized by the Election 
Ordinance and approved by the Borough’s voters at an election held on October 7, 2014, to 
finance a portion of the cost of capital improvements to the Haines High School as described in 
the Election Ordinance and to pay costs of issuance of the bonds, all as authorized by the 
Election Ordinance.  The bonds shall be issued and sold to the Bond Bank as a single bond in a 
principal amount not to exceed $1,375,000, designated as the “Haines Borough, Alaska, General 
Obligation Bond, 2015” (the “Bond”).  The Bond shall be fully registered as to both principal 
and interest, shall be numbered separately in such manner as the Registrar determines, shall be 
dated as of the date to be established in accordance with Section 12 hereof, and shall mature on 
the date or dates, bear interest at the rate or rates, and be payable on the dates and in the principal 
amounts to be established in accordance with Section 12 hereof.  Interest on the Bond shall be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

 
Section 3. Registration, Payment and Transfer.  The Chief Fiscal Officer will act as 

authenticating agent, transfer agent, paying agent and registrar for the Bond (collectively, the 
“Registrar”).  Both principal of and interest on the Bond are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America.  Interest on the Bond will be paid by check or draft of the Registrar 
mailed (on the date such interest is due) to the Registered Owner or nominee at the addresses 
appearing on the Bond Register on the fifteenth day of the month preceding each interest 
payment date.  Principal of the Bond is payable upon presentation and surrender of the Bond to 
the Registrar by the Registered Owner or nominee at the office of the Registrar in Haines, 
Alaska.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Bond is sold to the Bond Bank pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 12 of this resolution, and for so long as the Bond Bank is the owner of the 
Bond, payments of principal of and interest on the Bond will be made to the Bond Bank in 
accordance with the Loan Agreement. 
 
 The Bond may be transferred only on the Bond Register maintained by the Registrar for 
that purpose upon the surrender thereof by the Registered Owner or nominee or his or her duly 
authorized agent and only if endorsed in the manner provided thereon, and thereupon a new fully 
registered Bond of like principal amount, maturity and interest rate will be issued to the 
transferee in exchange therefor.  Upon surrender thereof to the Registrar, the Bond is 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



interchangeable for a bond or bonds (in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof) of an equal aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rates and principal 
payment amounts as the Bond.  Such transfer or exchange will be without cost to the Registered 
Owner or transferee. 
 
 The Borough may deem the person in whose name the Bond is registered to be the 
absolute owner thereof for the purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on 
the Bond and for any and all other purposes whatsoever. 
 
 Section 4. Prepayment.  Provisions for the optional prepayment of some or all 
principal installments of the Bond may be established pursuant to Section 12 and will be set forth 
in the Loan Agreement.  Portions of the principal amount of the Bond, in increments of $5,000 or 
any integral multiple of $5,000, may be prepaid. 
 
 So long as the Bond Bank is the owner of the Bond, notice of prepayment will be given 
according to the terms of the Loan Agreement.  If the Bond Bank is not the owner of the Bond, 
notice of prepayment thereof will be given not less than 20 nor more than 60 days prior to the 
date fixed for prepayment by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of the 
Bond at the address appearing on the Bond Register.  The requirements of this section will be 
deemed complied with when notice is mailed as herein provided, regardless of whether it is 
actually received by the owner of the Bond.  Each official notice of prepayment will be dated and 
state: (i) the prepayment date, (ii) the prepayment price or prepayment premium, if any, payable 
upon prepayment; (iii) if less than all of an installment of principal is to be prepaid, the principal 
amount to be prepaid (which must be an integral multiple of $5,000); (iv) that the interest on the 
Bond, or on the principal amount thereof to be prepaid, designated for prepayment in the notice, 
will cease to accrue from and after the prepayment date; and (v) that on that date there will 
become due and payable on the Bond the principal amount thereof to be prepaid and the interest 
accrued on that principal amount to the prepayment date. 
 

Section 5. Bond Fund; Pledge of Taxes.  A special fund of the Borough known as the 
“Haines Borough General Obligation Bond Redemption Fund, 2015” (the “Bond Fund”), is 
hereby authorized to be created in the office of the Chief Fiscal Officer.  The Bond Fund may 
only be drawn upon for the purpose of paying principal of and interest on the Bond. 
 

The Bond is a general obligation of the Borough.  As authorized by the Election 
Ordinance, the Borough hereby irrevocably covenants that, unless the principal of and interest on 
the Bond are paid from other sources, it will make annual levies of property taxes without 
limitation as to rate or amount, and in amounts sufficient, together with other legally available 
funds, to pay such principal and interest as the same become due.  The full faith, credit and 
resources of the Borough are hereby irrevocably pledged for the annual levy and collection of 
such property taxes and for the prompt payment of such principal and interest. 

 
Section 6. Defeasance.  If money and/or Government Obligations, maturing at such 

time or times and bearing interest to be earned thereon in amounts sufficient to redeem and retire 
the Bond or a portion thereof in accordance with its terms, are set aside in a special account to 
effect such prepayment and retirement, and such money and the principal of and interest on such 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



obligations are irrevocably set aside and pledged for such purpose, then no further payments 
need be made into the Bond Fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bond or 
portion thereof so provided for, and the Bond or portion thereof will cease to be entitled to any 
lien, benefit or security of this resolution except the right to receive the money so set aside and 
pledged, and the Bond or portion thereof will be deemed not to be outstanding hereunder. 
 
 Section 7. Tax Covenants.   
 

(a) General.  The Borough covenants not to take any action, or knowingly to 
omit to take any action within its control, that if taken or omitted would cause the interest on the 
Bond to be includable in gross income, as defined in section 61 of the Code, for federal income 
tax purposes.   
 
  (b) Tax Certificate.  Upon the issuance of the Bond, the Chief Fiscal Officer is 
authorized to execute a federal tax certificate (the “Tax Certificate”), which will certify to 
various facts and representations concerning the Bond, based on the facts and estimates known 
or reasonably expected on the date of their issuance, and make certain covenants with respect to 
the Bond as may be necessary or desirable to obtain or maintain the benefits conferred under the 
Code relating to tax-exempt bonds. 
 
 The Borough covenants that it will comply with the Tax Certificate unless it receives 
advice from nationally recognized bond counsel or the Internal Revenue Service that certain 
provisions have been amended or no longer apply to the Bond. 
 

Section 8. Lost or Destroyed Bond.  If a Bond is lost, stolen or destroyed, the 
Registrar may authenticate and deliver a new Bond of like amount, date, and tenor to the 
Registered Owner upon such owner’s paying the expenses and charges of the Borough in 
connection with preparation and authentication of the replacement Bond and upon his or her 
filing with the Registrar evidence satisfactory to the Registrar that the Bond was actually lost, 
stolen or destroyed and of his or her ownership, and upon furnishing the Borough with indemnity 
satisfactory to the Registrar. 

 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



Section 9. Form of the Bond.  The Bond will be in substantially the following form: 

 NO. R-1 $_______ 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF ALASKA 

 
HAINES BOROUGH 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, 2015 
 

INTEREST RATE:  FINAL MATURITY DATE: 

 SEE BELOW   

REGISTERED OWNER: ALASKA MUNICIPAL BOND BANK  

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: ________________ DOLLARS 
 
 Haines Borough, Alaska (the “Borough”), a home rule municipal corporation organized 
and existing under and by virtue of the laws and Constitution of the State of Alaska and its 
Charter, hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the 
Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, the principal amount specified above, 
in installments payable as set forth below, together with interest on such installments from the 
date hereof or the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, at the 
interest rates set forth below, on _______, 20__, and on each _______ 1 and _______ 1 
thereafter until payment of the principal sum has been made or duly provided for. 

 
Principal Installment 

Payment Year 
(______ 1) 

 
Principal Installment 

Amount 

 
Interest 

Rate 

   
   
   
   
   
   

 
 Both principal of and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America.  Installments of principal of and interest on this bond are payable by check or 
draft of the Chief Fiscal Officer of the Borough (the “Registrar”) mailed on the date such interest 
is due to the Registered Owner at the address appearing on the Bond Register as of the fifteenth 
day of the month preceding the interest payment date.  The final installment of principal of and 
interest on this bond will be paid to the Registered Owner upon presentation and surrender of this 
bond at the office of the Registrar.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the Bond Bank is 
the Registered Owner of this bond, payments of principal of and interest on this bond will be 
made to the Bond Bank in accordance with the Loan Agreement. 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



 This bond is a general obligation bond of the Borough, as authorized by Ordinance 
No. 14-07-388 of the Borough, which was approved by the voters of the Borough, and issued 
pursuant to Resolution No. 15-08-639, adopted by the Borough Assembly on August 25, 2015 
(the “Bond Resolution”), to finance capital improvements to the Haines High School.  
Capitalized terms used in this bond and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings given 
those terms in the Bond Resolution. 
 
 Principal installments of this bond are subject to prepayment as provided in the Loan 
Agreement. 
 

The Borough hereby irrevocably covenants that, unless the principal of and interest on 
this bond are paid from other sources, it will make annual levies of property taxes without 
limitation as to rate or amount, and in amounts sufficient, together with other legally available 
funds, to pay such principal and interest as the same becomes due.  The full faith, credit and 
resources of the Borough are hereby irrevocably pledged for the annual levy and collection of 
such property taxes and for the prompt payment of such principal and interest. 
 
 The pledge of tax levies for payment of principal of and interest on this bond may be 
discharged prior to maturity of the bond by making provision for the payment thereof on the 
terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution. 
 
 This bond will not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Bond Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication hereon has 
been manually signed by the Registrar. 
 
 It is hereby certified and declared that this bond is issued pursuant to and in strict 
compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Alaska and the charter, ordinances, and 
resolutions of the Borough, that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent to 
and in the issuance of this bond have happened, been done and performed, and that this bond 
does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitations. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Haines Borough, Alaska, has caused this bond to be signed 
on behalf of the Borough with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Borough Clerk, and the seal of the Borough to be imprinted 
or impressed hereon, as of this ___ day of ___________, 2015. 
 

HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
 
 
By      /s/     

Mayor 
 
[SEAL] 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



ATTEST: 
 
 
 /s/  

Borough Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 Date of Authentication:  ___________________ 
 
 This is the Haines Borough, Alaska, General Obligation Bond, 2015, dated 
_____________, 2015, as described in the Bond Resolution. 

 
 
       
Chief Fiscal Officer, Haines Borough, 
Alaska, as Registrar 

 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 

 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto  
             
              
PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF 
TRANSFEREE 
 
 

 
 
              
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 
              
the within bond and all rights thereunder and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint  
       of       , or its 
successor, as agent to transfer said bond on the books kept by the Registrar for registration 
thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 DATED:  ________________, ______. 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: 
 
      
 

       
NOTE:  The signature of this Assignment 
must correspond with the name of the 
Registered Owner as it appears upon the 
face of the within bond in every particular, 
without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

 
Section 10. Execution of the Bond.  The Bond will be signed on behalf of the Borough 

by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by the manual or facsimile signature 
of the Borough Clerk, and the seal of the Borough will be impressed or imprinted thereon. 
 
 Only a Bond that bears thereon a Certificate of Authentication in the form set forth in 
Section 9 hereof, manually executed by the Registrar, will be valid or obligatory for any purpose 
or entitled to the benefits of this resolution.  The executed Certificate of Authentication will be 
conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly executed, authenticated, 
registered, and delivered hereunder and is entitled to the benefits of this resolution. 
 

If any officer who has signed or attested the Bond ceases to be an officer of the Borough 
authorized to sign bonds before the Bond bearing his or her signature is authenticated or 
delivered by the Registrar or issued by the Borough, that Bond nevertheless may be 
authenticated, issued and delivered and, when authenticated, issued and delivered, will be as 
binding on the Borough as though that person had continued to be an officer of the Borough 
authorized to sign bonds.  The Bond also may be signed on behalf of the Borough by any person 
who, on the actual date of signing of the Bond, is an officer of the Borough authorized to sign 
bonds, although he or she did not hold the required office on the date of issuance of the Bond. 
 

Section 11. Application of Bond Proceeds.  A special fund of the Borough known as 
the “Haines High School Project Fund, 2015” (the “Project Fund”) is hereby authorized to be 
created in the office of the Chief Fiscal Officer.  At the time of delivery of the Bond, the 
proceeds of the sale of the Bond will be deposited as follows: 
 
  (a) The accrued interest, if any, to the date of delivery will be deposited in the 
Bond Fund and used to pay a portion of interest on the Bond on the first interest payment date; 
and 
 
  (b) The remaining Bond proceeds will be deposited in the Project Fund and 
used to pay costs of the Project and costs of issuance of the Bond, as authorized by the Election 
Ordinance; provided, however, that any Bond Premium exceeding the costs of issuing the Bond 
must be deposited in the Bond Fund. 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



 Money remaining in the Project Fund after all such costs have been paid or reimbursed 
will be deposited in the Bond Fund.  Money in the Project Fund may be invested as permitted by 
law.  All interest earned and profits derived from such investments will be retained in and 
become a part of the Project Fund. 
 
 Section 12. Sale of the Bond.  The Chief Fiscal Officer and Borough Manager are 
authorized to complete the sale of the Bond to the Bond Bank on terms and conditions consistent 
with this resolution and a loan agreement in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A 
attached to this resolution (the “Loan Agreement”).  Following the sale of the Bond Bank Bonds, 
such terms and conditions, including the final principal amount, date, principal installment 
payment schedule, interest rates and prepayment provisions for the Bond, all as provided for in 
this resolution, will be set forth in the Loan Agreement, subject to the Borough Manager’s 
approval, which approval will be conclusively evidenced by his signing and delivering the Loan 
Agreement to the Bond Bank.   
 
 Section 13. Ongoing Disclosure.  The Borough acknowledges that, under 
Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the Borough may now 
or in the future be an “obligated person” with respect to the Bond Bank Bonds.  In accordance 
with the Rule and as the Bond Bank may require, the Borough will undertake to provide certain 
annual financial information and operating data as set forth in the Loan Agreement. 
 
 Section 14. General Authorization; Prior Acts.  The Mayor, Borough Manager, Chief 
Fiscal Officer and Borough Clerk and any other appropriate officers of the Borough are each 
hereby authorized and directed to take such steps, to do such other acts and things, and to 
execute such letters, certificates, agreements, papers, financing statements, assignments or 
instruments as in their judgment may be necessary, appropriate or desirable to carry out the terms 
and provisions of, and complete the transactions contemplated by, this resolution.  All acts taken 
pursuant to the authority of this resolution but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 
confirmed. 
 

Section 15. Severability.  If any covenant or agreement provided in this resolution to 
be performed on the part of the Borough is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be 
contrary to law, then that covenant or agreements will be null and void and deemed separable 
from the remaining covenants and agreements of this resolution and shall in no way affect the 
validity of the other provisions of this resolution or of the Bond. 

 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



Section 16. Effective Date.  This resolution will be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption by the Assembly. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Assembly of Haines Borough, Alaska, at a regular 
meeting thereof, held on August 25, 2015. 

HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
 
 
By   

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Borough Clerk 
 

  P:\20391_DOT\20391_2VP 08/20/15 



 

 
 

FORM OF 
LOAN AGREEMENT 

 
 
 THIS LOAN AGREEMENT, dated as of the ___ day of  ___________ 20__, 
between the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank (the "Bank"), a body corporate and politic 
constituted as an instrumentality of the State of Alaska (the "State") exercising public 
and essential governmental functions, created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 85, 
Title 44, Alaska Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), having its principal place of business 
at Juneau, Alaska, and the [City] [Borough], Alaska, a duly constituted ________ [City] 
[Borough] of the State (the "[City] [Borough]"): 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Bank is authorized to make loans of money 
(the "Loan" or "Loans") to governmental units; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the [City] [Borough] is a Governmental Unit as defined in the 
General Bond Resolution of the Bank hereinafter mentioned and pursuant to the Act is 
authorized to accept a Loan from the Bank to be evidenced by its municipal bonds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the [City] [Borough] desires to borrow money from the Bank in the 
amount not to exceed $__________ and has submitted an application to the Bank for a 
Loan in the amount not to exceed $_________, and the [City] [Borough] has duly 
authorized the issuance of its fully registered bond in the aggregate principal amount of 
$___________ (the "Municipal Bond"), which bond is to be purchased by the Bank as 
evidence of the Loan in accordance with this Loan Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the application of the [City] [Borough] contains the information 
requested by the Bank; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to provide for the issuance of bonds of the Bank in order to obtain 
from time to time money with which to make Loans, the Bank has adopted the General 
Obligation Bond Resolution on July 13, 2005, as amended (the "General Bond 
Resolution") and Series Resolution No. 20__-__, approved on ______ __, 20__ 
(together with the General Bond Resolution, the "Bond Resolution"), authorizing the 
making of such Loan to the [City] [Borough] and the purchase of the Municipal Bond; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of the Bank approved certain modifications to the General 
Bond Resolution, effective on the date when all bonds issued under the terms of the 
General Bond Resolution, prior to February 19, 2013, cease to be outstanding. 
 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 2 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree: 
 

1. The Bank hereby makes the Loan and the [City] [Borough] accepts the 
Loan in the aggregate principal amount of $_________.  As evidence of the Loan made 
to the [City] [Borough] and such money borrowed from the Bank by the [City] [Borough], 
the [City] [Borough] hereby sells to the Bank the Municipal Bond in the principal amount, 
with the principal installment payments, and bearing interest from its date at the rate or 
rates per annum, stated in Exhibit A appended hereto. 
 

2. The [City] [Borough] represents that it has duly adopted or will adopt all 
necessary ordinances or resolutions, including [Ordinance] [Resolution] No. ______, 
adopted on __________ __, 20__ (the "[City] [Borough] [Ordinance] [Resolution]"), and 
has taken or will take all proceedings required by law to enable it to enter into this Loan 
Agreement and issue its Municipal Bond to the Bank and that the Municipal Bond will 
constitute [a general obligation bond, secured by the full faith and credit] [a revenue 
bond, a special and limited obligation] of the [City] [Borough], all duly authorized by the 
[City] [Borough] [Ordinance] [Resolution]. 
 

3. Subject to any applicable legal limitations, the amounts to be paid by the 
[City] [Borough] pursuant to this Loan Agreement representing interest due on its 
Municipal Bond (the "Municipal Bond Interest Payments") shall be computed at the 
same rate or rates of interest borne by the corresponding maturities of the bonds sold 
by the Bank in order to obtain the money with which to make the Loan and to purchase 
the Municipal Bond (the "Loan Obligations") and shall be paid by the [City] [Borough] at 
least seven (7) business days before the interest payment date so as to provide funds 
sufficient to pay interest as the same becomes due on the Loan Obligations.   
 

4. The amounts to be paid by the [City] [Borough] pursuant to this Loan 
Agreement representing principal due on its Municipal Bond (the "Municipal Bond 
Principal Payments"), shall be paid at least seven (7) business days before the payment 
date stated in the Municipal Bond so as to provide funds sufficient to pay the principal of 
the Loan Obligations as the same matures based upon the maturity schedule stated in 
Exhibit A appended hereto. 
 

5. In the event the amounts referred to in Sections 3 and 4 hereof to be paid 
by the [City] [Borough] pursuant to this Loan Agreement are not made available at any 
time specified herein, the [City] [Borough] agrees that any money payable to it by any 
department or agency of the State may be withheld from it and paid over directly to the 
Trustee acting under the General Bond Resolution, and this Loan Agreement shall be 
full warrant, authority and direction to make such payment upon notice to such 
department or agency by the Bank, with a copy provided to the [City] [Borough], as 
provided in the Act. 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 3 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

 
6. In the event Loan Obligations have been refunded and the interest rates 

the Bank is required to pay on its refunding bonds in any year are less than the interest 
rates payable by the [City] [Borough] on the Municipal Bond for the corresponding year 
pursuant to the terms of the Municipal Bond, then both the Municipal Bond Interest 
Payments and the Municipal Bond Principal Payments will be adjusted in such a 
manner that (i) the interest rate paid by the [City] [Borough] on any principal installment 
of the Municipal Bond is equal to the interest rate paid by the Bank on the 
corresponding principal installment of the Bank's refunding bonds and (ii) on a present 
value basis the sum of the adjusted Municipal Bond Interest Payments and Municipal 
Bond Principal Payments is equal to or less than the sum of the Municipal Bond Interest 
Payments and Municipal Bond Principal Payments due over the remaining term of the 
Municipal Bond as previously established under this Loan Agreement.  In the event of 
such a refunding of Loan Obligations, the Bank shall present to the [City] [Borough] for 
the [City's] [Borough's] approval, a revised schedule of principal installment amounts 
and interest rates for the Municipal Bond.  If approved by the [City] [Borough] the 
revised schedule shall be attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein in 
replacement of the previous Exhibit A detailing said principal installment amounts and 
interest rates. 
 

7. The [City] [Borough] is obligated to pay to the Bank Fees and Charges.  
Such Fees and Charges actually collected from the [City] [Borough] shall be in an 
amount sufficient, together with the [City's] [Borough's] Allocable Proportion (as defined 
below) of other money available therefor under the provisions of the Bond Resolution, 
and other money available therefor, including any specific grants made by the United 
States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof or by the State or any 
agency or instrumentality thereof and amounts applied therefor from amounts 
transferred to the Operating Fund pursuant to Section 606 of the General Bond 
Resolution: 
 

(a) to pay, as the same become due, the [City's] [Borough's] Allocable 
Proportion of the Administrative Expenses of the Bank; and 
 

(b) to pay, as the same become due, the [City's] [Borough's] Allocable 
Proportion of the fees and expenses of the Trustee and paying agent for the Loan 
Obligations. 
 
 The [City's] [Borough's] Allocable Proportion as used herein shall mean the 
proportionate amount of the total requirement in respect to which the term is used 
determined by the ratio that the principal amount of the Municipal Bond outstanding 
bears to the total of all Loans then outstanding to all Governmental Units under the 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 4 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

General Bond Resolution, as certified by the Bank.  The waiver by the Bank of any fees 
payable pursuant to this Section 7 shall not constitute a subsequent waiver thereof. 
 

8. The [City] [Borough] is obligated to make the Municipal Bond Principal 
Payments scheduled by the Bank.  The first such Municipal Bond Principal Payment is 
due at least seven (7) business days prior to the date indicated on Exhibit A appended 
hereto, and thereafter on the anniversary thereof each year.  The [City] [Borough] is 
obligated to make the Municipal Bond Interest Payments scheduled by the Bank on a 
semi-annual basis commencing seven (7) business days prior to the date indicated on 
Exhibit A appended hereto, and to pay any Fees and Charges imposed by the Bank 
within 30 days of receiving the invoice of the Bank therefor. 
 

9. The Bank shall not sell and the [City] [Borough] shall not redeem prior to 
maturity any portion of the Municipal Bond in an amount greater than the Loan 
Obligations which are then outstanding and which are then redeemable, and in the 
event of any such sale or redemption, the same shall be in an amount not less than the 
aggregate of (i) the principal amount of the Municipal Bond (or portion thereof) to be 
redeemed, (ii) the interest to accrue on the Municipal Bond (or portion thereof) to be 
redeemed to the next redemption date thereof not previously paid, (iii) the applicable 
premium, if any, payable on the Municipal Bond (or portion thereof) to be redeemed, 
and (iv) the cost and expenses of the Bank in effecting the redemption of the Municipal 
Bond (or portion thereof) to be redeemed.  The [City] [Borough] shall give the Bank at 
least 50 days' notice of intention to redeem its Municipal Bond. 
 
 In the event the Loan Obligations with respect to which the sale or redemption 
prior to maturity of such Municipal Bond is being made have been refunded and the 
refunding bonds of the Bank issued for the purpose of refunding such Loan Obligations 
were issued in a principal amount in excess of or less than the principal amount of the 
Municipal Bond remaining unpaid at the date of issuance of such refunding bonds, the 
amount which the [City] [Borough] shall be obligated to pay or the Bank shall receive 
under item (i) above shall be the principal amount of such refunding bonds outstanding. 
 
 In the event the Loan Obligations have been refunded and the interest the Bank 
is required to pay on the refunding bonds is less than the interest the Bank was required 
to pay on the Loan Obligations, the amount which the [City] [Borough] shall be obligated 
to pay or the Bank shall receive under item (ii) above shall be the amount of interest to 
accrue on such refunding bonds outstanding. 
 
 In the event the Loan Obligations have been refunded, the amount which the 
[City] [Borough] shall be obligated to pay or the Bank shall receive under item (iii) 
above, when the refunded Loan Obligations are to be redeemed, shall be the applicable 
premium, if any, on the Loan Obligations to be redeemed. 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 5 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

 
 Nothing in this Section shall be construed as preventing the [City] [Borough] from 
refunding the Municipal Bond in exchange for a new Municipal Bond in conjunction with 
a refunding of the Loan Obligations. 
 

10. Simultaneously with the delivery of the Municipal Bond to the Bank, the 
[City] [Borough] shall furnish to the Bank evidence satisfactory to the Bank which shall 
set forth, among other things, that the Municipal Bond will constitute a valid and binding 
[general obligation] [special and limited obligation] of the [City] [Borough], secured by 
the [full faith and credit] [revenue of the ____________] of the [City] [Borough]. 
 

11. Invoices for payments under this Loan Agreement shall be addressed to 
the [City] [Borough], Attention:  ____________, ________________, ________, Alaska 
99___.  The [City] [Borough] shall give the Bank and the corporate trust office of the 
Trustee under the General Bond Resolution at least 30 days' written notice of any 
change in such address. 
 

12. [The [City] [Borough] hereby agrees that it shall fully fund, at the time of 
loan funding, its debt service reserve fund (in an amount equal to $__________) which 
secures payment of principal and interest on its Municipal Bond, that such fund shall be 
held in the name of the [City] [Borough] with the Trustee, and that the yield on amounts 
held in such fund shall be restricted to a yield not in excess of ________ percent.  
(Applies to revenue bonds only.)]  

 
13. [Rate covenant language – if applicable.]   
 
14. The [City] [Borough] hereby agrees to keep and retain, until the date six 

years after the retirement of the Municipal Bond, or any bond issued to refund the 
Municipal Bond, or such longer period as may be required by the [City's] [Borough's] 
record retention policies and procedures, records with respect to the investment, 
expenditure and use of the proceeds derived from the sale of its Municipal Bond, 
including without limitation, records, schedules, bills, invoices, check registers, 
cancelled checks and supporting documentation evidencing use of proceeds, and 
investments and/or reinvestments of proceeds. The [City] [Borough] agrees that all 
records required by the preceding sentence shall be made available to the Bond Bank 
upon request.  
 

15. Prior to payment of the amount of the Loan or any portion thereof, and the 
delivery of the Municipal Bond to the Bank or its designee, the Bank shall have the right 
to cancel all or any part of its obligations hereunder if: 
 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 6 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

(a) Any representation, warranty or other statement made by the [City] 
[Borough] to the Bank in connection with its application to the Bank for a Loan shall be 
incorrect or incomplete in any material respect. 
 

(b) The [City] [Borough] has violated commitments made by it in the 
terms of this Loan Agreement. 
 

(c) The financial position of the [City] [Borough] has, in the opinion of 
the Bank, suffered a materially adverse change between the date of this Loan 
Agreement and the scheduled time of delivery of the Municipal Bond to the Bank. 
 

16. The obligation of the Bank under this Loan Agreement is contingent upon 
delivery of its General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series _____ and receipt of the proceeds 
thereof. 
 

17. The [City] [Borough] agrees that it will provide the Bank with written notice 
of any default in covenants under the [City] [Borough] [Ordinance] [Resolution] within 
thirty (30) days from the date thereof. 
 

18. The [City] [Borough] agrees that it shall file its annual financial statement 
with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board not later than two hundred ten (210) 
days after the end of each fiscal year of the [City] [Borough] for the term of the Municipal 
Bond.  The [City] [Borough] further agrees that filings under this Section 16 shall be 
made in connection with CUSIP Nos. 01179P, 011798 and 01179R.  Additional or 
alternate CUSIP number(s) may be added from time to time by written notice from the 
Bank to the [City] [Borough].  The [City] [Borough] agrees that if it shall receive from the 
Bank CUSIP number(s) in addition to those set forth in this Section then it shall make its 
filings using both CUSIP numbers herein stated and any additional CUSIP number(s).   

 
19. The [City] [Borough] agrees that it shall not take, or omit to take, any 

action lawful and within its power to take, which action or omission would cause interest 
on the Municipal Bond to become subject to federal income taxes in addition to federal 
income taxes to which interest on such Municipal Bond is subject on the date of original 
issuance thereof. 
 
 The [City] [Borough] shall not permit any of the proceeds of the Municipal Bond, 
or any facilities financed with such proceeds, to be used in any manner that would 
cause the Municipal Bond to constitute a "private activity bond" within the meaning of 
Section 141 of the Code. 
 
 The [City] [Borough] shall make no use or investment of the proceeds of the 
Municipal Bond which will cause the Municipal Bond to be an "arbitrage bond" under 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 7 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

Section 148 of the Code.  So long as the Municipal Bond is outstanding, the [City] 
[Borough], shall comply with all requirements of said Section 148 and all regulations of 
the United States Department of Treasury issued thereunder, to the extent that such 
requirements are, at the time, applicable and in effect.  The [City] [Borough] shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the Bank from any obligation of the [City] [Borough] to 
make rebate payments to the United States under said Section 148 arising from the 
[City's] [Borough's] use or investment of the proceeds of the Municipal Bond. 
 

20. Upon request of the Bank, the [City] [Borough] agrees that if its bonds 
constitute ten percent (10%) or more of the outstanding principal of municipal bonds 
held by the Bank under its General Bond Resolution, it shall execute a continuing 
disclosure agreement prepared by the Bank for purposes of Securities and Exchange 
Commission Rule 15c2-12, adopted under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. 
 

21. The [City] [Borough] agrees that if its bonds constitute ten percent (10%) 
or more of the outstanding principal of municipal bonds held by the Bank under its 
General Bond Resolution it shall provide the Bank for inclusion in future official 
statements, upon request, financial information generally of the type included in 
Appendix D, under the heading "Summaries of Borrowers Representing 10% or More of 
Outstanding Principal of Bonds Issued Under the 2005 General Bond Resolution," to the 
Official Statement and attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
  

22. If any provision of this Loan Agreement shall for any reason be held to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not 
affect any of the remaining provisions of this Loan Agreement and this Loan Agreement 
shall be construed and enforced as if such invalid or unenforceable provision had not 
been contained herein. 
 

23. This Loan Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, any 
of which shall be regarded for all purposes as an original and all of which constitute but 
one and the same instrument.  Each party agrees that it will execute any and all 
documents or other instruments, and take such other actions as are necessary, to give 
effect to the terms of this Loan Agreement. 
 

24. No waiver by either party of any term or condition of this Loan Agreement 
shall be deemed or construed as a waiver of any other term or condition hereof, nor 
shall a waiver of any breach of this Loan Agreement be deemed to constitute a waiver 
of any subsequent breach, whether of the same or of a different section, subsection, 
paragraph, clause, phrase or other provision of this Loan Agreement. 
 

25. In this Loan Agreement, unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized 
terms which are defined in Article I of the General Bond Resolution shall have the same 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ___ 
Loan Agreement   Page 8 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

meanings, respectively, as such terms are given in Article I of the General Bond 
Resolution. 
 

26. This Loan Agreement merges and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations and agreements between the parties hereto relating to the subject 
matter hereof and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto in 
respect thereof.   

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Loan Agreement 
the day and year first above written. 
 
      ALASKA MUNICIPAL BOND BANK 
 
 
 
      By:___________________________________ 
       DEVEN J. MITCHELL 
       Executive Director 
 
 
      [CITY] [BOROUGH] OF ___________,   
      ALASKA 
 
 
      By:___________________________________ 
       ____________________________ 
      Its:___________________________________  



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series _____ 
Loan Agreement – Exhibit A  Page A-1 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

EXHIBIT A 
 

$___________ 
[City] [Borough], Alaska 

[General Obligation] [Revenue] Bond, 20__[__] 
("Municipal Bond") 

 
Due 

________ 1 
Principal 
Amount 

Interest  
Rate 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
 
Principal installments shall be payable on _________ 1 in each of the years, and in the 
amounts set forth above.  Interest on the Municipal Bond shall be payable on 
_______ 1, 20__, and thereafter on _______ 1 and _______ 1 of each year. 
 
Prepayment Provisions:  The Municipal Bond principal installments are not subject to 
prepayment prior to maturity.  
 
Optional Prepayment:  The Municipal Bond principal installments due on or after 
________ 1, 20__ are subject to prepayment in whole or in part at the option of the 
[City] [Borough] on any date on or after ________1, 20__, at a price of 100% of the 
principal amount thereof to be prepaid, plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment. 
 
 
 



 

 
AMBB/General Obligation Bonds, 20__ Series ____ 
Loan Agreement – Exhibit B  Page B-1 
I:\Docs\37420001\Form Documents\Form Of Loan Agreement.Docx 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

15-591
8/25/15

for Level Two of Soboleff-McRae Veteran's Village

Assessor

Lands/Assessment

8/17/15

1. Resolution 15-08-640
2. Assessor Recommendation
3. HAL Application for CPE status

Motion: Adopt Resolution 15-08-640.

The Assessor recommends adoption.

Loss of Partial Prop Tax Revenue

A complete application was received from Haines Assisted Living, Inc. (HAL) requesting a Community Purpose
Exemption for the eleven Level Two apartments of the Soboleff-McRae Veterans Village located on the corner of 3rd
Avenue and Dalton Street. The assessor evaluated the request and recommends the assembly grant a partial
exemption based on his review, specifically that the six apartments housing tenants with one or more of the
recognized characteristics (low income, 50% disability, or long term illness) be granted community exemption status,
and the remaining five apartments be considered non-exempt, taxable real property.

Borough Code requires assembly action on a request for community purpose exemptions.

8/25/15

Request for Community Purpose Exemption

11A3



 

HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 15-08-640 

 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly approving in response 
to an application from Haines Assisted Living, Inc., as recommended 
by the borough assessor, a partial community purpose exemption for 
the Level Two apartments of the Soboleff-McRae Veterans Village. 

 
WHEREAS, Haines Borough Code 3.70.040(D) provides for a Community Purpose Exemption 
for real property owned by an organization not organized for business or profit-making 
purposes and used exclusively for community purposes, provided the organization applies and 
meets the code and policy community purpose standards and requirements, and receives 
assembly approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, a complete application was received from Haines Assisted Living, Inc. (HAL) 
requesting a Community Purpose Exemption for the eleven Level Two apartments of the 
Soboleff-McRae Veterans Village located on the corner of 3rd Avenue and Dalton Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the borough assessor evaluated the request and recommends the borough 
assembly grant a partial exemption based on his review, specifically that the six apartments 
housing tenants with one or more of the recognized characteristics (low income, 50% disability, 
or long term illness) be granted community exemption status, and the remaining five 
apartments be considered non-exempt, taxable real property; and 
 
WHEREAS, HBC 3.70.040(D)(2) allows that a property may be apportioned into community-
purpose and non-community-purpose areas in order to calculate a partial exemption, if 
appropriate, because only that portion of the property that is actually used exclusively for the 
purpose of providing a benefit to the community is eligible for the exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, HBC 3.70.040(D)(5)(c) requires the assessor to forward community purpose 
exemption applications to the assembly along with a recommendation for approval or denial,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly approves in 
response to an application from Haines Assisted Living, Inc., as recommended by the borough 
assessor, a partial community purpose exemption for the Level Two apartments of the Soboleff-
McRae Veterans Village. 
 
Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this ___ day of 
_______, 2015. 
 
 

      ___________________________ 
        Janice Hill, Mayor  
 
Attest:  
 
 
____________________________ 
Julie Cozzi, MMC, Borough Clerk 

Draft 

 

 



Haines Borough Lands Department 
P.O. Box 1209 
Haines, Alaska 99827 
Phone (907) 766-2231 (ext. 33) 
Fax (907) 766-2716 

Memorandum 
To: Haines Borough Assembly Members 

CQ Dave Sosa, Borough Manager 

From: Dean Olsen 
Assessor 

Re: Soboleff-McRae Veterans Village (SMW), Community Purpose Tax Exemption (HBC 
3.70.040) 

Date: 8/18/2015 

This memo explains the Assessor's recommendation of the Community Purpose Tax Exemption 
application received from Haines Assisted Living, Inc. (HAL), for level two (the SMW Apartments), of the 
Soboleff-McRae Veterans Village located on the corner of 3m Avenue and Dalton Street. (1) 

Vince Hansen submitted a completed application along with all requested documentation for Haines 
Assisted Living, Inc. The documentation provided with the application, and the available information online at 
http://www.irs.gov/Charities-&-Non-Profits/Exempt-Organizations-Select-Check demonstrates that HAL is a 
recognized non-profit in good standing. 

Upon review of the application I noticed an explanation of tenant's status on page 2 that supports a 
Community Purpose Exemption. I requested further details of the tenant's status and Mr. Hanson completed a 
chart to provide a visual of the tenant's status per apartment. (See page 2 for tenant chart). 

Based on the completed application, additional documentation, and information provided by Mr. 
Hansen I recommend the Community Purpose Tax Exemption be granted to Haines Assisted Living as an 
apportionment of the six (6) apartments housing seniors with one or more of the recognized characteristics: (a) 
low income, (b) 50% disability, or (c) long term illness, and the remaining five (5) apartments being non-exempt, 
taxable real property. (2) 

1 

(1) Note that level one of the SMVV is already exempt from real property tax as a required exemption 
under HBC 3.70.030 (A) (3), and AS 29.45.030 (C) (3). 

(2) Local exemptions and exclusions: HBC 3.70.040 D. (2) A property may be apportioned into 
community-purpose and non-community-purpose areas in order to calculate a partial exemption if 
appropriate. Only that portion of the property that is actually used exclusively for the purpose of 
providing a benefit to the community is eligible for the exemption. 



 Page 2 
 

 

 

Soboleff‐McRae Veteran Village Apartments 
Apartment 

Number 
Low income 
(HUD) 

Additional 
$200/Sub 

Over 65 50% disability Long-term 
illness 

1 √ √ √  √ 

2   √   

3   √   

4 √ √  √ √ 

5   √ 
  

6   √ 
 √ 

7 √ √ √ 
  

8   √ 
  

9 √ √ 
 √ √ 

10   √ 
 √ 

11   √ 
  

 

     

 

 

















 
 
 
Alaska Entity #:  100135 

 
State of Alaska 

Department of Commerce, Community, and  
Economic Development 

Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
 

CERTIFICATE 
OF 

INCORPORATION 
Nonprofit Corporation 

 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED, as Commissioner of Commerce, Community, and Economic 
Development of the State of Alaska, hereby certifies that Articles of Incorporation 
duly signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of Alaska Statutes has been 
received in this office and have been found to conform to law. 
 
ACCORDINGLY, the undersigned, as Commissioner of Commerce, Community and 
Economic Development, and by virtue of the authority vested in me by law, hereby 
issues this certificate to 
 

Haines Assisted Living, Inc. 
 
 
and attaches hereto the original copy of the Articles of Incorporation for such 
certificate. 
 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I execute this certificate and 
affix the Great Seal of the State of Alaska on March 29, 
2006. 
 

 
 
William C. Noll 
Commissioner 










































	Agenda 8/25/15
	4-Minutes 8/11/15
	7A-Ord 413 Minor Offenses - AB 15-576
	Ordinance 15-06-413
	PowerPoint Presentation
	Fine Table with Existing Penalties for Comparison
	6/30/15 Attorney Memo

	7B-Ord 418 Cooling Water - AB 15-589
	Ordinance 15-08-418
	Memo from the Director of Public Facilities

	8A-Manager's Report 8/25/15
	Attachment: Public Facilities Project Report

	8B-Library Report of June 2015
	9A-Library Board Minutes 6/17/15
	9B-PRAC Minutes 7/17/15
	9C-PC Minutes 7/9/15
	9D-FYI Comments from Citizens to PSC
	11A1-Rez 638 Janitorial - AB 15-590
	Resolution 15-08-638
	RFP for Janitorial Services
	Machineworks Bid

	11A2-Rez 639 GO Bonds - AB 15-591
	Resolution 15-08-639
	Form of Loan Agreement

	11A3-Rez 640 HAL CPE - AB 15-591
	Resolution 15-08-640
	Assessor Recommendation
	HAL Application for CPE status




